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TRAINING NEEDS IN GERONTOLOGY

| THURSDAY, JUNE 21. 1973

U.S. SENATE,
Serciat COMMITTEE ON AGING,
Washington, D.C.

The committee met, pursuant to vecess, at 10 aan. in room 1518,
Dirksen Scnate Office Building, Senator Lawton Chiles presiding,

Present : Senators Chiles, IF'ong, and Gurney.

Also present: William E. Oriol, staff director; David Affeldt, chief
counsel; Deborah Kilmer, professional staftf member; Johin Guy Miller.
minority staff director; Robert M. M. Seto, minority counsel; Patri-
cia Oriol, chief clerk: Gerald Strickler. printing assistant; and Ann
Todaro, clerk.

Senator CriLes. We will reconvene our hearings.

Mr. Kurzman, I would like to thank you and your colleagues for
appearing before the comnmittee to describe the administration’s policy
pertaining to training in the field of aging.

I would also like to note that Dr. Arthur Flemming was sworn in
as U.S. Commissioner on Aging just 2 days age. Dr. Flemming, I will
repeat what has already been said to you so often before: The Nation
is fortunate that a man of ysur stature and complete dedication has
decided to lead the Administration on Aging at a challenging time in
its development. It isa pleasure to have you here today.

Dr. Freayina. Thank you very much.

OPENING STATEMENT BY SENATOR LAWTON CHILES, PRESIDING

Senator CurLes. A< you are aware, the committee conducted a hear-
ing earlier this weeii. Representatives from gerontological programs
at colleges and universities testified. I was very impressed with the
interest and enthusiasm of these witnessss, particularly the students,
who explained what would happen to their aging program and their
personal careers if the administration’s proposal to “phase out™ train-
ing funds for aging programs were implemented. The witnesses agreed
that their aging programs would be seriously curtailed. Ir one in-
stance, the entire p1ogram would probably be terminated.

Dr. Albert Wilson. director of the aging studies program at the Uni- .
versity of South Florida. said that if the Federal fuinding is phased
out, the program will not attract the “second-carcer” students who
make up a large percentage of their program. The cutofl would seri-
ously curtail the capacity of the program to give technical assistance
to the developing community programs which the university now as-
sists. Stndents accompanying Dr. Wilson testified that without the help

(95)
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of Federa! stipends they would have to forego theiv commitinent to the
field of gerontology or would have to attend conrses part time and be
detained in obtaining their degree.

Piuiase OQur TraiNving Foxnns

The suddenness of the administration’s decisien to phase out these
training funds “allowed no way for universities to respond with alter-
native means of maintaining their programs,” according to Dr. Walter
Beattic, director of the All-University Gerontology Center at Syracuse
TTniversity. Dr. Beattie went on to say that “for many programs the
result of this sudden withdrawal of support is the eradication of a
number of gerontology training programs throughout the United
States and the serious weakening of all such programs.” Dr. Beattie
was testifying not only for his prograin at Syracuse but on behalf of
the Association for Gerontology in Higher Edneation which represents
26 university aging programs,

The second half of our hearing concentrated on the importance of
training programs to minority aged. Dr. Percil Stanford, divector of

the Center on Aging at California State University in San Diego said:

There are too few persons trained to work with older people in general, and
there is an even greater need for trained persons to serve a variety of cthuic
and other minority older people. If persons are going to be trained in auy way to
work with older people, they should have the appropriate knoweldge to be effec-
tive with whatever culturally different persons they arve serving.

Student loans that are proposed by the administration as alterna-
tives to the training grants, in Dr. Stanford’s view. would be almost
useless to the minority student. Cultiral barriers wounld prevent these
persons from obtaining such loans, and “mauy banks are carefully
screening the persons who they wish or do not wish to receive sich
loans.” With no credit history themselves or within their family hack-
ground, it would be extrenmely difficult for these students to obtain a
loan,

Students from the Institute on Aging at Federal City College told
the committee that without Federal stipends they and most of the
students in their program “will have to drop out.” The stipend paid
for their tuition plus related expenses such as textbooks, transporta-
tion, and so forth. One of the students stated that she feit “an obliga-
tion to make a contribution in bettering their lot (clderly).” Without
the support from Federal funds, she would have not been able to ob-
tain the degree to satisfy her goal to work for the needs of the aging.

PrrsoNNFL DESPERATELY NEEDED

Assessing the testimonies of these witnesses, as well as the expan-
sion of services under the Older Americans Act, it appears to me that
the need for personnel trained in the gerontology field is not only
desperately necded but is now suffering from the lack of speeialists in
the field. With services for the elderly increasing and the aged popu-
lation growing considerably, this gap between the number of services
and personuel to man these programs is dangeronsly wide. Many of
those already working with programs for the elderly have specialties
in other fields and never have had training in matters of the aged and



the aging process. In fact. one of the answers to my survey of geron-
tological programs said :

Tn most cases, services to older peoplie were not as effective as possibie because
of the individuals who were frequently dedlcated but untrained in the field of
gerontology. 'They were competent within their own speecialties, but their lack of
kuowledye of aging, both in terms of the processes and some of the problems re-
sulting from the processes of aging, limited their effectiveness in carrying out
their responsibitlities.

In my opinion, it is essential for this country to establish and oper-
ate programs which are sound and effective in meeting the needs of
our elderly and this means supplying snfficient manpower to staff the
services our legislation ereates.

Senator Fong, do you have astatement, ?

Senator Foxa. Mr, Chairman, T have no statement.

I ain very interested to hear the testiino: 1y of Mr. Kurzman and Mr.
Flemming. T want to welcome themn to the cominittee.

\enafm Curres. Senator Gurney ¢

Senator GurNry. No statement.

Senator Cinines. Mr. Kurzman. we wonld new like to have your
testimony.

STATEMENT OF STEPHEN KURZMAN, ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR
LEGISLATION, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND
WELFARE; ACCOMPANIED BY HON. ARTHUR S. FLEMMING,
COMMISSIONER, ADMINISTRATION ON AGING; HON. JOHN ZAFPP,
DEPUTY ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR HEALTH; AND GERALD D.
LaVECK, PH. D., DIRECTOR, NATIONAL INSTITUTE CF CHILD
HEALTH AND HUMAN DEVELOPMENT

Mr. Kurzaan, Thank you, Mr. Chairman. We are very pleased to
have this opportunity to appear before you and your committee today.
I would like to introduce for the benefit of the comm; .ce each of the
associutes who are here with me today: Dr. Arthur S. Flemnming, yon
have already identified, to my mid-left, former Secretary of HEW,
and sworn in just 2 d.lys ag0, as you noted as Cominissioner of the
Admninistration on AmnOr on my mid- 11()nt is Dr. Gerald LaVeck..
who is Director of the National Institute of Child Health and Human
Development of the National Institutes of Health, also within HEW;
on his right is Dr. John Zapp, who is Depaty Assistant Secretary f01
Legislation (Health),

We have with us foday, and available to answer questions as well.
Dr. Clark Tibbitts who is Director of Training in the Administration
of Aging; ! Dr. LeRoy Duncan who is Chief of the Adult Develop-
ment and Aging Branch of the National Institute of Child Health and
Human Dovolopment, and Mr. Richard Rowe, who is Deputy Director
of the Division of Stndent Assistance in the Office of Tducation.

Variery oF Career Croics

Mr. Chairman, in answer to some of the comments you have made
about the witnesses who have testified emhel, the President’s 1974
budget request, we feel, together with cectain administrative actions,

1 Sce prepared statelnent, app. 2, item 1, p. 166.
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lays the groundwork for increased involvement by the educational
community in the field of aging. We feel the administration strategy
and proposal here makes 1t possible for both undergraduates and
araduate students to make eareer choices among a variety of cate-
gorical programs and with institutions which provide inducements to
those students to answering the special field.

We helieve a student choiee policy will permit them to make a chotce
among a variety of fields and many of them will continue to choose
and we think in greater numbers in view of the increased funding you
have referred to in service programs which the administration and the
Congress have proposed and are about to implement,

The new policy you are proposing wonld phase out this set of al-
most a half dozen very speeific categorvieal training programs, Jirected
not. toward student aid but first ioward the institutions which can
offer aid to students in these narrow fields: Social work, vocational
rehabilitation, aging, and other sozial services and most health-related
disciplines.

Of conrse, this committee is most interested in the impact of this
policy proposal on the field of aging alone. T want to point out it is a
proposal we are making in a number of fields. includin s aging. to move
to student aid rather than institutional. Again, at the outset and con-
sistent. with what you have heard from other witnesses. we do believe
there will be an accounting and increasing demand for persons who
have completed both undergraduate and graduate programs to enable
them to help operate programs in the field of aging. We have indi-
cated, not only the Older Americans Act. expansion of service pro-
arams, hut the new supplemental security income program which was
enacted as part of the Social Security amendments of 1972, This de-
mand will be met in our view only as educational institutions which
are now involved in the field of aging strengthen the programs as
new ones decide to make the commitment in this field.

The President’s 1974 bndget, when coupled with administrative
actions which will be described later in this testimony. is designed to
encourage the involvement of the educational community in the field
of aging. This encouragement will be provided through increased
student aid. strengthened research and demonstration programs. the
development of comprehensive and coordinated cervice programs. and
the provision of other training opportunities.

StTopenT FIinancian INcENTIVES

First of all, let us look at the area of student aid. Under a policy
of Federal support of categorical fraining programs. students often
make carcer decisions on the basis of which program provides the most
attractive financial incentives. Once the program has been completed
there is no assurance that the student will continue to work 1in the
field for which he has been trained.

The administration believes that this Nation should do everything
possible to remove the financial problem as a barrier to tha pursuit of
educational goals in the field of higher education. in these half a dozen
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fields. 1t Lelieves that substantial progress toward the achievement of
sueh a goal can be made throngh a Federal general student assistance
program, publie and private scholarship and loan programs, and work
programs——which at times may be subsidized in part by public funds
ana family savings.

Consistent with this policy the President’s 1974 bud«et proposed
full funding for a new prograum of basic opportunity grants for under-
graduate edueation authorized hy the Iiducation Amendments of 1972
and provided for work study funds and guaranteed and snbsidized
student loans for both undergraduate and graduate training in general
through the student choice inechanism which I have mentioned.

We believe that in total, this represents an inerease of $300 million
m additional Federal student aid over the amount spent in fiscal year
1973, The Congress changed the mixture of aid but. concurred with the
adimiistration’s propo.@eﬁ Increase.

As a result of the combined action proposed by the President and
maodified by the Congress, it is estimated that during the academic
vear 1974, this proposal in the budget represcats an inerease of $500
million, one-half million dollars in addition and 400,000 to 500,000
undergraduate students will recetve %122 million under the basic op-
portunity grants program; that approximately 1 million undergrad-
nates and graduate students will receive guaranteed student loans
with many of the undergraduates in this group also receiving basic
opportunity erants; that 560,000 undergraduate and graduate students
will be employed in work-study programs; and that 2,363 colleges and
universities will be in a position to make direct loans to approxi:nately
612000 undergraduate and graduate students. These Federal pro-
grams will, of course, be supplemented by public and private scholar-
ship and loan programs.

Frer Choicr or Cankens

Under this student aid policy—as contrasted with a policy of offer-
ing student stipends for the specific categorical programs—hoth under-
graduate and graduave students will receive assistance irrespective of
their career choices. This means that career choices will not be related
to solving immediate financial problems. Beginning next September,
400,000 students will be free to malke these c¢hoices on the basis of career
opportnnities and their own aptitnde, interests. and commitments.

Senator Foxa. What you are saying, Mr. Kurzman, is that instead
of saying this is « stipend for this particular work, a student will got.
2 basic opportunity grant and can choose whatever he wishes?

Mr. Kunzaan. That 1s correct, sir. :

Senator Foxe. And that the administration feels that by granting
stipends, you just funnel one man into one position whereas if yon
have a basic opportunity grant it gives all of the students who have
these grants the opportunity to go into every field and to take portions
of some fields?

Mr. Kurzyax. Exactly, Senator Fong. We think this is a much
more equitable way for Federal assistance which now, of course, is on
a much greater scale than the scales of the pre-existing narrow cate-
gorical vrograms in the half dozen specialized fields. Tt is much more

20-702—78—pt, 2——2
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equituble, in onr view, to distvibute the funds to students and permit
them to malke their career cholces as you have indicated.

What we think will come out of this is a great interest and a great
sense of commitment toward the field of aging among many students
who will see the demand that is there for trained personnel—a demand
that will increase immensely by reason of the great expansion that
the chairman has referred to in both the older Americans program and
the supplemental security income program-—so we have no_qualms
about where the trained -manpower will. in fact, emerge. We think
hey elearly will imder this program of siudent choices.

Senator Cuines. What malkes vou think that when you have a new
program and you are trying, in effect, to attract students to it? The
same thing applies to the logic of giving unfettered money. Tt made
sense to give the money back to the local police departments and let
them do what they wanted to. but we also decided we wanted to do
something important about drugs in the country. This is something we
need to attack specifically, and something all the way down through
the Tine, so we earmarked money for drugs. We put a special and co-
ordinating braneh into the resident office to coordinate the attack on
drugs. T though we were wrying to attack the problem of aging that
\\':ll\’, .
Now, you say we are just going to let it swim with all of the other
[rrograms?

INGREASED STUDENT AD

Mr. Kuenzman. Mr. Chairman, let me answer this two ways. Firsi
of all. we are talking abont very great increased student aid as com-
pared with the totals involved in the azing training programs which
we are seeking to phase out. The scale i3 just entirely different.

Seeond. we are not relying alone on {lie student aid program; we
are also relying on other factors which I have not yet gotten to in my
statement which we think will also tend to involve the institutions of
higher edncation, in the field of training for gerontology; so that we
are not leaving it entirely to chance, not by any means; the induce-
ments are clearly Jhere, where free choice is provided.

Senator Foxa. Ts it the feeling because there is a stipend there for
that particular stndy, that these students who need the financial help
choose it. but that does not necessarily mean they are very interested
in the particutar study ¢

Mr. Kunzaan. That is correct, Senator Fong. Tn part. we are talk-
ing about a number of fields of national intevest which do not have
specialized training programs.

What we have done through the accretion over the vears of these
half dezen very specific, very narrow training programs, without
going to specific institutions, than going seeking the stndent, is that
we have really skewered the pattern of aid in a disproportionate way.

Tt is not necessarily representing any demand factor at all; and in
fact, T do not know that it necessarily mnatches the Congress sense of
national priorities cither because many fields do not have specialized
training programs in which clearly the Congress and the administra-
tion together have great responsibility.

Senator Fong. As the committee is interested in the question of the
aging. naturally it is interested in seeing that aging training costs be
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provided, It you just give the money to students without funneling it
fo the institution. what would happen to the institutional program?
Mr. Xurzatan. We think the institutional program, Senator Fong,
will continue. In fact, they will have available to them resources m
%rez}t{%r amonnts than they have had under these narrow programs, as
said. -
Senator Cies. How !

REsEARCH AND DEMONSTRATION GRANTS

Mr. Kurzaran. What we are talking about is vesearch and develop-

. ment which we are séeking institutional participation. These institu-
tions can and shonld offer training opportunities for both undergradu-
ates and eraduates. Much of their mcome could derive from the re-
search and demonstration grants which the Administration on Aging
will be making to them; similarly, this is true_in the case of the
National Institute of Child Health and Human Development. i

Senator Fona. How does that tie into centers for aging studies
that now have the use of some research grants and special training
‘programs? )

Mr. Kurzaan. We anticipate, Senator, that those very same centers
will he participating in research and demonstration programs and
their students will be participating in the student aid program. If I
may, I would like to work tﬁrough this statement and then I think
perhaps you will see the pattern. )

Senator Gurney. Just one question on this part efore you leave it.

You made the statement, and I quote: “Cnce the programs have
been completed, there is no assurance the student will continue to
work in the field for which he has been trained.” _

To you have some statistics showing that he has been trained to do
a certain work in the field of gerontology and he has left it?

. Mr. Kurzaan. I do not know, Senator Gurnéy. We would be happy
to try to supply that for the record. v '

Senator GPURNEY. I wish yon would. That woula be useful inforina-
tion for us. . v .

Se};mtor Curres. Maybe Dr. Tibbitts could help us with that ques-
tion? S . :

Dr. Tisisrrrs. We are receiving the first results of an evaluation
gtudy made of the students who ‘have left our program through last
September. It appears through the preliminary results about 77 per-
cent of all who are employed now are in the field of aging.®

Senator GurNEY. Arein the field of what?

Dr. Tiserrts. Of aging, serving older people.

Senator CuvLes. Seventy-seven percent ?

Dr. Tisprrrs. Yes, of those who are working. .~

Senator Gurxgy. To put it another way, you have lost about 256
percent of those®. o S S

- Dr. Tiserrzs. On the surface, that appears to be right. We have not
lost that proportion, however. Quite a number return to school to work
toward & higher degree, usually a doctorate in gerontology.

E T C Senator CrivLes. That was 77 percent of all employed
ruum s See app. 2, item 1, p. 166, for prepared statement of Clark Tibbits, Director, Division
of Manpower Development, Adminfstration on Aging, Office of Human Development,

e JDepartment of Health Edqqntlnn' and Welfare. N
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Dr. Tissrrrs. Of all who are employed. Those who are employed
and those who are in school amount to 69 percent. of the total who left

school through last September.

Senator CrimLis. Well, would you furnish the committee statistics on
that so we conld get some feel for that?

My, Korzyan. The total number of stadents who left school through
September 1972 was 725. Iighty-three percent left by ¢ raduation ; the
remainder for a variety of other reasons. The distribution of those
who left for all reasons, acecording to employment status at the time of
the study in January 1973, was as follows:

Pereent

Employment status: datrivution
Employed, xerving older people wholly or pavtinldy o ___ (154
mployed, not serving older people_-. - —— - - 1%

In school seeking a higher degrec — _ - G
Seeking work —_— - - 8
Not in the labor foxvce e e —————e 4
Total - e o e e e e e - 10C

Thus, 69 pereent of the total number of students who completed or
left their programs for other reasous are employed in the field of aging
or have returned to school for & higher degree.

Eight porcent were locking for suitable employnient, principally
in the field of aging, . _

Approximately, one-half of the 19 pereent employed but not in the
field of aging had sought jebs in which they could serve older people.
‘They reported that they would return to the field of aging when a job
appropriate to their training appeared. = ,

StroNG INTEREST For AGED

-1t is of interest, also, thut Y6 percent ¢f t]ié_fotu] group reported that
they had had or ncquived through the training program a strong in-
terest in the gevontological field. ~

We believe that an inereasing numbey.of students, having been as-

- sured of assistance in removing financial barriers, will he chl]engod

by the rapidly unfolding career opportuiities in the field of aging and
will deeide to enter the field. In most instances these decisions will be
based on a strong commitment to the lield of aging rather than on the
conclusion that the financiul ussistance for a training program in aging
is more attractive than a training program in seme other area,

This trend in the direction of undergraduate and graduate students
deciding to enter the field of aging can be accelerated by developing
and making available to both undergraduate and graduate students
better information on carcer opportunities in the field -of aging and
better supply-demund data, The administration intends to take the

initiative In making such information available, o

In addition, undergraduate and graduate students wili be encout-
aged to enter the ficld of aging as a.result of steps that are being taken

to strengthen the Federal Government’s participation in research and’

demonstration program in the field of aging, = .
- In his message on: aging on March 23, 1972, the President said:
‘What we need is a comprchensive, coordinated research program, one which

includes diseiplines ranging from biomedical research to transpertation systems
analysis, g‘rom\psychol_ogy nn’d‘soclology{to Inanagement =cience and economies.

S
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In order to carry ont this Presidential mandate, the following steps
ave being taken:

(1) The Secretary of Health, Edueation, and Welfare, as Chairman
of the Cabinet-level Domestic Couneil on” Aging, and with th: con-
currence of the President, has nuthorized and directed the (lonnnis-
sioner on Aging to establish and to chair an interagency working
aroup in the field of aging. The primary uponsnln]lt\ of this group
will be to establish. wor king throngh the Cabinet-level committee, ob-
jectives and priorities for the use of the Govermment’s exis, ing anthori-
ties and resources in the field of aging, and to develop and nnpl( ment
across-the-board  action programs based on  these objectives and
Prioviies,

InreraceNey Task Forer

12) The Conmissioner on Aging, as chairman of this‘ working
;_"mup. will innmediately est: blish an inter rageney task force in the
area of research in aging which. under the divection of an exeentive
ehiatran will be ehary ‘r(»(l with the responsibility of establishing objee-
tives and priorities andl developing and implementing action programs
ta the broad area of aging researeh as defined by the President.

Some of the agencies that will he involved in the development of
this (nmpxehvnsl\v and coordinated vesearch program ealled for by
the President will be the following : The National Institate of ealth.
the National Institute of Mental Health. the National Center for
Health Services Research and Development, the Administration, on
Aging, the Social Security Administration. the Veterans' Adminis-
tration, the Department of Housing and Urban Development, the De-
partment of Transportation, the Atomic Energy Conunission, the
National Science 1<0und.lt10n. the National Aeronautics and Space
Administration. and the Taw Enforcement Assistance Administra-
tion,

Severa] examples serve to iliustrate the potential of this approacl.
The Administration on Agiang is slated to spend $7 million on research
and demonstration for fiseal year 1974 : the National Institute of (‘hlld
Health and Hmman Development has available in fiseal vear 1974
®11.8 million for research and training: the Atomie Iinergy Connnis-
sion spent $L5 million for aging-related research in 1973,

Senator CHILES. Tfmw did t thoy spend that money ?

Mr. Kurzamax. Dr. Flemming. perhaps von have some detail on
that?

Senator Cuires. T am afraid we are going to have to run for a vote.
The vote 1s in progress =0 we will have to vecess for about 5 minutes.

AFTER RECESS

Mr. Kurzman. T think where we broke, yon asked a question about
the 1]lustmt1\o reference to $4.5 ml]hon for the Atomic Fuergy Com-
mission spending to aging in research in fiscal year 1973 and T ‘had just
turned to Dr, T]emmm_«r on that.

Dr. Flemming, do you want to pick up?

Dr. Fumynoxa, The paragraph refers to a section of the report on
the administration’s response to the recommendations of the dele-
cates to the 1971 White Honse Conference on Aging and that is being
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attached as a part of the testimony.® [i does deseribe in some detail
what each one of these agencies is doing or contemiplates doing in fthe
field. With regard to the Atomic Inergy Commiission, it says:

The current research by the Atowice Fuerg: Commission is divected toward
the zoal of obtaiving « betier anderstanding of the effects of radiation on the
body over time, including the velationship to the degenerative provesses responsi-
hle for senescence.

It woes on to describe that in more detail and by saving the pro-
jected level of funding in fiscal voar 1973 for the support of vesearch
on aging at AlC-owned onsite laboratories and offsite contractor
Ineilities is $4.5 nillion. The same kind of information, M. (Chairman,
is provided in connection with each one of the ngeneies deseribed,

Mr, Kerzaran, The Veterans® Adaninisiration ix an iastration
where we spend nearly $15 million for rezeareh for aging in 1974

The nature and extent of the present and possible involvement of
these agencies is set forth in a seetion entitled *\ veport on the ad-
ministration’s continuing response to the reconaendations of the
delegates to the 1971 White Honse Conference on Aging.” aund is at-
tached to this testimony 4 so that, with vour permisgion, it ean hecome
a part of the record of this hearing, '

PresioeNts Prociay OvrLINED

The President’s divective to develop a comprehensive and coordi-
nated research and demonstration program for the field of neing will
have the following results for colleaes and universities:

It will provide them with a clear pictvre ¢ f the Tederal Govern-
nent’s abjectives.

Tt will make clear how eaeh Federal department and ageney lits into
these objectives.

It will identify the sums availalle to the Federal departments and
agencies for research and demonstration programs in aging.

It swill gpell out the procedures to be followed by the eolleges and
universities that have the competency and the desire to participate
in the programs of one or nore of the n'vencies,

As a result, if a college or nniversity receives graunt= for partiei-
pation in one or more of the Federal Governtent™s recoarel progriams,
1t will have the following resnlts in the area of training for work in the
field of aging, ‘

The meuningful involvement of the college or uuiversity in this
aspect of the field of aging—with financial support from the Federal
Government—wil! capture the attention of both undergradnate and
graduate students and will help to attract them to the field of aging.

The budgets on which the grants will he based will provide for com-
pensating faculty members for that portion of their time spent on the
project or projects and will help, therefore. ta attract and retain schol-
ars in the field of gerontology.

The budgets on which the grants will be based will provide for in-
volving and compensating both undergraduate and gradnate studenis
for participation in the projects and will help, therefare, to provide

38ee app. 1, item 3, p. 151,
4 8ee app, 1, item 3, p, 151,
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them with vorthwhile learning experiences and additional financial
resourees.

Senator Crnves, How much are those grants going to be ?

My, Kunzaan. Well, we have tried to give a partial listing here,
Mr. Chairman, in the comment we were reading, it is only partial
because the interagency eroup has not yet actually pinned down all
of these but the ones that are pinned down are there and you see %7
million in fiscal 1974 for AoA pins $11.8 million for NICHD.

Senator Cruwes. Now, yon ave talking about this $4.5 mifiion the
AEC is going to spend ?

Mr. Kurzasran. We are talking about a sum of all of the agencies
listed, all of the participants in this interdepartmentsi effort to pull
together all of the aging related rescarch and demonstration funds
that the excentive branch hasavailable,

Acencies’ Parriciparion QuUESPIONED

Senator Crones, 1e Jooks ke somebody did w lot of research to go
to look at ali of the agencies to find out any area where that celates
to aging, steh as AEC; and now you are using that figure to say:
“Look, we are giving @ number of dollars in grants.” T do not see how
this will benefit training students or how this will henefit universities,
this $£.5 million AERCisgiven?

Mr. Korzyawn, Let me say two things. Clearly, the responsibility of
these other agencies involves an aspect of aging as we have indicated :
the ATLC is concerned with the effcets of radiation, and the effects of
radiation clearly have an important role in the process so this is why
they are conducting this kind of research.

Senator Cuines, This money is ,zoing to be spent. prior to any deci-

2

sion to change the other provisions of the grants; this is something
you reached ont and foum{. but that money will be spent. that vesearch
is going to go on. Nothing, no decision of any changeover Las infln-
enced ATSC to get into this field?

Mr. Kurzaran. I do not think that is quite fair, Mr. Chairman. I
wonld be happy to tinn to Dr. Flemming on this, who is, after all
woing to head this task force. The effort we are attempting to make
here is to see to it that the agencies, when they are working on relevant
aging research, make sure that it is pulled together in a coordinated
way. I do not think that is an irrelevant response at all.

I think it is a key to how we can bring this elemen: of the Federal
Government’s work which is clearly not incurable. It is agaim like
student naids, a whole different order of magnitude when vou add it
up from these nmrow categorical training grants programs we are
proposing to phase out.

Dr. Freasrine, Mr, Chairman, I appreciate your questions on this
because I think this can be a very important development in terms of
the involvement of the educational community in the field of aging.

You have listed here, I think, about 13 departments and agencies of
the Federal Government that have authority and resources for carry-
ing forward research programs in the field of aging. They have been.
hy and large, traveling their own paths as they have used these author-
ities and resources.
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By direction, we will bring them together and we will insist on the
developnient of common objectives. We will insist on the development
of priorities as among those objectives: we will insist on the develop-
ment of action progranss designed to carry ouf those chjectives, We will
insist on decisions and agreements s to the nmounts of money that
each ageney intends to put into these programs. This having been
accomphished. the information on ()l‘)jv(-l‘i\'es.'lyl'iuritios, progrims, and
the ngencies that are participating in the specifie program will he made
available to the educational comimunity.

“Ax Aerern-Urox Overany, Poey”

I will provide one focal point to “vhich the educational conmumity
can turn so that-they will know when they can nimke application for
researeh and demonsty. tion grants and will know that in making those
applications that they are making them consistent with an agreed
upon overall policy.

These research and demonstration project applications will incor-
porate budgets for the operaticn of each one of the projects. Those
budgets can and will include sums of money to pay in part the mem-
bers of the faculty who will be participating in the project and they
can include snms of money to compensate both uudergraduate and
eraduate students. In so doing, they will have the op rortunity of par-
ticipating in a project relating to their educational oljectives and they
will also, of course, be given some assistance in connection with their
own individnal finzncial problems.

When this program is implemented. the colleges and universitios
that want to really become involved in the field of aging will have the
opportunity for applying, not for just one. hut in many instances, for
a number of projects. Consequently, the basis for thenr Federal sun-
port will be much broader in the field of aging than it i typically av
the present time.

I can say, going back to my days as president of the University of
Oregon, if I were presented with this Ikind of opportunity. I would
seize it quickly and eagerly because I would recognize that it was giv-
ing us an opportunity to became deeply involved in th: field of aging
with a broad basis of support from the Federal GGovernment rather
than having to depend on the ups and downs of just one particular
program.

Now. I think this has to he coupled with our discussion on student
aid because there is such o program for people who desire to pursue
work in the field of aging. Students can take advantage of it and T am
confident that they will. Tain also confident that an increasing number
of edueational institutions. if presented with this kind of an oppor-
tunity, will make further commitments to the field of aging and will
attract more and more nndergradnate and graduate students for par-
ticipation in their program.

T{ we pull all of this together and get it focused on'common objec-
tives and common priorities. Further. we will be making the most
intelligent and effective use of the resources that the Congress has ap- .
propriated. I personally feel that this kind of activity is long overdne.
both within the field of aging and in other fields. particularly as we
relate to the eduneational community of this country.
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Senator Cnivres. I think you have painted a very laudable goal and
laudable picture.

CnANNELING oF FuNDs

One concern 1 would have, though, when we are talking about Con-
gress und we are talking about control, I would rather sce the money
channeled by Congress directly spelled out than to have it where it s
going for aging and we label that and we know wiiat we are spending
in the now defined AIC in using $£.5 millior and that is not money
that Congress has spelled out to them to go for aging, for research
or for any of these other agencies and T think that is where the Con-
gress loses control over liow many dollars we are spending and maybe
under this, the dollars will be very great, maybe greater than Congress
wonld have directly appropriated but I do not know where the con-
trols come 1.

Mr. Kvrzacan, Mr, Chairman, if T ma. 7 think the Congress wil)
clearly have an opportunity and a respon..iwility ir passing on the
budeet justification and requests of cach of theoe agencies.

What we are trying to do is to identify funds, as Dr. Flemming hus
indicated in these other agencies and to determine if they are carrying
on logically. They have missions that relate clearly to the concerns
of aging in research and demonstration which has a very substantia}
impact on training.

We think that those agencies’ responsibilities will be focused by the
kind of interagency work that Dr. Flemming is going to head and
the Congress will have an opportanity for the first time to identify
what those agencies are doing related to aging. If Congress legislates
a specialized training program in addition to what these agencies are
doing, we are talking about duplication and very possibly waste. The
way to attack it is through the identification of the aging projects,
objectives, and priorities in all agencies. In this way, we think you will
have control and we will be accountable to the extent of developing
and coordinating common objectives of the aging programs in
agencies.

Senator Gurxey. This is an added new accountability that did not
exist before, is that o trect?

Mr. Korzaan, That is correct.

Senator Gurxey. An attempt to pin down and find out and define all
we are doing in the field of aging and put it under one common com-
mission so people can understand and see what we are doing?

CONGRESSIONAL InrteNT

Mr. Korzarax, Exactly. T think this was part of the intent of Con-
gress 1n creating the Administration on Aging in the first instance. As
you know, there is a great deal of language in the act which suggests
that the Administration on Aging should be doing this. What we are
trying to do is to put teeth into that directivi: of the Congress and, an
important step in this direction is the research and demonstration
areq.

Senator Foxe. Do I wnderstand you, as Commissioner of Aging,
will have this power? Will you be head of the interagency committee ?

20-702—T3—pt. 2 -3
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Dr. Frenmive, First of all, Senator Fong, the amendment to the
Older Asnericans Act places on the Commissioner of Aging responsi-
bility for coordination in the field of aging. In the second phase, the
President. a couple of years ago. established a Cabinct-level Commit -
tee on Aging and the Seeretary of HIEW is the chairuan of that com-
mittee, 'l‘hc%ecretary, with the cor »urrence of the President has indi-
cated that he expects me to set up and chair, as executive chairman,
an interagency group designed to coordinate all of the exeentive
branch’s activities in the field of aging. As Mr. Kurzman’s testimony
indicates, one of my first acts will be fo establish within that group a
task force to coordinate the Federal aging activity in the field of
research.

Senator Foxe. There is no question now, under the aunthority given
you by the act and by what the Secretury of Ilealth, Education,
and Welfare has done, that you have now the power in your office to
bring together all of these varions programs?

Dr. Freaniye. T have no doubt at all about the kind of assignment
that T have been given. I wonld like to say to you and Senator Chiles.
that as this assignment develops, I will be very happy to shave with
the appropriate committees of the Congress our activities—the kind
of identifications that we will make of authorities and responsibilities
on the part of other Federal departments and agencies, and the objec-
tives and priorities we have agreed upon. A complete overview will
lie given to the Congress, and it may lead to the Congress wanting to
make some changes.

My objective is tosce to it that the authorities and the resourees that
we now have are focused on specific objectives in the light of priorities
and that we get the best possible results ont of it for today’s older
people.

Senator Foxe. As a member of the Appropriations Commitice, 1
have been quite concerned by duplication of efforts in all of these agen.
cies. Every time we have a meeting, we find there seems to be a dupli-
¢ation in various fields.

For example, in education of young people. In the matter of young
people, you have dropouts. you have (ﬁz]inquents. vou have people who
aro juvenile criminals. and you have others and every agency seems to
have some phas:s«f this work,

Coorvrzarep Frrorr NECESSARY

The same is true in the Committee on Aging and in the aging ficld,
every agency seems to have some input. We have never had this draw-
ing together of all of the various functions of these various agencies.
The reason is because every committes has jurisdiction over is little
phase of whatever the problem is and everyone wants to delve into that
problem from its ¢wn angle and there has not been any coordinated
effort. T do hope this coordinative effort will give us a true picture of
what we are trying to do and where we are heading because I can see
where, if you do not have a true picture, the universities probably will
not know where they are going. Each university will be thinking along
one line and there may be dup’ication of efforts and there will be a
wasting of money. I can see with the powers in your directorship, yon
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will De able to tell each university what phase of the work on aging
that they will be able to enter. Is that the idea ?

Dr. Fremarng. At least the college or university will know what
th> Government’s objectives are, what our priorities are, what agen-
cies are purticipating ii programs designed to achieve those objectives
and then they can make their decision as to whether or not they want
to Jdevelop proposuls which are consistent with those objectives and
thos« priorities. .

H wiag been on the other side of the table for 10 years, 1 know that

t is difficul® for any one institution to identify all of the departments
and agencies of the Government that are involved in research in aging
or chat are involved in a good many other activities. Certainly looking
ut it from that point of view, I would welcome the Federal Govern-
ment saying : Here is a statement of our objectives, and our priorities;
here is an indication of the agencies that are prepared to participate
in the program designed to carry out the objectives. I would certainly
welcome having one person who could give me guidance and assistance
in trying to work with the various departments and agencies. This is
1hie objective that we have in mind.

Senator Fonag. Now that you have the objective and shown us where
part of the money is, could you tell us when the proposal of the admin-
istration in bringing all of these agencies together will be available
wndd the amount of mouney that they will have dealing with the problem
of aging? Will that amount of money, together with the amount of
money that we have appropriated in the general field of aging, be more
than what we have heretofore appropriated?

Could you give us that?

Dr. Fremmine. Senator, I would rot want to respond offhand to
that question. I think if you give us ' chance over a period of a few
months to pull this together, in the --ay that I have indicated, that
then it would be possible to be respor sive to a question of that kind.

GRANTS To S "UDENTS

Senator Foxc. With the Preside. t's proposal, we would have a
basic opportunity grant to students, ia the field that they choose. With
th:. number of adﬁed students that will be put under this program.
could you say that there will be more-money funneled into tgis phase
of our efforts in aging?

Mr. Kurzman. We can certainly say, Senator Fong, that very sub-
stantial additional moneys are being put into student aid by reason
of the express basic opportunity grants prograwr. As my testimony
indicated, the revision by the Congress in that stra*:gy kept the in-
crease that the President had proposed to approximately half a mil-
lion dollars over the set fiscal 1973 money for genersl student aid.

It changed the mission of programs so that the basic opportunity
grants program will, in this fall, only go into effzct for freshmen, but
it did place funds in the college work study program; the President
had asEed for continuation of that program. It also placed fands in
‘the naticnal direct student loan program and the supplemental op-
portunity grants program, all of which will be available for under-
graduates and graduates ii: the field of aging, as well as in other fields.
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We think that there exists a very substantial inerease in the pro-
portion of our population eligible for prograin benefits. We think
there is enormous interest gencrated by the new services and cash
assistance programs which are now going into eifect. For example.
there is the progran scrvices of title I1I and VII of the Older Amer-
icans Act. There is the new supplemental security income progran
which the Social Security Administration will implement in January
of the coniing year. All of these will combine to generate teriffie inter-
est, we believe, in the lield of aging among undergraduate and grad-
uate students who will have this great infusion of additional Federal
support for their expenses of college and post-graduate training.

Senator Foxg. As members of the Committee on Aging, we do not
want to see the older people shortchanged. We want to sce them get as
inuch as we can provide for them, in line with our fiscal position; and
that is the reason why we want to know how are they coming out
in this new concept.

Mr. Kvrzyan. We understand and sympathize witl: you entirely,
Senator Fong; HEW’s constitrer.cy consists in large part, if not ex-
clusively, of very high level, vulnerable groups within our population :
The poor, aged. children, disabled; and onr interest is congruent with
your committee’s concerns.

IxneQurraste Distminomion

We just feel this very targeted kind of narrow training program
1s drawn up not only in aging but in a series of fields, which is distrib-
uted inequitably Dberanse it is disbursed to a limited number of insti-
tutions. With the resonrces and training programs available, we think
through a combination of student aid, student choices, plus a mwch
better focused coordinating research and demonstration pregram, we
will in fact have a better training picture and a greater invol ement
of institutions of higher education in the field of aging thau we have
actually had before.

Senator Foxa. Dr. Flanning, T know yon were just sworn in the
other day but could you give us an idea of what is the target date
whereby you could give ns some picture of how this coordinating is
working?

Dr. I'Learanxe. Target date?

Senator FFong. Yeos.

Dr. Freaaring. I think that by the time the Congress returns from
the August recess that I will be in a position to share some very spe-
cific information with the committee along this line.

Senator Fong. Fine.

Dr. Fresune. The process will not have been completed by any
means, but th~ reason I set that as a target date is that I know that
unless I achieve that date, I cannot be very helpful to the educational
community as educational institutions work on their budget for the
next fiscal year.

Senator Fone. That is your top priority, though ¢

Dr. Fresemne. That is right. f)nm giving this a very high priority
so that educational institutions will have the informativn available in
September, so that they can begin to file applications and will know
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what is going to happen to those applications in time for them to make
their commitment for their fiscal or academic year, 1975.

Senator Foxe. So you do not need any legislation at all?

Dr. Freatarrxe. I feel the legislation which is in the Older Ameri-
cans Act plus the directive from the President gives me ample author-
ity and opportunity of getting results.

Senator Foxa. If you were ready, could you give something in writ-
ing to the committee so we could have an idea when you are ready ?

Dr. Freamiva. 1 would be very happy to. I will he glad to kee
in touch with the staff of the committee, as ihis process goes forwm'({),
and with the members of the committee. At an appropriate time, I
would be very happy to send a communication indicating our status
and if the committee would like me to come up and discuss it with
them, I would be more than happy to do so.

Mr. Kurzman. I would like to try to conclude quickly on the third
clement, the development of comprehensive service programs.

Finally, institutions of higher learning will be helped in attracting
persons to and preparing them for careers in aging by the policy of
using Federal dollars to encourage the development of comprehensive
and coordinated service and nutrition programs for older persons
newly authorized under 1972 and 1973 amendments to titles ITT and
VII of the Older Americans Act. The 1974 budget request includes
$196 million for these programs as contrasted with $44.5 million avail-
able at the present time.

STRENGTIHEN AND Exranpine PRoGRrAMS

The initiation, st:engthening and expansion of such programs in
many communities will have the following results for colleges and
universities :

It will provide them the opportunity to become involved in State,
area, and community planning for the coordinated delivery of essential
service to older persons.

It will pmvidle them the opportunity to offer courses for older per-
sons as a part of the comprehensive service programs.

It will provide them with the opportunity to offer both short-term
and long-term programs to train or update the trairing of persons
who operate the service programs for older persons. For example,
universities are now assisting 2,500 nutrition project directors in short-
terin training.

If a college or university decides to take advantage of the oppor-
tunities for service to the field of aging provided by the development
of these comprehensive community based service programs for older
persons, it will have the following results in the area of training for
work in the field of aging :

The meaningful involvement of the college or university in these
community based service programs will capture the attention of both
undergraduate and graduate students and will help to attract them
to the field of aging.

Undergraduate and graduate students will have opportunities for
being involved in both the planning and operation of these programs
and, as a result, will lecrn by doing and, at the same time, add to their
financial resources.
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Fees paid for participating in conrses forr older persons and in short-
term and long-term training programs for those who are recruited to
operate the service progran.s for older persons will help to strengthen
the financial base of the institution’s total progran in the field of
cerontology.

OTtirir TRAINING OPPORTUNITIES

To supplement these major training opportunities. colleges and
universities will from time to time have the opportunity to participate
in training programs designed to assist the Ifederal Government in
meeting specific national objectives.

For example, in March 1972, President Nixon announced his in-
tentions to dramatically npgrade the quality of nursing home vare.
In response to this message, the Department of Health, Edunecation,
and Welfare helped to establish a nationwide network of training pro-
arams designed to inerease the knowledge and to improve the skills
of personnel engaged in providing patient care in nursing homes.
Training for 40.000 unrsing home staff members is programed for com-
pletion by July 1974. In addition, university based training for State
nursing home surveyors has been completed for 1,000 surveyors,

Under the Federal Emplovees Training Act. to take another ex-
ample, IFederal agencies ean finance the cost of making it possible for
Federal personnel working in the field of aging tc obtain necessary
specialized training in aging from colleges and universities.

Tn snmumary, this administration believes that the Federal Govern-
ment can help colleges and universities become involved in the field
of aging. and, by so doing, contribute significantly to research and
demonstration programs, the development of coordinated and compre-
hensive service programs for older persons, the training of personnel
engaged in these programs and. by so doing, plays a major role in
responding to manpower demands as they develop in the field of aging.

Senator Cnires. Mr. Kurzman, we have gone long over our time
here, but I have a series of questions, some of which I would like to
submiit to you, and ask you tc answer them for the record, and we are
trying to complete our record within o week or 10 days, so if there is
any way you conld help ns, we would appreciate it.

Mr. Kurzaax. The questions will be answered and submitted for the
hearing record.?

Senator Crres. In a memorandum sent to the Social Rehabilita-
tion Service regional offices in April of 1973,° two major points were
made: (1) New proposals be considered for traineeships, that only
students who are previously enrolled in the program Wou})d be eligible,
and only until June 30 of 1974; and (2). the faculty or institutional
support will be limited to a inaximnm 50-percent snpport of the student
returning to the program.

$2.9 Mirtion Cursack Cimen

I further understand these two phases of activities will produce
a $2.9 million cutback of efforts under the old training act, and these
rajse a number of questions which I woud like to direct to you.

8 See app. 4, item, 1, p. 147,
¢ See app. 1, item 4, p. 176.
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Is the information that the committee has received about these pro-
posals correct ?
| Mr. Kurzaan. I am not familiar, Mr. Chairman, with the particu-

ars.

I would be happy to answer your question in writing on this.

In general, I should point out that the Department’s responsibility
is to alert the agencies of any actions that may well have to be con-
sidered under the budget’s proposal ; so the President’s budget did pro-
pose that this be phased out.

Senator Cruires. This memorandum will not be in effect until next
year, this would not—

Mr. Kurzaax. I think I ought to point out, I meant to do this in
connection with your opening statement, Mr. Chairman, that the train-
in%funds are forward funding.

for the Administration on Aging, this means the funds appropri-
ated for fiscal year 1973 are spent during the school year 1973-74,
starting next September. The result is that under the President’s
budget proposal, there would be a phasing down. it would decrease
$2.9 million from the $8 million which was the 1972 figure. The pro-
posal is to phase it out for the following school year, 1974-75.

I think that is an important point. We are not talking about the
present program. It is not a cutoff that would be effective on June 30
of this year. I am talking of the following school year.

Senator Cmires. That is a reduction that ytu are telling the uni-
versities not to take any additional pupils, that you will not fund
any additional pupils, and that you are only funding a percentage of
the ones thers 0¥5O percent, von have already issned that instruction?

Mr. Korzaan. Dr. Flemming ismore familiar than X am.

Dr. Freyming. You have summarized it corvectly, Mr. Chairman.

To carry out this decision reflected in the President’s budget, it was
necessary for the Social Rehabilitation Service where the Administra-
tion on Aging was located at that time to develop an instruction on
phasing out training programs.

GOVERNMENT STIPENDS CURTAILED

You are dealing with a forward funding situation, as Mr. Kuvzinan
indicated, so they were told that the Federal Government would not.
provide stipends for new studeunts, beginning in the fall of 1973. They
were also told that the institutional support would be related to the
number of students that would still be in the program.

Senator Crires. The Congress has set up this categorical program,
it would seem like the Congress would have something to say to this
matter.

Now, warning institutions that the President’s budget does not fore-
see that funding being available, would certainly secem to be warranted
if the President’s budget did not provide that, but it would seem like
the action of Congress would have something to do with whether this
program would go forward or not.

Dr. Freavine. It is clear that the decision reflected in the Presi-
dent’s budget for 1974 is a decision that is a form of a recommendation
to the Congress. Of course the Congress will make the final determi-
nation of that recommendation, as it appropriates the funds for 1974.
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But. the Department of Health, Education, and Welfare is simply
taking note of the decision reflected in the President’s 1974 budget,
recognizing of course that the Congress might arrive at a different
conclusion.

Senator Cres. Doctor, I am happy to hear you recognize that they
might.

We have not had that recognition around here very mucl.

Dr. Frenmanxe. I recognize that sometimes recommendations made
to the Congressare not accepted by the Congress.

Mr. Kurzaman. Qur direct testunony concedes that point when we
talk abont the student aid mix, we would prefer one more targeted on
students’ needs, which is the President’s basic opportunity grants as
provided for.

The Congress sought to keep a different mix-—to keep some of the
older programs in place. The President accepted that decision of Con-
gress, and we are implemnenting that program.

Senator Crings. If the Congress feels fit to feel there still should he
some kind of special training for the aging, as well as coordination of
all of the other programs. perhaps you can work in that direction?

Mr, Kurzyax. I think that is a hypothetical we will have to answer,
Mr. Chairman, when and if that occasion arises.

Senator Cruwes. 1 mean if that was the legislation that came from
the Congress. .

Mr. Kurzman. Obviously the President has a constitutional role
here too, and we have to await his determination.

Senutor Cmres. Assuming that if the bill became law, the legisla-
tion became law.

Mr., Kurzman. We are following the law now and we would con-
tinue to do so.

Senator Criies. Well, when you are withholding funds, or you ad-
vise the ageneies that you will withhold some $2.9 million. are you
following the law now?

Mr. Korzarax. We believe weare.

Buperr Prorosarn o CoNgRiss

We believe we have an obligation to alert and advise the agencies
that the President’s budget does propose this to the Congress so that
they do not rely on some other expectation.

At this point, that is what the President has propused, and the Con-
eress has not yet acted.

Senator Cyres. The President’s proposal is not law, is it?

Mr. Kurzman. Not at this point, no.

On the other hand, we think we have an obligation to these institu-
tions who have relied on this program, to notify them of the adminis-
tration’s intentions.

Senator Ciures. T would like to have a copy of your memorandum.

I would like to see whether you have notified them that was a
possibility, or you have instructed themn not to take anymore students.

I would like to see a copy of the memorandurn.

Mr. Kurzaax. We will supply that for the record.”

7 8ec apn. 1, ttem 4, p. 156,
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[Two memorandums with respect to the phaseout of direct training
grants were sent to SRS regional Commissioners by the Acting Ad-
minmistrator, Social and Rehabilitation Service. The regional offices
had responsibility for notifying educational institutions of the new
policy. Copies of the memorandums, dated April 16 and May 17 ap-
pear in appendix 1, item 4, page 156.]

Senator Cirrres. Senator Gurney.

. Senator GurnEey. To put it arother way, the activities that are now
In effect in these colleges and universities, also have to be funded by
an act of Congress, is that correct ?

Mr. Korzaman. That is correct.

Senator GurNEY. So Congress has not acted either way, the Presi-
dent in rccommending one course, which will be followed if it goes as
he recommends, but then obviously the colleges and universities will
be really out on a limb, with the limb sawed out from under them, so
,Vlou are warning them not to do this, out of, I think, good advice to
them,

Senator Ciiires. Mr. Kurzman, in addition to what is.already on the
books, in the Older Americans Act, Congress did not appear to be
retreating from the special training program. As I read the amend-
ments to the act, they appeared to be strengthening the program, but
the authorization appears to be strengthened in this title IV, training
section IV, The purpose of this part 1s to improve the quality of the
service to help meet critical shortages of trained personnel in the field
of aging, by: (1) Developing information, and actual needs of per-
sonnel working in the field of aging, (2) to provide a broad range of
quality training and retraining opportunitizs, (3) to atiracting a
greater nunber of qualified persons in the field of aging, and %4)
helping make personnel training programs mere responsive to the
need for training personnel in the field of aging. ) )

It would appear that the Congress is speaking of strengthening this
program rather than retreating from it.

Mr. Kurzarax. As I indicated, Mr. Chairman, wany of these activi-
ties are exactly the activities we propose to continue and strengthen.

The one subsection of that which deals with stipends to institu-
tions, we are proposing to the Congress not to fund beyond the next
school year.

SarriNGg oF SurpPorT

Under the forward funding, it is funded to the extent of sorne $3.5
million for the next school year. We are proposing to the Congress
not to fund it again. It is our proposal to shift to other sources of sup-
port, principally student aid, dernonstration, and service pregrams.

Senator Cres. The administration’s proposal in the area of general
noncategorical student aid, as I understand your administration’s pol-
icy in regard to institutional support, it is that these grants are going
to take care of the institutional support of all of these other agencies?

Mr. I{urzaan. We are saying. Senator, that we think the combina-
tion of three sources of funds will be better than this narrow specific
institutional form of aid. '

The first isthe greatly increased general student aid, the second is the
coordinated research and development funds, much of which goes

20-~702—73-~—pt. 2—4
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for training, and the third is the linkages of universities and colleges
with the coordinated comprehensive service programs.

Senator CriLes. A short time ago, the committee sent out a ques-
tionnaire to educational institutions as to a programn of gerontology,
and the overwhelming response in our survey can be summed up as
follows: Their training programs are to be seriously curtailed and
terminated, and then agam. 1s it your feeling, doctor, these other pro-
grams are going to take care of that ?

Dr. Fresing. Mr. Chairman, as most of the institutions know, I am
certainly prepared with the assisiance of my colleagues to work with
them on an institution-by-insitution basis.

Where the institution is clearly committed to the field of aging, I am
woing to, with the assistance of my associates, do everything I can
to see to it that they get the Lind of Federal support in these other areas,
which will enable them to continue their present programs but hope-
fully, to strergthen them. :

Now, I men*ioned a number of times institutions that are committed
to the field of aging. There are quite a number that have made very
clear commitments, concurred in by the governing body, the president
of the institution, and the faculty. It is those institutions that we really
want to work with in order to strengthen their position in the light of
their commitment, and I think we can do thai.

I think we can h:ve a successful experience.

Senator Crires. One of the major interrelations of the Older Amner-
icans Comprehensivc Services Amendments was a provision for multi-
disciplinary centers of gerontoiogy which would support a compre-
hensive program of research and training.

Funpine Nor RreQuested

Since this wathorization and legislation was not enacted into law,
and President Nixon supported and submitted his fiscal budget last
Jannary, no funding was requested for this.

Now that the Older Americans Comprehensive Service Amendments
hiave becomne law, I am interested in knowing whether the administra-
tion will support funding for this program.

Dr. Fremmine. Mr. Chairman, I am about to begin the process of
determining the kind of recommendations that are going to be made
to the Departiment for the fiscal year 1975 budget. And the Department
of course, will be making determinations as to what to recommend
to the President.

This is one of the areas to which I will address myself. ]

You can see that some of tha things that I have said about coordinat-
ing research and demonstratior: programs, and the impact of that
on educational institutions is rather closely related to the title to which
you have referred. I certainly recognize that the Congress has provided
this authorization; it did not, however, authorize any specific sums;
it simply provided that such sums as necessury be authorized. I cer-
tainly will be making some recommendations about this title, as T will
on all of the other titles, in connection with the fiscal year 1975 budget.
"That process is just beginning, and I have not hid the opportunity to
becoine involved in it as yet.
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Senator Cuives. Section 402(a) of the Older Americans Compre-
hensive Service Amendments p10v1ded the Commission shall from
time to time appraise the Nation’s insisting on future personnel needs
in the field of aging. In view of this duectl\e Dr. Fleming, how do
you plan to implement this provision, and how frequently do you
rhlnk the periodic survey should be made?

. Freson~e. First of all, T recognize that this responsibility has
becn phccd on me by the law ‘and I celt‘unly intend to present a pro-
gram for carrying out that responsibility. I have not had the oppor-
tumt} for suflicient discussion on this issuc with the staff of the Ad-
ministration on Aging. In response specifically to your question, I will
be happy to answer it in a month or so, after I have had an opportu-
nity to study it.

Senator CriLes. Thank you.

Senator Gurney ¢

Senator GurNey. Mr. Secretary and Dr. Flemming, I have a num-
ber of questions I want {o pose, but they involve sums of money that go
mto these programs, and 1 think probably require a little research in
your own shop to prodnce them, so I will submit them in writing.

It is my understanding of this whole area of aging, that cach year
we put more resources, more money into it, and doing # much better
job all along, at least as fur as money is concerned, and I want to draw
out these facts so it will appear in the record, becauss we have had
some rifle shots here and there, that perhaps some sacred cow is not
being milked at a particular university, and I think we should be more
interested in the overall programs, and my questions will be written
and directed to you. and I wish you would supply them for the record.

Mr. Kurzmax. We will be happy to answer any questions you may
have and supply them for the record.®

SirorraGcr oF TrAINED PERSONNEL

Senator Criies. Just fer vur record, so it is clear, is it not so that we
do not have trained personnel in this field, that we are grossly short of
trained personnel*

Dr. Fremarivg. The testimony indicated that we certainly recognize
the need for additional personne!. There is no doubt about that.

Senator CmiLes. And there will be a continuing and accelerating
need for personnel in the future, of trained personnel ¢

Dr. Fresmixe. Mr. Kurzinan has given you a couple of specific
Nlustrations.

There are personnel demands in connection with the SSI program,
under ILR. 1; and in addition to that, the fact that the President’s
budget calls for close to $200 million for titles III and VII of the
Older ‘mericans Act as contrasted with prior budgets, means that
additional trained personnel will be generated.

Mr. Korzuman. I should point out too, that in connection with this
supplemental security income progrftm which beconies effective Janu-
ary 1, 1974, it would add some 3 million new recipients to the rolls of
the aged, blmd and disabled—recipients of Federal assistance. The
Socm% Securlty Administration has already hired some 8,000 em-

"See app. 1, item 2, p. 149,
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ployees—approximately half of the total they will require to adminis-
ter this program on a national basis—and has already begun extensive
training programs of its own for those new employees. As we have
mentioned in connection with title IIT and title VII of the Older
Americans Act, we have begun to train approximately 2,500 nutrition
directors. So that we are aiready very actively engaged under other
anthorities and with other moneys with training to meet the demand.

Senator Crmres, As I understand it, under the last year’s budget, we
spent some $8 million, or we appropristed $8 million for the training
program, categorical programs?

Mr. Korzataw. That is covrect.

Senutor Cnires. And aside from the decision that we are going to
get avway from categorical programs, we are going to the student fund-
g, was there any stndy that showed that this program, was that a
failure ?

Mr, Konzayrax. No. Mr. Chairman,

I think the ground upon which we proposed to phase ont this half
doren or so narrow categorical prograins of direct institutional aid.
was not hased on the position that they have failed.

Clearly if you give institutions money and say they can attract
students hy reason of offering bait by coming in with a stipend, it is
going to work, there is no question about it.

Tt tends to select a relatively small number of institutions and at-
tract students into a small number of fields,

When yvou add these categorical or training programs together, it
is a patchwork that does not accurately reflect. in our view, either
studeni desires, nor does it accurately reflect the other side of the de-
mand picture—the kinds of needs that are evident in the communities.

Senator CimrLes. Part of that would relate to the number of dollars
vou are putting into the program, about $8million? )

Mr. Kurzaan. No. it is just the type of distribution whicl. seems
to us to not be very well adapted to matching the manpower needs with
the manpower availability.

Senator Cmives. T vou were having some T0-something percent of
people going into that, and specializing, that sounds like a pretty
high percentage to me.

Mr. Kourzaraw. Senator Gurney pointed out that about a quarter of
those students lacked the coinmitment to continue, and we think under
a student aid, research. and demonstration, plus the service approach,
that perhaps we will attract 100 percent who will enter the field after
training.

That is a better cost henefit ratio than 75-25,

Sr.aator Crires. As a dream it is, but is it the reality that you can
count on. I wonder if you know of any other programs that you are
getting that kind of mix, 100 percent ?

" Mr. Kurzaean. Well, I have nothing specific to go on, except clearly
where a student picks a field of interest, it is his choice, and not hecause
Le has heen attracted to a specific stipend, but ratier he has been given
financial assistance, which means that he can enter any field, in any
university or college, with a sense of commitment.
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Senator Crures. Do you know what percentage of students that go
to law school end up being lawyers?

Mr. Kuorzyaxn. Lawyers now do many things including testifying
before Congress.

Senator Corces. I would say it would not be 77 percent.
. Mr. Kurzman. With changes in the legal profession, and the ways
m which lawyers are used, probably legal training is used much more.

DirrereNt Scroors oF Tuoveirr

Dr. Freamng. Mr. Chairman, in this subject of student aid, there
are two schools of thought within the educational world, as well as
outside of it. As Mr. Kurzman has pointed out, the Presicent, through
his budget, decided to align himself with one school of thought, which
does give the individual student the maximum opportunity of free-
dom for making his own decision relative to his career, and his de-
cision will not be unduly influenced, because of the fact that the
{financial inducements in one area are more attractive than they are
in another.

Now, both sides of this are debatable. As one who has been in the
field of educational administration, I personally favor a policy which
gives the individual student maximum freedom in making his decision.

Senator Cuives. I think that we have always offered some induce-
ments when we felt it was necessary to attract people into something
that was a new program, or something that perLaps had had the
publicity, and we are always trying to do something extra to try to
provide doctors in the rural community.

They have their free choice, they can all go in if they want to, but
we are always trying to induce them to go in, and it seems to me that
this was a new enough program, that we need some inducement to
attract people to it, as opposed to opening up more funds with which
they can go into any of the regular disciplines or professions, and now
it 1s going to be much more available to go into those, I just wondered
what we are going to get.

Dr. FreainG. I have developed enough insight in the field of aging
over the period of the past 2 years, and I brlieve that those who are
responsible for developing and implementing programs in the field of
aging, colleges and wniversities, will be able to comipete successfully for
some of the very best undergraduate and graduate students.

"Time alone will tell whether or not that is correct.

Senator Crtmwes. I hope you are correct, and I think it does appear,
once they get the progra 1 to start working. they become very caught
up in it.

Our testimony has revealed that. I think the figures of 77 percent
reveal that. I think that is very, very high for any kind of discipline.
T think that is very, very high, and it shows that they stay and get
caught vp with it, but T think the figures show that, and I hope you
are right. i .

Senator Gurney. Perhap: other way of getting at it would be
this, in the increased money. you are putting into the overall pro-
gram of gerontology, as compared to what we have done in previous
years and just last year, do you think any of your money will go want-
g, begging, or unspernt ?
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Mr. Korzuman. No; we do not anticipate that.
Senator GurNEY. 1 would doubt it.

Mavcrmine Manpower To NEEDS

Mr. Korzman. We are talking about the kind of mechanisms that
really best matches available potential manpower to the manpower
needs; and what I think the President’s proposal is doing, is saying
that the market mechanism is the best way to do that.

One bit of evidence we do have, where the Federal Government did
get into a specialized training program for the training of teachers——
1t created an oversupply. We do not know very accurately—we do not
have that kind of capability in a country of this size—when a specific
inducement like a narrow categorical program for a specific field ought
to be turned off. We found that the program was not turned off in time,
and we have created a considerable waste of teachers who are trained,
but cannot find employment.

flenator CorNEY. Did not we also do that in the fields of science and
technology ¢

Mr. Kurzman. You are exactly right, sir.

Senator Gur~ry. We overinvested ¢

Mr. Kurzman. That is correct.

Again, we are targeted on a specific type of training, and did not
permit the market mechanism to operate.

Senator Cries. I just noticed from the recommendations on the
White House Conference on Aging, one of the specific recommenda-
tions was to especially induce training, traineeships, scholarships, tui-
tion grants, and loans, that they should be used to recruit personnel,
particularly those in minority groups into careeis for the aged.

Dr. FremMing. We must keep in mind that aging has not been
singled out here in the President’s 1974 budget.

It is a part of a broad policy decision that affects quite & number of
areas. As you can see, our thrust now is to take the : *sources and
authorities that are available and handle them in such & way as to
strengthen t}.e resources available to the educational community in the
field of aging. That in turn will attract both undergradust: and grad-
uate students who in turn will devote their lives to the fieid of aging.

Senator Crimres. I certainly agree with you, doctor, that aging, train-
ing was not singled out, I think it was kind of caught in the decision
that was changing the other categorical approaches.

1 would like to submit & couple of questions, if I may that could be
answered for the record, to Dy, Tibbitts.?

AoA Training GraxTs

Under title IV, part C of the new Older Americans Act, the Admin-
istration on Aging may make grants to institutions and organizations
for the purpose of establishing or supporting multidisciplinary centers
of gerontology.

‘What is the relation of these proposed centers with overall training,
and how will the overall training be affected ¢

9 See app. 1, item 5, p. 188, for reply of Dr. Clark Tibbitts, Zirector, manpower develop-
ment, Administration on Aging, Office of Human Development, HEW.
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And to Dr. LaVeek, the Scnate Committee on Aging did not receive,
as it usually does, a report describing activities related to aging at the
National Institute on Child and Human Developinent.

I would like such a report from NICHD for this hearing record, and
I would like to have it within the next week.°

Also for the record, if you could deseribe the level of support in the
fir ) year 1974 budget with that of the fiscal year 1973 budget in
regard to training related to agin%

Dr. LaVecg. That portion of the President’s hudget to be spent on
aging research by NICHD is:

__________________________________________ $5, 771, 000

Intramural researcbh_____ - 3, 452, 000
Research eontraets . _______ 600, 000
Epidemiologicil research _ 95, 000

Total ... e e 9, 918, 000

In addition the fiscal year 1974 budget contains $630,000 for research
management and $1,290,000 for training for vesearch.

The total NICHD budget concerned with aging is thus $11,838,000
for fiscal year 1974,

The research on aging conducted and supported by NICHD is con-
cerned with medical, biological, and behavioral aspects of aging as they
relate to health.

Senator Cnices. I want to thank all of you fur appearing, and for
your testimony this morning. '

Mr. Kurzyan., Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Senator CHiLes. Because we are running a little pressed for time, |
think if we could have Dr. Maddox, who is accompanied by Professor
Cohen, if they would come on up, and then maybe Dr. Donahue, if vou
could come to the table, we would make it a panel.

We will accept your prepared statements in full, and perhaps if you
could summarize them for us in your testimony, we can then get into a
panel diseussion more quickly.

STATEMENT OF GEORGE MADDOX, Ph. D, DIRECTOR, DUKE UNI-
VERSITY CENTER FOR THE STUDY OF AGING AND HUMAN
DEVELOPMENT, AND CHAIRMAN OF THE EDUCATION COMMIT-
TEE OF THE GERONTOLOGICAL SOCIETY

Dr. Mavvox. 1 would like to emphasize two points, especially in the

light of the testimony just preceding us. I call your attention to iny

repared statement, where T describe the position taken by the White
House conference on Aging on research and training.

The people attending the White House Conference were deliberately,
not only academic people, but chosen to represent broadly those in-
terested in the aging.

The previous testimony indicated there were two points of view in
regard to research and training in aging, and the White House Con-
ference came down unanimously for categorical support of these
activities.

There were knowledgeable people that looked at the situation, and
they recommended categorizal support. The post conference board had

18 Gee app. 1, item 6, n. 160,
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before it the specific proposals from the administration you heard pre-
sented_this morning. These administration proposals were reviewed
carefully in the light of their experience and reasonable projections
about future needs. The post-conference board recommended against
these particular proposals.

Aging has eome a long way. I do not suggest it is a totallv un-
interesting area, but it hasa long way to go to become competitive with
other carcers. There are very speeial problems in working in the
field of aging.

GeriaTrics Arrracts Few DPrivsicians

Our society, for example. Las not done all it can for the aging. I am
particularly aware of this after a deeade of working in a medical
center at a university. Geriatric medicine attracts very few physicians.

This is also true for nursing, for clinical psychology, and to some
extent social work. T do not see the inducements for large numbers of
students to develop carcers in aging. More than money will certainly
be required to develop and maintain manpower for serviee, training,
and research,

My second comment. and with this I will conclude my presentation.
concerns the importance of gerontology centers as the context for de-
veloping and maintaining manpower in the field of aging.

[ we are in fact to depend inereasingly on market forces to attract
manpower under the administration proposals, it. is extremely impor-
tant that we have attractive programns to present.

We are not assured of that at the present time sinee appropriations
have apparently not been requested to implement the development of
gerontology centers provided for in the amendments to the Older
Americans Act.

I was not reassured by the testimony that perhaps in 1975 there
might be some support for these centers which I believe would be
crucial now,

Senator Ciines. Thank you. Your prepared statement will be made
part of the hearing record.

I’REPARED STATEMENT oF GrorGe L. 2Mapvox, PPu. D.

Mr. Chairman, I am George L. Maddos, director of the Center for the Study
of Aging and Human Development, Duke University. Today I appear as chair-
man of the education cominittee of the Gerontological Society.

Fur over a dccade, I have heen actively involved in research and teaching on
problems of the aging and have served in an advisory capacity to NIMII, NICEHD,
and the Administration on Aging for a decade. I was an author of the techmical
background paper on rescarch and demonstration for the 1971 White House
Conference on Aging and chairman of the committee on research angd training for
the post-conference hoard.

The Gerontological Society, and I personally, vigorously support increased
Federal appropriations for rescarch and training in the interest of-improving
the quality of life of elderly persons. The prospect that Federal support for
training and research in aging will decline or, at best, will remain constant
disturbs all informed persons. The prospect is disturbing because it comes at a
time when the number of ol@er persons in our society is increasing at an unprece-
dented rate and increasing faster than any other age group in our population,
The elderly now constitute 10 parcent of our population—a percentage which
bas doubled since the turr ol the century. Population projections indicate that
the proportion of the elderly may be as high as 16 percent within the next 50
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years. Tha special needs for a wide range of health and social services among
the aged is well documented.

As 2 Nation we have received convincing evidence that our current sociad
services and institutional arrangements for the elderly are inadequate or, at best,
barely adequate, and often appear to be both ineffective and ineflicient. A sizable
minority of the elderly live in poverty; many of them are at high risk for ex-
tensive medical eare and for spending their last years in special care facilities
of dubious quality. Many lack adequate transportation and housing and are at
high risk for losing vital contiict with the social world around them.

Our intention as a Nation. and the announced intention of the Administration,
ix that our elderly citizens must be assured an adequate quality of life. We
concur. But the representatives to the 1971 White House Conference on Aging—
which included the vest informed laymen and professionals in the United States—
argued persuasively that our national objectives for the elderly will not be
achieved without increased investment in research and training in gerontology.
Improved organization and delivery of services to the elderly are predicated on
adequate information and on trained manpower.

Representatives to the White House Conference on Aging noted that, until
very reeently, research and training in aging have suffered from neglect. Con-
sequently, trained manpower for research and training in aging is quite limited
and the number of academic institutions ecommitted to producing this manpower
remains small.

We need to be frank about the manpower situation in aging. Working with
the aged, in spite of its societal importance, is not glamorous and does not appeal
to mnny when they are considering alternative carcers. This is why the educa-
tion eomnittee of the Gerontological Society hax attacked so vigorously the
administration's application of its principle of “no categorical training” to re-
search and training in aging.

The administration, using as its illustration biomedical research and training,
argues that goals for planned expansion in specialized manpower have been
reached and that law of supply and demand will now suffice to produce needed
manpower, This argument is generalized to training in aging. Both the White
Ilouse Conference vn Aging pnst-conference board and the education comimittee
of the Gerontological Society are on record as rejecting the applicability of this
conclusion to the field of aging. The facts indicate the contrary. The detailed
statement from the Gerontological Society is submitted for the record.”

We understand and accept the ieed for fiscal responsibility. But we argue
that our estimates of iinmediate and long-range need for trained manpower in
aging indicate the need for an increased, not a decreased, investment at this
time. Efficient, effective services for the elderly will nc. be insured by reduction
of support for research and traming. The contrary is true. Adequate appropria-
tions, particularly for training, must be insured for both NICHD and AoA.

Based on a decade of service as a study section member in the NIH and on
continuing discussions with knowledgeable colleagues regarding the fiscal needs
of the adult developmnent branch of NICHD, 1 estimate that NICHD could
sapend responsibly at least $16 million in research and training in fiscal 1974.
This is $4.3 million more than currently requested. My detailed estimates are
as follows:

Adult Development Branch, NICHD

(in millions)
Agency Minimum
request needed

1964 1974
Research . _________ - ———— $6.0 %9.0
Contracts .__ i ——————— ———e 0.6 1.6
Training _.._ e e —— e o e o o e e 1.6 2.0
Intramural - _______ — 3.6 3.6

11.8 16.1

As a related matter, I call your attention to the research and training titles of
the receutly passed amendinents to the Older Americans Act. The administration
has not requested an appropriation for training. Responsible estimates of mini-
muin hudgetary needs for the Administration on Aging to carry forward its

"' See p. 180.
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program of research and training in the interest of improved services for the
clderly in tiscal 1974 are:

Administration on Aging Research and Demonstration and Training Needs
Fiscal 1074

Milliyn

Training ---< . - $8
Research and demonstration e ————— Q
Regional gerontology centers A ——— 12
20

In this presentation I have not made a distihetion between the need for re-
search and the need for training, Both are important and each develops best in
the presence of the other. Both research and training develop most adequately
when they are coordinated in the interest of seeuring nwore accurate information
about and more effcctive services for the elderly. Support for gerontological
centers is well documented jn tbhe proceedings of the 1971 White louse Con-
ference on Aging.

Mr. Chairman, I <tress the jmportance of gerontological centers beeause train-
ing at its bhest ix condueted in a context in which researell and evalnetion of
applied knowledze are integrally related activitios, Adequate training for service
personnel in the field of aging cannot he adequately =ustained in the long run
without centers. of excellence which provide the context in which the producers
and consunter: of knowledge about aging and programs for the aging interact
continually,

Currently there are only a few gerontological centers in the United States.
These centers have of necessity been heavily dependent on Federai support.
Eventually, a new balance of State and Federal support may be, perhaps should
be, achieved. But it is imperative that in the short run this adjustment in
sources of support should be carefully planned and executed in order to insure
adequate flow of trained manpower into social service and health programs for
elderly. Sustained Federal investment in gerontological training over the next
2 years ig essential at a minimum. After that, careful review will be necessary
to insure that a new balance of sources of financial support is in fact achieved.

In a period of transition' I am also concerned about coordination of activities
between NICHD (adult development) and AoA. Coordination of Federal re-
search and training activities in aging has always been 1ninimal. In the past
decade, some understandings have emerged, e.z., NICHID has emphasized basic
(vis a vis applied) research and research training in contrast to AoA’s empha-
sis on nonmedical and applied programs. I emphasized that these were emphases,
not exclusive preoccupations, achieved informally. In a time of transition, sev-
eral issues require explicit attention:

First, research and training in gerontology needs additional visibility in
the scientific community as well as additional Snancial support. The need for
additional information ahnut and trained personnel to complement needed service
programs for the elderly is very easy to overlook. Our national commitment to
respond to these needs should he clearly established in the National Institutes of
Health either by a National Institute on Aging or a Center for Aging within
NICHD. I would add that ‘ne creatfon of a Center on Aging with NIMH is also
long overdue.

Second, as funds are reduced, I observe a tendency to pit hiomedical against
behavior/socinl science research and training in aging. Bill H.R. 7724, e.g..
illustrates the general tendency to stress the needs of hiomedical research and
training at the expense of other types of research and training. I a:n a supporter
of hiomedical researeh nnd training. But I argne emphatically that the needs for
behavioral and social <cientiflc research In aging is, @ fortiori, as groat as the
need for biomedical rescearch. Thus, I am argning not against hiomedieal re-
search and training but for a sense of halance in the funding of these activities
in the future. ¥or the elderly particularly, problems tend to have a social and
psychological as well ag a -shysienl component.

Third, there i8 a related concern about the evaluation of research and training
in aging at the Federal leve.. The current emphasis on action programs and
coordination of Federal activities in aging is well placed. But I hope that these
emphares on action and coordination will not he viewed as antithetical to out-
side review of proposals for research and training. The review procedure of
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NICHD should be retained anag the review proceaure of AoA should use outside
review far more than it does eurrently. Moreover, the effects of regional de-
centralization of AoA on the review of research and training programs should
e reviewed carefully. Unless per:ons adequately trained in gerontology staff
regional offices of AoA, decentralization will turn out to be diffusion of
responsibility.

Fourth, careful attention should be given to the coordination of research and
training activities of NICHD and AoA in the next several years. The investment
of AoA in gerontological research and training is now greater than that of the
adnlt developionent branch of NICIID. IExplicit understandings about program
objeetives are needed.

We think the evidence is compelling. Research and training, which support
adequately the growing need for elderly persons for efficient and effective serv-
ices, must receive additional support, 10t less. Attention must be given to appro-
priate eoordination of effort to insure efficient use of scarce resources.

Decrensed support for training will dimiunish considerably our capacity to
insure our elderly citizens access to the understanding and services they need
and deserve.

Senator Crires. Professor Cohen. weleome to our hearing.

STATEMENT OF ELIAS COHEN, ASSISTANT PROFESSOR OF SOCIAL
ADMINISTRATION. DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY MEDICINE,
UNIVERSITY OF PENNSYLVANIA MEDICAL SCHOOL AND CHAIR-
MAN OF THE SOCIAL RESEARCH, PLANNING, AND PRACTICE
SECTION OF THE GERONTOLOGICAL SOCIETY

Professor Canex. T would like to make just a few points.

First, there have been surveys of personnel and manpower shortages
over the years. '

Five years ago the Gerontological Society undertook a survey for
NICHD, and in 1971, your committee did have before it a working
papeir which detailed considerably some of the particnlar shortages.

Now, I was not glad to note, but T did note, that there are shortages
of personnel. Having been an administrator at the State level in the
field of aging, for some 12 years prior to my going into the university
setting, I can assure you that anytime we can find people who come
out of the gerontology programs, we find that we get a better result.

This takes me to i..v second point: In the last couple of years, the
(Congress and the administration have set into motion programs that
are voing to generate tremendous demand for service on behalf of the
elderly.

These programs include supplementary security income and the
Older Americans At amendments, The improvements in - income
which will go to older people are going to generate increased demand.
Older Americans will become more mobile; they will have greater
access to services outside of their homes. This is going to require, in my
opinion, a greater set of resources for delivering services which older
people will demand.

The third point T want to make goes to the question of applying a
“free market” philosophy to edneational programs.

The remarks concerning the inequities bronght about because a few
institntions =1 less than 100 pereent of i he institutions have grants for
conters of gerontology or programs in gervontolagv. snggest a philos-
ophy of equality for all. However. it does not recognize the need for
support for curriculnm development. comrse development, interschool
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coordination, and other uspects that go to the provision of courses in
nging. Wher: yon get right down to it. any program in aging at a uni-
varsity or institution of higher learning means courses. Courses have
to be developed; and they have to be developed by soinebody, and that
development has to take place in something other than in spare time.

The allusion that Dr. Maddex made to medical schools and schools
of nursing, is perhaps one of the be-t examples possible.

Very Frw Sprcral Procraws

There are very, very few medical schools, schools of nursing, schools
of allied health. which do have special programs of gerontology.
And yet we know that 35 to 40 percent of the hospital beds are occu-
pied by older people: and 98 percent of the long-term care beds in
this country are being occupied by older people. To suggest that we
are going to let the ordinary market mechanisms tryv to nfluence the
long-term care needs for persennel does not recognize reality.

Fourth, I would like to suggest that the use of subsidies is time-hon-
ored in our country.

We use subsidies to induce a great deal of activity and behavior, and
there is nothing wrong with the use of subsidies for special programs
in gerontology to move our society in that direction.

My fifth and final point is that it is good business to make an invest-
ment, in training personnel.

No industry wortl its salt could go into a new enterprise without
trying to be somewhat certain that there were training programs to
provide necessary personnel. If necessary, they will go forward and
subsidize themn as industries have done through grants to universities,
endowments, and <o on.

The administration, T think. has made a contribution over the past
few years by pressing s an advoeate for management by objective.
T think that is entirely appropriate. In that context, research, demon-
stration, and training in particular, ought to be viewed as an invest-
ment, designed to insure preduction of services that are accountable,
cost efficient, of high quality. controllable, and responsive to need.

I think the training would do that. We would certainly recommend
as your committee did. that there should be additional review made
of manpower neceds, some conclusions reached about the estimated
needs over the next 15 years. and a clear, direct strategy proposed that
will assure us of an adequate supply of personnel for the elderly for
1980, 1985, and 1990.

Thank you.

Senator Crirues. Thank you. Professor. yvonr prepaved statement
will also be in the hearing reeord.

PrepAreEd STATEMENT OF Erias S, Conpn

My name is Elias 8. Cohen. I amn appearing before yYou in my capacity as vice
president of the Gerontological Society, chairman of their social research, plan-
ning, and practice section and former chairman of the public policy committee of
the society. Currently I am assistant professor of social administration in the De-
partment of Community Medicine, School of Medicine, University of Pennsylvania,

The Gerontologicil Soclety which I am representing here today is the na-
tional organization of researchers, eduentors. and professionals in the field of

g
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aging. The members of our society comprise ihe expertise on aging in 1he
United States. Most of the new knowledge and information in the field of aging ix
produced by those who belong to our society. Furthermore, most of the
training and cducation in gerontology and aging is conducted by our member-
<hip.

'The society has a long history in the development of education and training
programs in gerontology and has undertaken for the Federal Government and
indeed, for your honorable committec, a variety of surveys and studies nn
triining needs.

Half a decade ago, the society prepared for the National Institute of Child
Health and Human Development a survey of training needs and mechanisms in
gerontology. More recently, in 1971 the society provided for your committee a
working paper on research and training in gerontology, which summarized the
needs, activities, current and future projections of muanpower shortages, and
offered recommendations for achieving appropriate levels of nceded manpower.
Ninee the preparation of that paper some 2 years ago, we have had a White
ITouse Conference on Aging wbich sought to assist the administration and the
Congress in the development of 1 national policy on aging,

Again and again, the White House Conference on Aging sections recommended
expansion of Federal support for training and research. The training section
recommended that a portion of all service resources be earmarked for training.
Three groups recommended creation of a national institute on aging tv further
support aging research and training. The training section called for the cur-
marking by the fnstitute of funds for training. The income section recommended
Federal assumption of responsibility for preparation of adequate supplies of
liealth manpower. Sections dealing with substantive issues recommended that
moreimuterinl on aging be inserted into the curricula of pre- and post-professional
training.

The recommendations of the White House Conference on Aging delegates
brought together from all over the country, comprised not of gelf-seeking self-
serving professionals but, by design, comprised of consumers, elderly people,
and minority groups much more than of professionals, recognized clearly the
importance and the need for a solid cadre of well-trained people to deliver the
badly needed services designed to improve the quality of life for older people.

The Congress and the administration have set into motion a series of programs
that will severely increase the needs for manpower in aging. These programs
are identifiable and important. If they are to achieve their purposes, the services
they contemplate must be delivered by trained competent staf? who will be able to
carry out the policies implicit and explicit in the authorizing legislation and pro-
grams developed under the legislation. The new approaches to service are so-
phisticated and properly enveloped in management systeins designed to produce
accountability to execuiive and legislative branches of government at local,
State, and Federal levels.

Some of the program developments of importance include the following:

(1) Amendments to the Social Sccurity Act providing for supplementary scei-
rity incomne to adults.

(2) Changes in Social Security program operations to provide for counseling
and referral services for Social Security beneficiaries. )

(3) Amendments to the Social Security Act providing for delivery of social
and related scrvices to public assistance recipients.

({4) Amendments to the Older Americans Act providing for significant expan-
sfon of social and related services under title I1I of the new Older Americans Act.

(5) Under the revenue sharing propssals, there are potentials created for
State and local service programs to mert the needs of elderly people. To be sure.
it will be necessary for clderly consti‘uents and those speaking in their behalf
to compete vigorously for funds. One of the elements in the calculus, of neces-
sity 1must be the availability of trained staff to carry out programs that are
selected and to infuse ongoing organiz:tions and social institutions with the
knowledge and importance of dealing with the elderly through their normal
operations.

(8) Significant improvements in Social Security benefit levels now and in the
future will serve to generate demand for service by increasing (..e ability of older
persons to secure and seek service. To the extent that improved income status
moves 2 significant number of people out of the poverty level and into a middle-
class level there will be an enhanced ability to secure transportation to service,
to participate in the social enterprizes of our society, and hence to avail then-
selves of health, socinl, and other services.
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in addition to these new developiments, the inexorable inerease of elderly per-
sons and more particularly the very old will continue to generate demand on
the one hand for increased numbers hut more particularly for hetter trained
personnel. Higher levels of soeial cflieiency c¢an only be ohtained by higher
levels of performance and design of hetter systems. Better systems design and
higher level performance are direct functions of well-trained personnel.

The need for a coordinated system of training derives from three principat
vonsiderations :

(1) An increased significant demand for services brought ahout as a result of
enactments by the Congress, approved by the administration.

(2) Increased numbers of persons cligible for and requiring services designed
to improve the quality of their lives. This inclndes that entire array of services
designed to assist people achieve maximum levels of functioning outside of insti-
tufional settings as long as such arrapgements are, indeed, the treatment of
chioiee for them.

(3) Inereasing sophistication and interdigitation of nmmltivariate programs
which require coordination among biologists, physiciang, psyehologists, sociolo-
gixts, political scientists, publie administrators. nurses, social workers, therapists.
wnd others. Qur experience with Medicare, with nursing home progras, and with
old age assistance shiould have taught us by now that to achieve high social pur-
pose for and with the elderly requires sophisticated, well thought out, well-
planned, and well-operated programs.

The report prepared for your honorable committee by the soeiety in 1971 de-
tailed a variety of surveys outlining shortages of personnel. Without rehearsing
that entire report, let me review come data that is now old gund. if anything.
represents an understatement of the problem :

(1) The 1969 report of the Secretary of HEW iudicated that the need for
trained workers in 1980 is expected to be at a level two to three times above that
of 1068, There were in 1963 about a third of a million professional and technieal
workers employed in serving older persons exclusively or primarily. Only 10 to 20
percent of them had any formal training in aging.

(2) The demand for personuel in nursing homes and personal cire homes was
detailed in terms of need for administrators, RN’s, LI’N's, and occupational
therapists, and physical therapists, Conservatively, we have only one-half of the
necessary RN's, and less than one-half of the necessury LPN's. The need for
physical and occupational therapists is so great that to suggest we have even
10 percent of the needed number is conservative.

(3) A study conducted by the National Assoeintion of Housing and Redevelop-
ment officials cited in the working paper predicted & need for 32,0600 to 43.000
niinggement and social service personnel in retirement housing for the elderly by
1980. This is an increitse of from six to eight times the number employed in 1968
but is regarded as realistie considering the expansion of programs for clderly
housing in public and private sectors.

(4) HEW projections for professional soeial work staff available to serve
persons in nursing homes, service programs, housSing projeets, senior eitizens
centers and elsewhere indieate a demnand for 1980 at least twice that of 1968.

(6) The National Reercation and Park Association estimates that staff posi-
tions in programs for older persons will be at least 23 percent higher and possibly
250 pereent higher in 1980 than in 1967.

One could go on and on reciting the needs for specialists in the soeial insuranee
programs, in new HMO's, certainly in medicine, and in research and teaching
itself, Indeed, if we are tc eonquer the scourges of eancer, heart disease, mental
impairment among the eldcrly, and the wultiple problemns brought on by poverty
and poor housing, we must have an adequate supply »f those skilled in the tech-
niques of well focused research and a supply of teachers available to train the
praetitioners.

It is respeetfully suggested that, as your working paper indicated, there is
a great nced for a national polley and a program of estimating personnel needs
and training requirements in aging. It is respectfully suggested that the following
principles might serve as a base for a national poliey on training in aging:

(1) The way to develop improved serviees to the aged is by inereasing the
number of trained personnel relating directly to the population to be served.

(2) Recent developments by the Congress, anticipated results in the areas of
medieal scienee, and the need for coordinating various flelds of knowledge re-
quires an institutionalized approach to edueation and training for aging. The
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corollary of this is that training for aging is oo important to leave to operations
of a free education market philosophy.

(3) The problems and facts of aging should be incorporated in formal wuys
into our secoudary and undergraduate levels of education. This ean be done, it
is suggested, only by providing a cadre of educators trained in gerontology who
can carry this kind of responsibility forward, It will not vecur simply by virtue
of the ineluctable inerease in the elderly and consequent increase in their needs
which theoretically will create a demand that a free market economy will respond
to.

The administration response to the White House Conference on Aging recom-
mendations of the delegates brought together from all over the country is in
some disagreement with the above principles. The administration rc:ponse sug-
wests that institutions of higher learning will benefit more by relianece cn a free-
market approach to development of educational programs. Thus, aging will
compete with all other programs, more or less glamorous for the attentions of
students who will be provided with forms of assistance to purchase their educa-
tion. This, of course, does not take into account the need for support to ‘nstitu-
tions for course development, organization of curricula for degree vprograms,
interschool eoordination, or administration of special training program: designed
to create the pool of nuanpower pecessary to carry out socially agreed spon and
tinanced programs.

A second part of the administration response is that provision of central eo-
ordination for Federal Government programs of research in aging will assist
institutions of higher learning by focusing upon agreed upon objectives and
ullocating resovrces in accordance with such a strategy. While that is true, it
must be recognized that this will have an impact on t.niring and education
lurgely to the extent of giving research experience to people in appropriate pro-
grams where research might be involved. However, there are large numbers of
and a great demand for practitioners of service programs. An improved focus
on research will have little impact on increasing the resources of educational
programs to produce the serviee presonnel.

Finaliy, the administration response suggests that encouraging the develop-
ment of eomprehensive and eoordinated service programs for older persons at
the eomnnnity level will sissist institutions of bigher education. While it is true
that universities and institucions of higher learning will be assisted to take
greater part in plamming aud development of service programs and will thereby
expose students and faculty to the process and involve them to a greater degree
in what somme people cull the real world that is not going "o provide the basic
support necessary to produce the graduates who are going to do the work and
who are needed in lurge numbers,

Those of us eoncerned with education and training and who cone to thit tield
from an experience in Government and administration recognize that resources
to invest in programs we are interested in are limited and must compete. We
must accept the faet that dollars invested in any program umst produce the hest
payoff. The current administration has niade i contribution in that regard by
taking a hard line and pressing forward as a strong adveeate for management by
abjective, In that context. resedarch, demonstration, and training must be viewed
ax investments designed to assure the production of serviees that are accountal.ie,
cost eflicient, of high quality, controllable. and responsive to need. We would
respectfully suggest thut the finaneing of Medicare and Medicaid prograius, sup-
plententary security income programs, Older Americians Act service programs,
nutrition programs, honsing programs, and others tlat impuet on the elderly
muet. he delivered hy skilled, trained professionals and paraprofessionals if
they are to achieve a degree of effectiveness that the Congress and the aduinis-
trstion has a right to expect, Furtiiermore, if we are to evaluate what we are
doing, if we are to make an imp.et on the major killers and disablers of the
olderly. if we are to evaluate the effectiveness of programs for the aging, we ra-
spectfully suggest that there must he programs and individuals available to train
and edneate those who will carry out the research. who will undertake the eval-
nation, and who will deliver the service.

Finally, we would like to suggest that no industry worth its salt would em-
hark on the major directions and enterprises that we have in the field of aging
without projecting personnel needs over a period of time and attempting to
tuke steps to assure that personnel would be available, Again. we recommend a

SN B
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review be made of the previous manpower aeed assessmelntts, conelusions reuached
about the estimated munpower needs for the next 15 years, and a clear. direct,
purposive, measur -hle strategy be developed and funded to assurc that the
elderly of 1980, 1985, and 1990 will be adequately served.

[Enclosurel

Wuy FEDERAIL SUPPORT FOR TRAINING IN GERoNTOLOGY SIoULD BE CONTINTED

BY THE EDUCATION COMMITTEE, GERONTOGLOGY SOCIETY

The education committee of the Gerontological Society meeting at the offices
of the society in Washington, D.C., on February 23, 1973, adopted the following
statement :

At the outset we need to distinguish between a statement of principle regard-
ing continned Federal support for training and the specific application of that
principle. For example, the current administration is said to have announced:
“No further support of training programs.”

A specific application of this principle to hiomedical research training appear-
ing in a HEW document argues, for example, that this particular type of train-
ing should be discontinued. for thie following reasons:

(1) The justification for biomedical research training in the first instance
was that a planned expansion of biomedical rescarch in the two previous decades
required expansion of trained manpower. Correspondingly, as the period of ex-
pansion of research activities has come to an end, the research training pro-
grams tied to this activity shonid come to an end.

(2) It follows that the law of supply and demand shionld regulate the number
of persons with advanced training in biomedical rescarch in the future.

(3) This is a reasonable assumption since income expectations for biomedical
research investigators are such that special financial incentives are unuecessary.

Now look at the general principle again. It asserts that special support of
training must be specificallv justified and its applieation to biomedical research
leads to the conclusion that further research training in biomedical disciplines
is unwarranted.

If one analyzed the case for training in geroatnlogy in the same way, would
the conclusion be the sume ?

Decidedly not. No authoritative manpower study has demonstrated that teie
number of persons e¢ngaged in gerontolos:cal resear:zh, training, and service is
adeqiate, On the contrary, experienced observers are unanimous In argming that
manpower in gerontological research, manpower for teaching gerontology at
every level in higher education, and trained service personnel in programs
serving the zlderly are in very short supply. These observers expect this shortage
t: continue in the absence of systematic, vigorous intervention.

This is the unequivocal conclusion reported in the technleal background papers
for the 1971 White House Corference on Aging and in the final report and
rcivmmendatons of that conference. For example, on page 97, volume IT, of
the final report of the White House Conferer-», the major theme of the sec-
tion on training is captured in this pastage: “The dclegates to the section on
training were well aware that if the policies and programs being proposed Ly
other conference sections were to be implemented, there sould be need for
the immediate recruitment and training of new personnel at all levcls * * *
and 2 significant increzse in the number of institutions offering training.”

This conclusion was reviewed by very knowledgeable and experienced people
in Government, higher education, and service in the post-conference review of
recommendations. Administration spokesmen have never publicly contested the
nced for additional manpow.r in gerontology or argued publicly that continued
investment in gerontological treining is unwarranted.

Gerontology has never experienced a period of substained, substantial, sys-
tematie Federal support such as that experienced b7 biomedical research and
related training. On the contrary, the 1971 White House Conference documents
demonstrate that support of gerontological research and trainiug has been
fragmented, shallow and underdeveloped. Thus, the conference - ecommendations
unequivocally called for increased Federal support for a variety of training pro-
grams in gerontology. When the post-conference board requested & response
from the administration to these recommendatioas, the recorded response in
December 1972, indicates that the adminiatration planned to increase its support
for both research and training In gerontology suhs tantially,
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Membes s 0t the equeation eommittee of tlie Gerontological Society continue
to assert categorieally that research wmuanpower in gerontology is inadeguaie:
thot the cadre of trained eachers at all ievels of higher educuanion is imade-
quaitely small; and that the mnuber of trained service personncel to meet demon-

CNtratong needs of elderly eitizens is inadequate,

Given the unchallenged testimony on training needs recorded in the recown-
mendations of the 1971 White House Conference, we I'eel thac the burden of
proui lies on those who assert that continued special investment in gerontologicil
training is not needed,

Consider further the case against training in biomedieal reseirch training as i
might apply to gerontology. The Law of supply and demand is expeeted to work
in the lirst instanee because biomedical researelr activities are an established
and integral activity in a large number of educetional and indusirial organizi-
tiohs, Furtiier, the prestige and econowmie incentives for careers in biomedical
reseitreh wre matters of common knowledge.

We assert that no informed person would argue that this characterization
of biomedical research activity can be-appropriately applied to gerontology.

When one considers that gerontology as an identiliable area ol substantiul
research, training, and service activity is hardly two deeades old, the strides
lforwurd have been cousiderable. But the tasks remain enormous and, i1. relation
to the task, manpower is demonstrably inadequate, Gerontology has increasingly
estublished itself in a small number of prestigeful institutions, but the effort
required to achieve this goul has been substantial. The eapacity of these beueb-
Lieands to survive without continued external support remains to be demonstrated.
Informed opinion would not lead one to be optimistie. Without external support,
there is a substantiai risk that the interdisciplinary research, training, and service
teams so painstakin y assembled at a few lovations in the United States will
be seriously weakened if not dismantled. In the long run, States inay assume, and
may reasonably be ¢ spected to assume, an inereasing share of the responsibility
for rescarch and training in gerontology. In the short run. a great deal of care
needs to be given to the achievement of a new balance of Federal and State sup-
port of training in gerontology if serious disruption is to be avoided.

The fact is that the clderly in this socicty continue to face cultural biases
witich favor the young rather than the old. Institutional barriers which militate
against the social integration of the elderly persist. These same attitudes and
institnironal barriers limit the attractiveness of gerontology as an interest which
comapetes effectively with alternative careers in other areas of research, training
and service.

The argument that the prestige s- d economic incentives which insure an ade-
quate flow of manpower to geror ,logy as well as to biomedieal research does
not apply. Reports at the 1971 White Ilouse Conference make this quite clear.
The burden of proof lies un the person who asserts otherwise.

The above argument does not necessarily lead one to r ect the principle that,
in general. Federal support for research training should be terminated. (ine
would however, want o add that partieular proposals for training in gerontology
require specific justifications and shonld be considered on their merit.

Any person informed about the current state of affairs in social service
agencies, nursing homes, and community mental heualth centers would be incred-
ulons if informed that there is no need for short-term and inservice training
of personnel who work with the elderly. As educators we believe that training
in gerontology makes a difference. We believe thiat training in gerontology has
had an impact on the quality and quantity of rescarch on human aging. We be-
lieve that training in gerontology has made a difference ia the quality and quan-
tity of service available to the clderly. We are not aware that anyone has pub-
licly advanced the argument that these beliefs are unwarranted. We are prepared
to accept a specific challenge to our conclusions. Qur considered opinion is thot
indiseriminate termination of Federal suppori for gerontological training will
have a disastrous effect not only on gerontological research but also on the quality
nf service provided for the elderly in this country. If the small number of train-
ing programs and cadrcs are weakened or dismantled, we are convinced that a
decad of reconstruction will be required to reestablish the potential for im-
proven service to the elderly that has been achieved in the past decade. If this
pessimistic conclusion is unwarranted. the proof that it is unwarranted should
be presented corvincingly. The consequences are too serious to allow assumptions
tn be submitied for evidence.

90.-702—73—pt, 2——f
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Senator Cynnes. Dr. Donahue, we are delighted to have von with
us today.

We continually hear of your pioncering work in this field. and vour
canferences that are held at the University of Michigan.

Weare delighted to have yon appear before us.

STATEMENT OF WILMA DONAHUE, PH. D., DIRECTOR OF SYMPOSIA,
INTERNATIONAL CENTER FOR SOCIAL GERONTOLOGY, INC.

Dr. Doxanuve. Thank yvon very ntueh, Senator Chiles.
I found the morning an emotionally stimnlating one. in part be-
canse T believe that dr. Tlemming’s vision of a coordinated effort on
behalf of old people through some kind of interagency committee is
a very good one. I am also convineed that he has the particular ability
1oqmlod to malke such a plan operational and effective.

Tt seems te e then that not only shonid the plan proposed hy Dr.,
Flemming be initiated at once but thut the title V. (now titie TV. A
and C) tmmmfr program should be kept in place. The A dministration
cn Aging has dovoloped this program systematically to ensure that
in every part of the country there will he a continuing supply of
trained personnel in the high manpower need areas for the next sev-
eral decades.

This program began with the edueation of graduate level students
co that we were producing first the leaders. planners, and supervisors
needed to develop and offer the training. The next step was to provide
nndergradnate training programs in ‘wm(r where it is possible to pre-
pare poople for jobs that do not require more than a bacealanveate
level training for entry into the job market. More recentlv, a grant
was made {o the \mmlc:m Association of Community and Junior Col-
leges with the view to stimulating the initiation of 2-vear training
programs in aging. Tn this ﬁ\ﬁt(‘mntlc way, we have heen cmefnllv
turning out the varions levels of trained personnel as needed.

Over the years, there have gradnally evolved the munltipurpose
training centers which Dr, Maddox and Mr, Colien have deseribed,

Munriroreose TraiNing CENTERs

Maving had the opportunity to direct the institute of gerontology
at the University of Michigan. T feel qualified to say that such eentors
are of tremendons lmp()ltanco Theyv make it possible to give leader-
ship, gnidance, and assistance in the kind of way that the adminis-
tration is now proposing. Actually the very things they are proposing
have alveady been going on. and are part of the programs that ave
now in oper ation in at 1east 10 places.

I would like to make, as a first reccommendation, that the current
student institntional grant program be kept in ])]nce‘ while enconrng-
ing the administration to dev elop its interagency coordinating com-
mittee. T£ the rescarch and demonstration program funds of various
agencies can be ntilized to snpport more students. even thongh it will
he in somewhat different fashion than now. this will be all to the aood,
We shall then have the best of both worlds.

It is very important that the enrollment of new students this fall
not be prohibited. Such a procedure will resnlt in its being a whole year
before a new substitute program ean he devised and put into operation.
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The cutoil of student enrollment for a 12-month period will result in a
sertous hiatus in the training of mueh-needed personnel. I would like
to see every possibility used to maintain at least the levels of student
training we have now,

If 1 othing else, the training programs should be kept in operation
until such time as there are new programs, and we can devise a new
means of attracting students. There are other eiforts which the al-
ministration should make regardless of whieh plan is followed.

In 1967, Senator Kennedy added an amendment to the Hder Awmer-
ican Act Amendients of that vemr which called for a nationwide
survey of the mmanupower needs in the field of aging. On the basis of tie
results of that study, it was strongly recommended that the Adminis-
tration on Aging establish a manpower data center for sssembling, on
a coitinuing basis, data on manpower needs and supply. This 1s =still
an important program and is in line with the plan for establizhing a
central point which will provide information abont all governmental
programsrelated to aging.

It is equally important for the Administration on Aging to set up «
plin to provide job market information.
1t seems to me, it should also muaintain a continuous inventory of all
gerontological training programs oflered thronghont the country, and
that this information should be in such formi that it is inunediately ae-
cessible at any given time, and it should he published periodically.

There are other aspects of training . which the administration
should give consideration. One matter I am especially concerned about
is the substitution of short-term training for the fundamental planned
curricula.

As a last desperats resort, beeause of the tremendous need for man-
power. we are seeing a great many short term training progriams put
mto operation.

Sirorr TeErar Tranize Procnraags

It is very difficult for me to believe that in & to 10 days. sieh newly
recrnited persons can learn the rnles and regulations of the new pro-
grams, that they can learn the skills that the programs require, and,
at the same tine. acquire enough depth of understanding of the proc-
ess of growing old and what it means to people to be old to enable
them to offer the quality of service required by those older people
they will be called upon to serve.

These old people are likely to be among the loneliest, the most. de-
{)x‘ived socially and economically in our population. They should not

rave to depend for help npon persons who have not had the opportu-
nity for more than 5 to 10 days of training to acqnire the information,
skills, and sensitivities they will require to do a good job. This seems to
me a very serious matter. 1 helieve. that while as an expedieney we have
to resort to short-term training programs. they shonld be tailored in
such a way that they constitute a continuing educational program.
Persons who must begin with a brief course should he required to re-
turn regularly for continunation of their training nntil such time as
they have acquired a sufficient amount of backgreund information and
skill.

These are the thingsthat I feel very strongly about.
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Senator Ciirues. Thank you very much, Dr. Donahue. I am going
to have to take about a 10-minute recess. They have started another
vote. However, your complete prepared statement will appear in the
hearing vecord. :

'rErarEd STATEMENT orF Dn. WiLMA IDONAHUE

Senator Chiles, 1 am Wilma Donahue, retired director of the University of
Michigan Institute of Gerontotogy and have just compieted a 3-year assignment
n¢ it staft member for the White House Conference on Aging, I speak, therefore,
lavgely as an educator and as one who has a deep sense of responsibility to the
thonsands of persons who participated at the local, State, and national levels in
fornmlating reconumendations of the White Ilounse Conference on Aging, many of
whith have either direct or jmplicit implications for today’s hearing .on man-
power needs. :

It was Just 6 years ago this month (June 1967) that I appeared before the Sen-
ate Speeinl Committee on Aging to speak about the proposed nmendments to the
Older Anierlean Act of 1965, in particul:tr as they related to manpewer and train-
“ingr ueeds. By that time, the number of older people in the population had been
ineressing at suchh a strikingly ranpid rate that there had been created a new di-
measion in Ameriean life with its attendant demands for new knowledge and
new services. It was obvious that if the country was to grapple successfully with
these new demands, a new field of study—gerontology—must emerge and that
relatively large numbers of students must be attracted to it. The Older Americans
Act of 1965 had provided the needed impetus and the initial means. The question
posed at the hearings on the 1967 amendments was that of how the Congress
and the administration on Aging, working together, could carry out the full
intent of the legislation of training inanpower at the rate necessary to provide
the services that would be required by an ever growing number of clder people.

The history of training in the interventing years illustrates the followup by a
responsible Congress on {ts 1965 legislation and the effective response of the
Administration on Aging manpower division to the opportunity the legislation
provided. Fortunately, the Office of Aging, predecessor to the Administration on
Aging, had long been corcerned with the growing need for trained personnel in
the emerging field of gerontology. The Administration on Aging was, therefore,
prepared quickly to develop and implement a considered strategy for the adminis-
tration of the training funds made available under the 1965 act. .

The strategy called for two thrusts. One was the careful development and
nurturing of the fleld of gerontology as a much needed new profession. The other
wis the establishment of training programs on the basis of a systematically
planned sequence to ensure that a sufficient supply of trained teachers and lead-
ers would Lecome avnilable as required to provide-instruction and supervision as
the fleld expanded. The first awards were, therefore, made available to institu-
tions that were willing to establish programs at the graduate level. By 1966,
two unlversities—Minnesota and Brandeis—were funded. The former prepared
students for careers in public. administration; the latter offered training in re-
search, teaching, and top level administration in applied gerontology. By 1969,
15 graduate programs had been established. The professional areas in which
training was being provided had also increased to include planning and adminis-
tration, management of retirement housing and old age homes, direction of muiti-
purpose senior centers, architectural design, law, recreation, aud cfiars.

During this same period, several institutions extended their curriculur offer-
ing to include a number of disciplines and professions, initiated basic and applied
research, and provided technleal assistance and guidance to State and local com-
munities and orgunizations. Thus they became a prototype for other multidis-
ciplinary gerontological centers. As of now there is at lgast one such center in
each of the 10 Federal regions, all of which have been assisted by the Adminis-
tration on Aging. ) )

When graduate training programs and multidisciplinary gerontology centers
were in place, the Administration on Aging gave dttention to stimulating educa-
tional programs which would prepare students for entry into occupations re-
quiring less than graduate training. Yn 1971, eight undergraduate training pro-
grams were funded, more than half of whicli were in black colleges. There are
many employment opportunities In aging which do not require training at the
bacealaureate level. Accordingly the Administration on Aging made an award a
year ago to the American Association of Community and Junior Colleges to stim-
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ulate the introduction of 2-year programs for training paraprofessional and pre-
professional personnel in aging. Thus training is being brought to the broad
base of the local community where most old people are served and will continue
to be in the future.

If this orderly develnpment of the field of aging and of the involvement of more
and more educational institutions at all levels in the provision of training were
to continue aecording to the pattern followed by the Administration on Aging,
the time wo2ld come when the number of persons trained annually and the num-
ber of needed would be in balance. The question is now whether, witout the in-
centives of institutional grants and student stipends, the needed acceleration in
growth of manpower training in aging and recruitment of students will take
place, or if, indeed, there may not be an actnal decrease in the momentum en-
gendered to date. The 36 training programs now receiving support from the
Older Americans Act are on an average less than 5 years old. They are, thus,
especially vulnerable to erosion and elimination, and particularly so when in
competition with other professional fields. Soecinl work, public health, educa-
tion, medicine and so on have the advantage of a long history, henee they have
the prerogatives and strengths of high seniority.

We must, I helieve, ask ourselves whether this is the time in the development
of gerontological training to withdraw categorical support from educational in-
stitutions and students? They are, of course, some positive factors which will
serve as motivators to both the educational institutioas for continuing the pro-
grams now in operation. The most potent one is the fact that the new programs
(title III—Community Service and title VII-—-Nutrition) are creating many
new employment opportunities, the number of which will continue to . ase
indefinitely, It has been estimated, for example, that these two programs ulone
will require between 900 and 1,000 persons in 1973 and that by 1978 the numher
will have increased to more than 9,000. If educational institnticns and prosnpee-
tive stndents are made aware of the magnitude of this expanding market, it can
be predicted that there will be student demand for training and that educational
institutions will attempt to respond.

Moreover, those institutions with already operational gerontological Dro-
grams are likely to feel other needs for continuing them. They have long-term
commitments to faculty that wiil not be casily terminated. And an even niore
effective pressure is their awareness that the modern educational institntion has
a responsibility for contributing to the solution of today’s social problems, of
which aging is generally recognized as one of the most pressing.

The withdrawal of categorical support is likely ‘o retard the introduction of
training by additional institutions. This will be a serious consequence because
without more training opportunities becoming available, there i8 no chance that
manpower estimated as needed by 1978 can be produced. At that timme there will
be required 2,700 workers in area and state planning, 3,000 nutriijon program
directors, 8,200 retirement housing managers, 88,000 licensed practical nurses to
care for the ill aged, 73,000 registered nurses to staff nursing homes, 25,000
recreational leaders and specialists to work in senior centers and leisure time
prograins, and 2,100 teachers of gerontology in colleges and uni- :rsities.

Alrcady the “make do” measures of short-term training are heing utilized in
a desperate effort to supply manpower to implement the new initiatives set forth
in the 1973 amendinents. One must be concerned with the question of whether
a period of § or 10 days training will prepare potential employces to give the
quality service required for the success of these programs. This is especially a
problem when there are, as now, far too few fuily trained persons available to
supply the careful supervision minimlly trained perz: '8 generally require. Can
even the hest of trainees learn in a £ w days the rules and regulations governing
the new programs, develop the serv ce skills needed, and also acquire in depth
knowledge about the aging procesr so that they may better understand the old
people they serve, many of whomn will be the loneliest and the most socially and
economically deprived of our = _d?

RECOMMERDATIONS

Mr. Chairman, on the basis of what I view ag a manpower shortage of such
proportions as to constitute a serious threat to the older generation of this and
ensuing decades, I am offering the following five recommendations;

(1) First, I urge that this Special Committce on Aging seek to have the train-
ing programs provided for under title IV-A and C of the 1973 Older Americans
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Act. Amendments exeepted from thie new poliey of elimination of categorieal
grants, at least until sueh timme as educational institutions lhiave suflicient time
to seek new support from alternative sources.

(2; At the same time, I urge the Administrations on Aging to take leadership,
in cooperation with other appropriate agencies, in developing a master plan and
strategy for the production of manpower sufficient to properly staff the various
prograus designed to improve the quality of life of older people.

(3) In order to provide training institutions, eniployers, and funding sources
with up-to-date information on gerontological manpower needs in this country,
the Administration on Aging should implement the major recommendations made
ot the basis of the manpower study conducted in 1968 by the Survey and Re-
searel Corp.. to deterniine current and future manpower deiilands in the field of
aging. This study, made in response to Senator Kennedy's 1967 amendment to the
Older Aulericuns Act, proposed the following as its first recommendation :

That AoA establish 2 manpower data center for assembling on a continu-
ing bhasis data on manpower supply, utilization and demz2vd in the field of
aging, The manpower data center should make use of all data resources
available in the Federal agencies, and be empowered to conducet, directly or
by contract, hoth census type and/or sample studies on the procurement
of needed manpower data. Adequate funds and staff should be allocated for
effeetive operation of the manpower data center.

(4) To supplement the job market information, the Administration on Aging
should also maintain a continuous inveutory of all gerontological training pro-
grams offered throughout the country and publish this information periodically
for the guidance of educational institutions and potential trainees.

(R) Finally. in recognition of the faet that thorough training is a time-con-
suming process and that the old peoples’ need for services is iimnmediate, short-
term training is an inescapalde. though partial, solution to tlie problem of man-
power shortage. But even short-term training can be administered as a continu-
ing education:al program until such time as the trainee has fully mastered the
information and skills needed. It is, therefore, reconimended thiat wlien short-
term training is adopted it be reorganized as an emergency measure. and be so
plammed that the trainee will have opportunity to take refresher courses regu-
larly which are planned as an integral part of his or her job placement.

AFTER RECESS

Senator Cinres. Dr. Maddoc, T was also interested in the other
facets of training, that being aflected by the administration’s phasing
out the programs.

In your experience with the training programs of the National In-
stitute of Clnld Health and ITuman Development (NICIID). could
vou estimate for me the value of their programs and their relation-
ships with the Administration on Aging programs?

Dr. Mappox, It is a very different kind of emphasis basically.

The NICIID program had been largely oriented to resemy h. The
Administration »n Aging is much more ortented to serviees or applied
programs.

The NICHD {raining programs are being phased out. At Duke
University, we have had a training program fo: 7 years. We are now
in our terminal vear after producing 43 postdoctoral specialists in
vesearch, training, and service in aging, Virtually all of our trainees
continue to work in the field of aging.

We have seen onr trainces placed in the commmuity health centers,
which has been a very important community resonree, as well as in
training and research.

This NICHD program is in the process of hein,r shased out at the
present time, and it is from such programs that the basic cadre for
research, training, and service is procuced. This ¢adre is vital if, as
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the adungnistration testified today, short-term training in aging is to
be emiphasized thisnext year.

ProviviNe LEADERSHIP

Senator Cones. We have had all through the programs, people
from the Tniversity of South Florida. where they otfer a masters pro-
gram, and like many of their personnel, they are going to be a director
i another State, <o that we really are providing top leadership, and
I amn sure your program is doing the sanie.

Dr. Mapnox. What we are seeing is a phasing out of the programs at
all levels.

In the short run, phasing out a program that is tvaining people is
bad enough from the standpoint of quality service.

Wlhen one starts closing down the producers. one has to ask how
long it will take to reconstruct the current gerontology ceuters if they
are allowed to detertorate.

This 15 the point Dr. Donahue is making: if we let 1 or 2 vears go
by without insuring there is adequate production of producers in
gerontology, T think we are going to be in very serions shape.

Senator CrLes. Dr. Donshue, I seem to gather from your testimony,
vou thought from Dr. Flemming, with his qualifications, that le has
a wonderful opportunity now through the act to coordinate these pro-
grams, by the way of assuring their suecess, and to give him the edge,
to continue the categorical programs on training.

Will this be o very necessary thing?

Dr. Doxanve. Tt seems to me that if we conld keep the current
training program in force, that we weuld have the opportunity to
continue to assist students, to program students in any other way in
which they do not complete their professional training. or if they do
complete it with aheavy debt, T helieve that could change the situation,
not only for the aging. but for a great many training programs, and
that it may have rather far-reaching effects on the netual social strue-
ture of our young people’s lives,

As you know. the majority of the students now. especially at the
gradmate level, and a great many undergraduates, are married, and
our universities have invested large amounts of money in housing
on their campuses for marvied conples.

Tt 1= very difficult to imagine that very many of our students are
going to be able now to have a faily, aud get graduate training and
proceed to be going into debt while doing it.

WoRKING STUDENTS

[ understand that the average stipend that the Administration on
Aging grants have been providing is somewhere between $5,000 and
$6,000 per year, that students can borrew at the rate of $2,500 a year,
in addition to the amount they have had, and they have also had to
work, so if they have been working, and getting a stipend of between
$5,000 and $6,000, one wonders how are they going to be able to work
enough and go to college and accumulate that, and have only $2,500
a year which is available to them.
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It secins to me that this has great ramifications for the total structure
of our universities by moving back into this sort ¢f way which is said
to free the students, which I might argue about some of it too.

Senator Crives. In my experience, again, partial to the Uriversity
of South Florida, I have had an opportunity to talk to a number of
students, most. of them are second career stuclents, through our regis-
tered nurses, or some other training, and they are really on $200 a
month, I do not think they are going to leave a first career, their first
career, and I think part of their value is that they do have this base,
this reservoir of talent, and now by being able to add this special train-
ing for aging on top of that, as they go%mck and into new work with
rehabilitation, and now work in the area, ther they have a real special
expertise, and many of them again with a second career are capable of
training otliers, so we stand to lose that.

The other thing that I was impressed by in your testimony, which
I think all of your testimony brought out, is if this plan is going to
work, if it will attract students, then why don’t we let the plan prove
itselﬁ, and why don’t we have a phase in, phase out, while it is proving
itself.

It looks like, again, what I run into continually, with some of the
administration training changes, whether it be revenue sharing or
what, they say we are going into this other, but there is always this 18
months, 1-year, 2-year slacﬁ, and it looks like we are doing something
with mirrors.

They are not going to provide any dollars, and it is almost like we
will be out of ofitce before the day of reckoning comes, and yet we have
got good verbiage, and we can go back and show what the AEC is
spending, So we can come up with a lot of numbers, as to why this will
work, and we can say we expect 100 percent retention. All of these
things we can say, but we never have to account, and we never have to
prove that we are right, and simply by discontinv ing to fund this pro-
gram for another year or so, they will be able to prove to the Congress
they were right, and what they said will come about.

We want to thank you all for being here, and, Dr. Donalue. 1 am
just. delighted that someone as young and enthusiastic and energetic
as you is working on the problems with all of vs that ave aging.

We will next hear from a panel from Howard University headed
by Brin ITawkins, and accompanied by Ms. Tettie Graves and Ms.
Yyolandn Owens.

We are happy to have you with us today.

STATEMENT OF BRIN HAWKINS, PROFESSOR OF SOCIAL WORK.
AND COORDINATOR OF AGING CURRICULUM AND PROGRAMS,
HOWARD UNIVERSITY, ACCOMPANIED BY LETTIE GRAVES,
GRADUATE STUDENT, DOING FIELD PLACEMENT WORK AT THE
SENIOR NEIGHBORS AND COMPANIONS CLUB; AND YOLANDA
OWENS, GRADUATE STUDENT DOING FIELD PLACEMENT WORK
AT AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF RETIRED PERSONS

Ms. Hawxins. Thank you.

We are very pleased to be here today, too, representing Howard
University, because I think at Howard, the schooi of social work, we
have already begun to feel the crunch of this whole phasecout plan,
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particularly in the area of aging, because we have an aging program
from the National Institutes of Mental Health, and that should have
ended in June of 1973, but we were able to get an extension to Decem-
Ler of 1973, which of course, means we will not have aging moneys to
provide stipends, or grants for the low-income students for our fall
semester.,

I was very concerned to hear the administration’s testimony about
the aging stipends and designated as bait, because I feel that bait in
the field of aging is a very legitimate kind of thing, because although
we have moved very far and come a long way in the field of aging, I
still think we have to go a little bit further, and I fecl the field itself
is not as attractive as many other fields, and I think the stipends, and
the awarding of a scholarship makes it possible for young people par-
ticularly young black people for whom the field of aging 1s very, very
new. to find a commitment. or to find career objectives to which they
otherwise would not have been exposed, and I think it is very impor-
tant that that kind of hait he provided to set the opportunity to do
this, and today we have two students with us, who will very generally
speak about their interests in aging, and the kinds of supports they
have received from the limited financial assistance that was available,
and how important it was.

Senator Crrres. Thank you. We would like to hear from them.

Ms. Graves. Thank you.

My name is Lettie Graves, and I am a second vear graduate student
m the school of social work at Howard, and my area of coneenrration
is aging.

Prrsonarn Exeeriexces Wrrn Frperey

I feel that if it had not been for financial assistance available,
moneys available in aging, I wotld not have been able to pursue my
interests, although I had an interest when T entered IToward. to go
into aging, it.stemmed fromn personal experiences as well as volunteer
experiences that I have had with the elderly, and when I applied to
the school, and I was fortunate cnough to be awarded a grant that car-
ried with it a stipend as well as tuition, I was able to parsue that en-
trance, and it also had a stipulation that the recipient, the learning ex-
perience will be in aging.

Now, with my g:aduating class, the moneys will be terminated, and I
feel that students who will be coming into Ioward, the school of so-
eial worle in the fall, will not have the opportunity that I have had,
and I feel that it is very unfortunate that thev will not, and upon
graduation, I do plan to pursue aging as my career.

Ms. Hawxkrng, T think it would be unfortunate for the students to
lose this stipend.

Ms. Graves has had such a stipend; she is in practicum placement
at the Senior Neighbors and Companions Clnb, and she will tell you
now about her experience.

Ms. Graves. Tam a caxeworker with the Senior Neighbors and Coin-
panions Club. My duties, well, I became involved in a very broad runge
of problems and coneerns of the elderly participants,

I counsel them about. their reiationships, I inform them about serv-
ices and resources which they need, but do not know how to locate or
apply for, and I can make referrals for specific needs, such as old age
assistance, or food stamps or public housing.
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More recently we began to organize group discussions around spe-
cific topics, such as health and consumer education, and we feel that
this information will have the senior citizens providing more help in

maintaining themselves, and an independent but sahsﬁmn and pro-
ductive hvmrr situation for as long as possible will he seen from our
efforts.

Senator Curnrs. Is this self-satisfying work?

Ms. Graves. Tt is very eo]f-xan'%f\m«r work, and it is a lot of fun,
too. They are beautiful peo])le to work \v1t11 and I enjoy it very much.

Ms. ITA\VKI\\ I think T might add that "Lettic has had three pro-
posals already since she has been in the program.

Now we will hear from Miss Yolanda Owens.

Ms. Owexns, T am Yolanda Owens, also a second year student at
Howard University School of Social Work.

I think my interest in aging goes back to my sophomore year in col-
lege, when I went on an exchange from my college in Atlanta to the
Co]]o«re of St. Teresa in Minnesota.

DrrressiNG EXPERINCE

There in conjunction with a class, I visited a nearby nursing home.
We were only supposed to go there once. but I met. several ])eople I
liked, and they seemed to like me, so subsequently during the vear I
had gone back, and read their letters to them that they got from family
and fnends. and I helped them to answer these lottors. and we would
just si¢ and talk. and it was really depressing to me to find out how
thev saw themselves.

hey were placed in a position of heing totally dependent when a
lot of them still had their mental facultics intact. and they could he
‘px -oductive in some kind of way, and at that time, T realized that this

reing a youth-oriented society, we have done this to the elderly people,
so with ‘this, I decided that this would possibly be a career for me, so
T had to decide on one, so T went to Brandeis University last year, and
T was under a training grani: from AoA there.

While there, 1 nftcngeﬁ ¢ae White House Conference on Aging, and
T was also involved in the councl] of elders in Roxbury, Mass as a
worker there in homemaker services division.

There 1 did some of the same kinds of things that Lettic does now,
but when T came to the White Iouse Conference, T re: tlized that there
are not many black people in the field of aging, and that is very im-
portant to get people who are interested in ])0]10\ isses and p].mnm«r
for programs for the elderly. so when T transferred to TToward. T ex-
pressed this interest, Imt T Tound that there was no money available,

They offered me child welfare grant, and T was abont to accept it.
when T told ther of my interoest, : and it was negotiated with the Anwer-
ican Association of Retired Persons for me to be an intern there,

My tuition comes from the school. but T get a stipend from the asso-
ciation for maintenance.

Acmivi: 1N Proenayw

Some of the things I have done at the association are related to
their activities. T have attended a legislative council meeting. evalu-
ated a cassette program which they are thinking of using as tr aining,
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as a training tool for voluntary oflicers, and I have also attended
chapter meetings to see firsthand how elderly people are capable of
organizing programs that they themselves have seen a need for.

Upon graduation, I do definitely plan to seck employment in the
field of aging. ' :

That is what T have tosay.

Senator Cinues. Thank you.

Ms, Hawgins, I would like to emphasize the fact she was offered
a stipend in child welfare, and althongh she had established an inter-
est in the field of aging, she could have lost interest.

I think it is very important to understand a number of young peo-
ple who begin the field of edueation, have not placed themselves m any
specialty, and T think to provide snpport, or sonme resonrces to influence
them or help them understand the kind of satisfactions and rewards
they can find in the field of aging is a very good thing and a very nec-
essary thing to do, beeause 1 think we would have lost her, had we not
heen able to find the money through- AARP, and I am sure the same
thing would have happened with Lettie, and I am really concerned
that this will be a major issue for us in the fall, because we will not
have any aging moneys to provide stndents of any kind of snpport, or
any kind of stipend, and this will, of course, make a difference in terms
of how many students we can involve in the aging programs,

Senator CruLes, Well, we certainly appreciate your testimony, and
we well understand the concern that you have.

It seems to be shared by all of the universities, and from the ques-
tionnaires we sent out, all of the colleges. ' ‘ ;

We are also very happy to have another Howard student, David
Young, who is interning with the Committee on Aging, who is par-
ticipating in this hearing, and we are delighted to have hnm with us.

PREPARED STATEMENT OF LETTIE GRAVES

My name is Lettie Graves. 1 am a second year graduate student in the school
of social work at Howard University, where I am concentrating in aging.

I am very happy to have this opportunity to give some inpnt to this committee
about the importance of making moneys available in the fleld of aging. I am
sure that most of us sre well aware of the fact that young and old alike are not
enamoured by a career in gerontology. It takes a special kind of sensitivity and
a gpecial kind of commitment to work with old people. They are often demand-
ing, cantankerous, and slow. But even when they are sweet and personable, and
very appreciative of your company, many people are still “turned off”” by the
simple infirmities of growing old—wrinkles, toothlessnzss, and the decline of
the senges, We are @ soclety dominnted by youth and as such we fear and desplise
constant reminders that age and death ave inevitable for us all. It is within this
context that we must view the manpower needs in the ficld of aging and the
overwhelming necessity to motivate, encourage, and support young people who
are potentially capable of closing the serions gap between man power needs and
present resources. - E R L - :

I feel very fortunate that I wvas supported in my {nterest in the field of aging.
I came to the school of social work at Howard University with a very firm com-
mitment to working with the elderly bécause of personal experiences with my
own family and some volunteer experiences. When I indicated my area of in-
terest to the admissions committee ns well 'as my very dire financial situation,’
they nwarded me a tuition scholarship and monthiy maintenance stipend, which
was nrovided through an aging grant from NIMH. The yrant stipulates that the
recipient should be provided a'learning experience with a concentration in aging.
I think it 18 very sad and most unfortunate that this grant wiil be terminated
with my graduating class'in December 1973. Incoming 'students for the £all term
will not be provided an opportunity for financial support in the fleld of aging.
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Furthermore, I think it is naive to assume that students with uncommitted
n~areer objectives or newly developing interests in uging will not be swayed into
other more popular flelds where training 1aoneys are available. This is particu-
iarly true for black and other minority students who in most cases cannot pursue
graduate education without assistance. I am sure we have lost some excellent
manpower resources heciuse funds were not available to recruit or support
training. We will continue to lose these resources if funds are not made avail-
able to univerxity programs to support training in agingz,

I have personally felt a great deal of satisfaetion working with old people
in my tield placement. I feel that others would al<o be motivated toward a career
in aging, if they were just provided an opportunity for exposure to the field at a
professional level.

I have Dbeen assigned to the Senior Neighbors and Companions Club—n
Washington Urban League program which serves the senlor residents in the
wodel cities areas. SNAC is designated as a nutrition prograimn which provides
a hot noon meal to seniors who otherwise would probably not ecat as well. But
SNAC is much more than a nutrition program, it is a social welfare program
as well. In my role as a social work intern, I have identified and hecome in-
volved in a very broad range of problems aund eoncerns of the elderly
participants.

I serve in the capacity of a caseworker—Ilocating and encouraging seniors to
participate, who would otherwise sit home alone and make a meal of crackers
and tea. I counsel them about family problems and relationships. I inform
them about services and resources, which they may need but do not know how to
locate or apply for and I make referrials to meet their special needs like old
age assistance, food stamps, public housing, ete.

More recently, I have begun to organize group discussions around specific
topics such as health care and consumer education and such information that
will help the seniors maintain themselves in as independent hut satisfying and
productive living situation for as long as possible.

In conclusion, I can very sincerely state that my experience working with the
elderly has been very ry -~ arding and even fun. When I graduate from the school
of socinl work. I wili very definitely seek employment in the field of aging.

It was my fortune that training funds were available to support my interest
in aging. I consider it a very sad misfortune that training funds will not be
available to interest new students in the field or support those students who
already have an interest in aging when they apply to the school.

Thank you for your attention.

FREPARED STATEMENT OF YOLANDE OWENS

My name is Yolande Owens. I am a second year graduate student in the school
of social work at Howard University, where I am concentrating in aging.

My interest in the field of gerontology began during my sophomore year in col-
lege, when I was exposed to an introductory course in social work. In conjunction
with this course, I visited several elderly persons in a nearby nursing home.

During the course of the year through reading and writing letters to their
families or friends still living and just simply listening to them reminisce about
when they were young an:d productive, my interest in aging developed. After
this experience and through subsequent observations in my own community, I
decided to further pursue my newfound interest. I began to realize that we ag a
society tend to strip the aged person of his dignity as an individual and relegate
him to a pesitien of unwanted dependency.

My interest was stabilized through my year as a student in the Heller School
for Social Welfare, Brandeis University, where I was the recipient of a geron-
tology training grant from the Administration. on Aging.

Upon transfering to Howard University School of Social Work, because no
AoA traiming grants were available, I would have accepted a child welfare
training grant, had not my professor in the field of aging negotiated my partici-
pation in the internship program of the American Association of Retired Persons,
which has enabled me to continue to pursue my interest in aging.

As an intern in AARP activities, I have had many varied expuriences all re-
lating to the planning and administration of programs and services for the
aged of a national nonprofit organization. While at AARP, I have had the oppor-
tunity to be exposed to working with policies and programs that are designed
to make the lives of aged citizens more meaningful and productive.
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More specificaily I huave :

(1) Attended the NRTA-AARP legistutive council meeting where legislative
objectives designed to aid the aged were set forth,

(2) Evaluated the sound maturity cassette program as a training tool to aid
tlie aged in not only identifying areas of coneern, but aiso developing programs
and services tp meat these needs. _

(3) Attend:d chapter meetings to learn first hand of the commitinent und sers-
ice o2 the aged to serve and not be served.

Al of this meaningful and practical trainiug would not have been possible
without {unds provided hy AARD. 1 have serious doubts as to whetLer I would
have waintained my interest in aging had noti this internship program been
avaiuble.

[ have a definite commitment, upon the completion of my studies at the school
of sneial work, to continue to be involved in making life for our aged population
meaningful and satisfying—of helpung them to be more effectively integrated
into the total society.

Senacor Cries. It looks like we have just started another votc, and
I think maybe this is final passage of a bill, so mayb when we et
hacl from this one, we will be able to complete our hearing. Mr. John
I3. Martin is going to be our next and final witness, so I suppose it
would be best to just wait until we get back until T make this vote.

AVTER RECESS

Senator Cnires. Our next witness is the Ilonorable John B. Martin,
consultant, American Association of Retired Persons; former Com-
missioner of Admiunistration on Aging.

My, Martin, weleome to the committee Licaring.

STATEMENT OF HON. JOHN B. MARTIN, CONSULTANT, AMERICAN
ASSOCIATION OF RETIRED PERSONS, FORMER COMMISSIONER
OF ADMINISTRATION ON AGING

Mr. Marrix, Senator, I am John Martin, former U.S. Commis-
sioner on Aging, and T am now consultant with the National Assoeia-
t1on of Retired Persons.

I'am glad today to be here to discuss the subject of training, because
[ think inadequate trajning programs in this field are something we
do not wish to have. It is absolutely essential to have adequate traiming
programs if we are going to meet the future need for trained personnel.

You see this need right now, immediately over the horizon, as these
Irograms expand. I'think it is significant that the growth in popula-
tion has been almost explosive, bringing us from 21 million to 25 mil-
lion older people in 1985, and the fact that the oldest part of our popu-
lation is perhaps the fastest growing part of the population is s very
sienifieant thing.

In fact, we estimate 13,000 people are over 100 vears old in this
comtry today. We condueted a study in the Administrution on Aging
shortly before T became Comimissioner, and that study was made at
the request of Congress which disclosed that thousands of people
would need to be trained for responsible positions in planning and
administering programs under the Older Americans Act. in retirement
housing. to provide direction for the mushroeming multipurpose senior
centers and to develop specialized competencies in adnlt education,
architecture, law library servie °, medicine, nursing. occupational and
hhysical therapy, and social work, and for teaching and research.
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Formal training in gerontology was in its infancy at that time. It
has been only a few years since the first courses were introdrced.

The development lias been slow ; today fewer than 75 institutions of
higher education are turning out perhaps 300 to 400 graduates a year
prepared for work in aging.

Most of these institutions and most of the students trained have been
drawn into the field in response to Federal financial assistance pro-
vided through the Administration on Aging and the Public Health
Service. '

I think we have an unusual situation here, in that many people,
rany young people today do not think about the elderly and the aging
as an area in which they would have any particular interest in invest-
ing time and planning it as a career.

T think it 1s perhaps natural, because they have no contact in our
culture with older people, so that it secins to me entirely in order to
offer some inducement to them through having a program which is
visible, has some visibility in these institutions, and which encourages
them to take a look at gerontology, and gerontological activities as a
possible career.

I have thought about it a good deal, and I think that we will tend to
retard the momentum that we have picked up in this training area if
we now withdraw this support.

I listened with great interest to the testimony from Dr. Flemming,
and I have great confidence in his ability to do what he says he can do,
and I think it is entirely possible in the program that he outlined, he
may be able to stimulate more in the way of interest of young people in
serving the clderly, but I think that there perhaps ought to be a phase
in procedure before a phase out, and that makes good sense.

In other words, that we ought not to drop the present training pro-
gram, which is a good one, and which has produced results, and which
has interested numerous institutions throughout the country in doing
effective work in this field of gerontology.

SMarr INVESTMENT FOR RETURNS

We ought not to phase them out before we are satisfied that our new
procedures are going to prodvce the results that we want them to. It
seems to me that the sums beirg spent on training—from 1969 to 1973
they range from $3 million to $8 million—that represents a very small
investment in a program that has done a good job. I think the sums
are modest, but they have provided for continuing interest and partici-
pation by both institutions and students in this field, and they ought
to be continued at least until we are satisfied that the other approach
is going to keep brmdg;ing new pecple into this field, and going to meet
the accumulated needs.

Senator Ceites. Mr. Martin, when this administrative policy to
phase out training programs under the Social and Rehabilitation Sse,arv-
1ce (SRS) was being drawn up, were you, as the Commissioner of the
Administration on Aging under SRS, ever consulted as to the phase
out’s implications and effect on the area of aging ¢

Mr. Lfa.mv Y. I think the decision was made on a much broader basis
than simply vhe aging picture.
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I was not consulted, but the determination apparently had to do
with the general position with regard to categorical programs.

Senator Curres. I think that is true, and I think it was made on that
basis, but it does not appear thay much study went into how this would
affect aging, how it would be brought into the program.

Mr. MarTiN. I cannot say how muen vent into it. I just simply do
not know the answer to that question.

Senator CurLes. Thank you.

Your statement will be made = part of the record in full, Mr. Martin.

Mr. MagriN. Thanl you.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Martin follows:]

PREPARED STATEMENT OF JOIIN B. MAr~in

Mr. Chairman, I am John B. Martia, former U.S. Commissioner on Aging and
now ccnsultant to the National Retired Teachers Association and the American
Association of Retired Persons. The associations are affiliated, nonprofit organi-
zations having 2 combined membership of over 5 million older Americans. I am
accompanied today by Peter Hughes and by Janet Wegner, mcmbers of our
staff.

I am glad today to be &ble to discuss with this committee the subject of train-
ing in the field of gerontology because I consider an adequate training program
to be absolutely essential if we are to meet the rapidly growing need for trained
-ersonnel in what is essentially a developing fleld—that of service to the elderly.
The older population 65 and over has grown from 3 million in 1900 or 4 percent
of the population to 21 million or i0 percent of the population today. The number
will steadily increase to more than 25 million by 1985. 'The fastest growing part
of our porulation is the oldest. Tt has been estimated that more than 13,000
today are over 100 y2ars of age.

A study of the “‘need for persvnnel and training in the field of aging,” com-
pleted for the Administration on Aging just before I became Commissioner on
Aging ir 1969, revealed that thousands of pecvle would need to be trained for
responsible positions in .ging during the present decade. Desperately needed
were personnel to nlan and adiainister programs being established under the
Older Americans Act, to manage retirement housing for older people and insti-
tutions for the aged, to provide direction for the mushrooming multipurpose
senior centers and to develop speciilized competencies in adalt education, archi-
tecture, law, library service, medicine, nvrsing, occupationnl and physical
therapy, a1 .l social work and for teaching and rese..rch.

Formal training iz gerontology was in its infancy at that time. It has been only
a few years since the first courses were introdueed. The development has been
slow: today fewer than 75 institntions of higher education are turning out per-
haps 30000 graduates 2 year prepared for work in aging. Most of these institu-
tions and most of the students crained have heen drawn into the field in response
to Federnl financial assistance provided through the Administration on Aging
and the Publie Health Service.

In our judgment it is too soon for the ¥Federal Government to withdraw its
support from either the institutions or the students, Gerontology is still a very
new field. Few eduecational administrators are yet ready to invest significant
amwounts of their resources in gevontological training as they do for established
fields such as business and public administration, pharmacy, dentistry, engineer-
ing and research {n the physical and social sciences.

Most young people at the point of making eareer ¢ .cisions have probably never
heard the word ‘‘gerontology.” Most of thcee who are enrolied in the present
training programs were drawn to them by the visibility given to the fleld by the
federally supported training programs and by the traineeships offered to them.
Until the field i® much better established than it is now, we cannot believe that
many inustitutions or many students will move into it without clearly visihle in-
cen‘ives, In our judgment, the new pnlicy of the Government is premature: it
will almost certainly retard the small momentum that has heen developing in
gerontoiogical education.

Later :naturity and old age are unique phases of the life cycle just as are the
periods of infaney, childhood and adolescence. It is well recognized that those
who undertake to creste condit.ons favorable to the growth of children and
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young people must possess intimate knowledge of the biological, psychological,
aud social processes of growth and development, of the needs and problems
characteristic of the early stages of lite and of effective methods of meeting
them,

Simi’arly, the biological, psychological, and soeial processes of growing old
differ narkedly from thuse of maturation. Sonie of the problems and needs of
oldes meople are the same as those in early adulthood and middle age, but they
are li :ely to vary in intensity and may have to be met in new ways. Likewise,
later maturity and old age bring some problems that are rarely, if ever, ex-
periciced in earlier stages of life.

Thus, completion of parental responsibilities and retirement from work alter
the individual's position in the family and community. The older adult is forced
1o seek new ways of commanding the respect and recognition if lie or she is to
maintain a recognized place in society. New sources of conmpanionship must be
found when children leave thie nest, when work associates are no longer at hand
when spouse, relatives and friends preeede in death, Gradual reduction of energy
and tl'e cumulation of chronle illness, constitute threats to wellbeing, foree the
individual to alter lis pattern of activity and demand increased attention to
niaintenance of health. Most aging persons are plagued by reduced income and
threatened by its declining pureliasing power. To all of these and more is added
thie necessity to reeognize the ebb of life and the inevitability of termination.

Thus, as with respect to the young, those who essay to provide environments
compatible with those who are aging and aged musi: have specialized knowledge
and skills if they are to meet, the challenges presen’ad by those with whom they
are concerned. It is essentlal that they be fully atvrree of the impact aging and the
threats and losses assoclated with it have on the personalities and mental liealth
of their subjects.

Another manifestation of the need for trained manpower derives from the in-
creasing number and veriety of specinlized facilities, programs, and services
being created for older people. Among these are retirement housing and com-
munities, honies for older people and long-term medical facilities, multipurpose
senior centers, information and veferral services, adult education, recreation,
transportation, and legal services created especially for the elderly. We are in-
creasingly aware that thes~ must be designed and operated .1: n detailed knowl-
edge of the physieal, psychological and social needs and sensitivities of the peo-
ple they are intended to gevve.

Expericnce has revealed, repeatedly, that special avtention must Le given the
attitudes of those who work with older persons. Professionais, semiprofessionals
and lay volunteers, alike must learn that older people are ctill people jealous of
their independence and dignity. All who serve the older population must be
taught that it is essential to understand the older person and to respect and to
strive for the preservation of the integrity of his personality.

We know all too well that there are widespread tendencies to write off older
people, to patronize them in disregard of their wishes and to favor the young
in the allocation of hospital, rehabilitation and social services. Only last Sun-
day, the Washington Post reported on thie terrifying neglect of the aged in g0-
called family care homes in this city—aged for whose eare the city is paying
thousands of dollars annual’y.

The experience of tue Administration on Aging and of the Public Health Serv-
ice has demonstrated that suitably designed training programs cun chauge at-
titudes as well ag impart the lnowledze and teaeh the skilis required for ef-
feetive and digrified performance in the treatment of the older population

The sums being spent for training in the years from 1969 to 1973 have ranged
from $3 million to $8 million, In relation 1o the vize of the prohlem these sums are
modest. Yot they give assurance of continuing irterest and participatior by hoth
institutions and students in a field which ean have enormous inmaet on eur
elderly and can make the difference between expert and sensitive handling on
the one hand and insensitive dealings with our elderiy on the other. T would
urge that a sound training program in the field of gerontology not he abhandoned
at the very time it is beginning o produce the needed prodnct-—a tratned and
knowledgeable corps of workers in the fleld of gerontolegy.

Senator CarLrs. We will now recess our hearing. and we will keep
the record open for approximately another week for any statements
that may come in to be inserted and made a part of the record.

We thank you all for attending and contributing to this heaving.

[Whercupon, the hearing was adjourned at, 1:20 p.m.]
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Appendix 1

ADDITIONAL MATERIAL FROM THE DEPARTMENT OF
HEALTH, EBUCATICON, AND WELFARE

ITEM 1. QUESTIONS AND REPLIES SUBMITTED SUBSEQUENT TO THE
HEARING; FROM SENATOR CHILES TO MR. KURZMAN*

1. In your testimony you gaid the President's budget provides full funding for
the basic opportunity grants, and I am happy to sec that the adnrinistration has
responded to the wishes of Congress on this count. Howevcer, it 18 clear that there
weill be other claims on these funds, Doconld like o EW estimate on oo the
funds 1will be divided and how much of a share aging {s likely to get.

The allocation of funds under the hasic opportunity grants is not mads hy

. category, but rather the money is available to all students regardless of their

field of endeavor. The only stipulation of eliglbility for these funds Is need for
assistance.

2. Would you plecse compare for the cr.mmit.ce the fund3 now availadle
through AoA 8tipends with the lcvels of suppurt likely to become available
through the basic opportunity grants and possille supplementary sourccs of sup-
port. I woould like this on an individual student basis.

Under the AoA training grant program, degree-oriented students, whether at
the baccalaurea’e, masters, or doctoral level, receive fuil tuition and fee
COVOTAZe,

For a full y ur of study, graduate students are fur 'lier ewntitled to stipend

" support which 1a:ges from $2,400 to $4,700, depending upon the student’s expe-

vience, previous wducational degrees, and year of AoA supported study. Stipend
support for undeigraduate students ranges up to $2,400 annually under the AoA
progrars.

In s~”dition to ailowances for tuition, academic fees, and stipends, graduate
studer..s8 are eligible for depenilency allowances of $600 annually for each de-
pendent. Graduate students are also allowed funds fo. travel to and from fleld
work assignments and professional meetings.

For such expenses as identified nbove, graduate students p. s £ a degree
under an AoA grant have averaged $6,500 to $7,000 a year ! % Federal
support. UIndergraduate students who generally received only partai support of
their academic costs, have averaged $2,000 to $2,500 in unnual support under
AoA grants?

Under the broader programs of student support within the Office of Educa-
tion, undergraduate students are entitled to basic educational opportunity grants
of up to $1,400 a year, depending upon student financial need and level of Federal
funding for the grant program. Undergraduate and graduate students are also
encouraged to pursue loans under the guaranteed student loan and the national
direct student loan programa.

Under the guaranteed student lcan program, undergraduate :nd graduate
students may borrow from private lenders up to $2,500 per year, with such loans
either guarantead by State or private nonprofit agencies or insured by the Fed-

*fee gtatement, n. 112,

1 N¢.: included In these estimates of average student costs is consideration of the indirect
financial benefits derlved by students through AoA support of certain institutional and
instructional costs incurred in the conduct of the training programs.

(147)
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eral Government. Total loans outstunding may not exceed $7,500 for undergradu-
ate or vocational students. For those seeking such loans for graduate study, this
maximum may be extended to $10,000.

The national direct student loan program is an institution based, low-interest
loan program which was first authorized by the National Defense Education Act
of 19:i8. Under its provisions. academic institutions may loan graduate and un-
dergraduate students up ot $2,500 annually, to 8 maximum of $5,000 for nnder-
graduates, and a $10,000 overall limit.

1u addition to other publie and private scholarships and loans, and personitl and
famiy contributions, it might be expectcd that students would supplement their
Federal support with earnings under the college work study program. As cur-
rently administered, this program assists the student by providing a part-time
job opportunity, at wages at least equal to the current minimumn wage, at tae
college itself or with a public or private nonprofit ageney.

8. In your statement you describe amounts available for research on afging
from several Federal agencics during fiscal year 1974. I would like t0 know how
you arrived at those figurcy, and I would like deiails on what kind of research is
to be supported.

These figures were determined by the respective IFederal departments and
agencies in early 1973. in response to a Presidential directive for all agencies
whose pggrams have a major impact on the lives of older persons to provide the
Domestic Couneil Committee on Aging with the amounts they expected to spend
during figscal Year 1973 on their respective programs. it was in compliance with
this Presidentinl directive that the amounts of money available for programs to
serve older persons were identified.

Tre amounts identified should be read in the light of the following considera-
tions: (1) TheY¥ are based on the best measure of involvement in the fleld of
aging for each individual program. These measures include : budget authority, ob-
lizations, outlays, contract commitments, ete. (2) In some cases, they represent
an estimated amount of benefit for the nged where the benefit is only a portion
of the program or activity. (3) They include benefits provided to the elderly
regardless of the reason for providing the benefits. Thus, they are based on a
broader definition than other tahulations which are limited to those benefits
provided primarily because of age of the beneficiaries. (4) They are subject to
adjustments resulting from fine! Zongressional action on the President’s fiscal
year 1973 budget request.

The details on the kind of 1esearch currently being supported with Federal
moneys z2re included in the aitached testhnony taken from the documeni. “A
Report ¢n tke Administration's Response to the Recommendations of the Dele-
gates to the 1971 White House Conference on Aging.”?

J. Also in your statement, you refer geveral times to “budgels.” I would like
additiongl details on how th>ze budgcls are arrived at cnd what their functions
are.

In this context, the budzets referred to ave those of colleges or universities for
research programs in aging. The hope is that such program budgets will provide
for faculty compensation and undergraduaie and graduate student financial
support, in addition to the basie research activities,

Clearly, each college or vniversity that applies for Federal support for research
on aging can make it8 own cholce about whether to include support for faculty
and students in its grant application. However, we do plan to encourage that
such provisions be made.

5a. You also say that 2,500 nutrition 11r9jcct directors are recciving short-
term training. I would like additional details, as this fgure s ems rather high
to me.

Plans for implementation of the nutrition program call fo. establishing 2,468
projects and meal sites during flecal year 1974, Oregon State University has de-
veloped and tested materials for i9-day trainirg for the pers onnel that will set
up and direct these projects. Grants have been made to five ei cational facilities
to train the 2,468 persons who will he required for project imni. 'gement and site
direetion. The materials have heen tested by giving the training to nearly 100
individuals. Training in the five designated institutions will hegin during Au-
gust and Septeniher and will continue throughout fiseat year 1974.

% See app. 1, 1tem 3, p. 151.
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Sb. I would also like to reiterate my request for you to provide the commitlee
with a enpy of the April memorandum directing regional offices in the phasc out
activities for training.

Coples of the memoranda have been sul “tted for the record.’

ge. The multidisciplinary centers of gerontology as described under title IV,
purt C of the Older Amecericans Comprehensive Services Amendments are of par-
ticular interest to me. I should like to be kept informed of the administration’s
action with regards to these centers and as the amendments are now luw, would
Hle to know whether the administration would support funding for their
implementation.

The educational institutions that have established centers or institutes of
verontology and that hive some or major support from the Administration on
Aging are identitied Liter on, The roles they are playing in broviding citreer train-
ing. research, and teehnical assistance are discussed.

It is our expectation that all or most of these centers will take advantige of
the initintives for conducting research with te aid of grants from a numher of
Federal departments and agencies. In addition, we expecet that they will become
more intensively involved than they are now in working with States and com-
munities in developing systers for provision of comprehensive services to older
people, Nine of them have been given GY 1973 awards tor coudueting short-term
training during fiscal year 1974.

Al of these activities shonld help the centers maintain and expand ‘he train-
ing programs they now have, We are also encouraging the State agoneies in
aging to make use of the eenters for eareer and short-term training.

Over the long run, we do expect to give increasing support to the present
centers and to others that will probably be established. The nature of support,
in addition to that described here and elsewhere in our testimony, is under con-
sideration, We shall keep the committee informed s our plans develop.

ITEM 2. QUESTIONS AND REPLIES SUBMITTED SUBSEQUENT TO THE
HEARING; FROM SENATOR GURNEY TO MR. KURZMAN*

(a) I8 it not a fact that woneys are available, other than autherized and ulti-
mately apprepriated amounts for titles I-IX ¢* ‘he Older Amcricans Act of
1965 ag amended and the Older Americans Act Amendments of 19732

Strietly, the ouly funds available to the Administration on Aging for its activ-
ities condueted under tittes I-IX of the Older Americans Act as amended, in-
clvding tihe amendments of 1973, have been and are those appropriated by the
Congress. Under title IV {(now title IV, part B) of the act, in fiscal year 1973
AoA has supported some research and demonstration projects jointly with
other departments aind agencies. The support provided by these departments
and agencies may be said to have increased the moneys “available” to the Admin-
istration on Aging. Conversely, the Administration on Aging has transferred
sums ($250,000) to other agencies when such agencies were designuted as the
“lead agencivs” in supporting research and development projects in aging.

In addition, under the HEW consolidated research and development funding
program whichh pooled the research and development funds of its constituent
agencies AoA provided partiai support for 13 services integration projects in
the amount of 3599,876.

(b) From wha! sources are moncys8 made availatlc to AoA and what arc the
amounts of satd money to the Administration on Aging and where and what and
to whom a8 far as educational institutions and organizations are concerned did
these mor.eys go for fiscal 1978 and from said such funds have commitments been
made to educational organizations and institutions for flscal 1974, this to include
cvaluation and technical assaistance, etc., of such moneyz mentioned in part (a)
of this question.

The funds available to AoA in fiscal year 1973, akove its own appropriation,
derived from the sources mentioned above were: Heulth Services and Mental
Heanlth Administration, PHS, $24,000.

A Gee app. 1, item 4, 156.
*See statement. p. 117,
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None of the funds from JSMHA went to educational institut ons aud
organizations.

Plcase supply the names and amouunts of moncy for rescareh and deveiopment
grants; compctitive contract aicards; or wwcards of any other money on non-
competitive basis for any and all purposes to educational iznsiitutions or 2duca-
tional organizationg having to do dircctly or indirectly 1with AoA of which you
have knowledge, for fiscal year 1973, for fiscal year 1075 and twchere any com-
mitment to any degree has been madc.

The AoA awards made to educational institutions and organizations for re-
=earch and development were as follows.

FiscaL Year 1973

Amount

Institution or organization: o} awrard

1. University of Alabama, Birmingham________ ... _.____ S48, 317

2. Miami University, Oxford, Ohio___________________ . ... 25, 827

8. Wright Institute, Berkeley. Calif____________________________ 59, 1M

4. Massachusetts Institute of Technology o _____ 165, 20¢

5. University of Missonri, Columbia (2 grants) oo oo oo - _. 39, 715

54, 000

093,715

6. University of Virginia, Charlottesville_ ____ . ____. .. ____. 71, 363

7. Rutgers Unive 3ity, New Brunswick, N.J_________________.__. 147, &1

8. University of Southern California, Tos Angleso_____________ 262, 449

Total o _ e meem K79, 955

FiscaL Yearn 1974

Amount

Institution or organization: ot wrard
No awards have been made from fiseal rear 1974 fundso o ______
Most of the projeets supported in fiseal year 1973 will be conducted

Auring fiseal year 100

COMMITMENT

Propects numbered 4, § (1 grant), 6, 7, and 8 have been promised second year
suppe-t, provided funds are available and satisfactory progress is being made.

' all moncy’ to cducational ingtitutions or cducational organizations
re. wed in any way to the aging for technical assistance training for all purposcs,
listing the amounts of the awards, the purpose af caech award, and the designee
of cach award.

On the following page the follewing ednecational institutions and organizations
received fiscal year 1978 awards for training and technical ascistance under the
training grant program of the Administration on Aging.

FISCAL YEAR 1973 TRAINING GRANTS AWARDED UNDER TITLE V (TITLE IV-A, AS REVISED), OLDER AMERICANS ACT

Region  Institution or organization Amount Purpose ! Focus?
| Brandels University_____.___.____..___._ e $196,171 LTT_._.. ... Ph. D.
New England Center for Continuing Education_.__. 130,000 STT......... antional Nutrition
rogram.
t1 Columbia University, Teachers College........... 189,301 LTT.._...__. M.A.,%d. M., Ed. D.
Syracuse University........._.. ... ..o 245,615 LTT......... B.A., M.A.
i STT.. . Statz and Area Planning.
International Center for Social Gerontology, Inc. .. 3,318 STT.. . Professionals in Aging.
! Federal City College ... .. .. . .____.....__. 93,383 LTT.. . B.A,
Community Nutrition Institute 148,887 STT.__...... Na’l)lonal Nutrition
togram,
National Center for Housing Management._..____. 189,241 Curriculum Housing Managers.

development,
ST7.
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FISCAL YEAR 1573 TRAINING GRANTS AWARDED UNDER TITLE V (TITLE 1V-A, AS REVISED),
OLDER AMERICANS ACT—Continued

Region  lastitution or organizatica Amount Purpose ! Focus ?

IV Fisk University. -«oocommeovaaaoaooooiooo 973 LTT . M.A
Albany State College......................__. 16434 LTT________. B.A.
University of South Flori 982 LTT......... M.A.
Duke University. .. oococoeemo .. 126,579 STT..._..... Older Americans Volun-
* teer Program.
V' The University of Michigan-Wayne State University. A77,¥59 LTT.. .. .... M.A., Ph. D.
.. State and Area Planning.
University of Minnesota........._.____..__ ... 50,433 .. M.P.A,
Ball State University.--« . o coooiieoiiiiiiaaaas 28,500 Primary and Secondary
School Teachers.
VI North Texas State University_ ... __.__.__.__ 197,032 LTT...__._.. M.A.
STT ... Natsonal Nutrition
Program.
Bishop College. ... ceemmaeommaamai i aoe. 22,956 LTT.. ....... B.A,
University ot Arkansas........ N 33,274 B.A.
VII University of Nebraska at Omaha 195, 502 B.A,MA,
National Nutrition
. Program.
Kansas City Regional Councilfor Higher Education?. 104, 119 B.A.
VIl Rocky Mauntain Gerontology Centers. __________. 286, 036 B.A.
Older Americans Vol-
unteer Program.
IX University of Arizona. . _._..........._.._..... 103,289 LTT......_.. M.A. .
University of Southern Califomia_._._____._____. 188,333 LTT......... MA. .
... State and Area Planning.
X Oregon Center for Gerontofogy ... _______.___ 204, 041 ... B.A., M.A., Ph,D.
255,027 STT.._...__. National Nutrition
68,805 Curriculum Program.

development.

VLTT=Long-Term Training; STT =Sho:t-Term Training. 5

3 Long-term training is career training in a variety of fields related to aging, generally for a 2-year period. Short-term
training is directed primarily at personnl with responsibility tor implementing new program emphases under the National
Nutrition Act (Public Law 92-208) and the Older Americans Comprehensive Services Amendments of 1973 (Public Law
93-29),and is 5 days ta 3 months in length. .

# Donnelly College, Tarkio College, Benedictine College, Missouri Valley College, and Rockhurst Collepe.

‘"Universi!y of Utah, Brigham Young University, Southern Utah State College, Utah State University, and Weber State
College.

& University of Oregon, Portland State University, and Oregon State University,

List all 1soneys to educalional institutions or educational organizations
profit or nonprofit for evaluations of any and all proyramnsg, listing the specific
amounits qwarded, and to whom they were awarded.

The Administration on Aging made no fiseal year 1973 awards to edueational
institutions or organizations for the purpose of evaluating programs.

ITEM 3. TOWARDS A NEW ATTITUDE ON AGING; ADMINISTRATION’S
RESPONSE TC RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE DELEGATES TO THE 1971
WHITE HOUSE CONFERENCE ON AGING, APRIL 1973; SUBMITTED BY
STEPHEN KURZMAN, ASSISTANT SECRETARY OF LEGISLATION, DE-
PARTMENT OF HEALTRH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE*

TRAINING AND RESEARCH

Administration Response: The administration will provide support for re-
search, demonstration and training in the fleld of aging in a manner that is con-
sistent with the overall policies which it has developed for Federal involvement
in these activities.

In the field of research the administration is committed to a sharpening up of
the Federal Government’s objectives in particular fields and then coordinating
and focusing Federal resources on the ~chievement of these objectives.

The President set forth his convietivas relative to the importance of research
in the fleld of aging in his Message on Aging on March 22, 1072, when he said :

“It is important that the same scientific resources which have heiped more
people iive longer lives now be applied to the challenge of making those lives full
and rewarding for more Americans, Only through a wise investment in research
now, can we be sare that our medical triumphs of the pa: t will not lead to social
tragediex in the future,”

*See statemeont, p. 104.
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“What we need is a4 compreheusive, coordinated rescurch prograin, one which
includes disciplines rauging from biomedical research to traunsportation systems
analysis, from psychology and sociology to management science and ecouomics.”

The Administration will take steps to insure that the Federal departments and
ageucies that have resources available for research in aging work as a team in
order to achieve the cowprehiensive, coordinated program referred to by the
President in his message. The specific steps that will be taken to achieve this
objective will be announced shortly.

There i3 in existence & technical advisory committee on aging research. This
committee, made up of outstanding leaders from outside Government, will mnake
recommendations to the administration directed toward the development of a
meaningful program of research in aging.

The administration believes that the most effective means for the Federal
Governmeunt to advance research in the feld of aging is to tap all of the Federal
Government’s resources and relate them to agreed upon objectives. This process
will result in the involvement of more leaders in more disciplines and the com-
mitment of more resources than would be the case if an institute on research in
aging were to be located in just one of the many departments and agencies in-
volved in research in aging. If an institute should be created therce would be a
natural tendency for other departments and agencies to teel that they had heen
relieved, at leagt partially, from some of their responsibilities. The administra-
tion planx to move in just the opposite direction and take action which will
impress on these agencies the importance of their responsibilities in the area of
aging research,

Soeme of the agencies that will be involved in the development of the ¢ompre-
hensive and coordinated research program called for by the President will be
the following:

The National Institutes of Health. More than $1 billion ig spent annually by
the National Institutes of Health on research involving many diseases which
affect older persons.

The Natioual Institutes of Health is the agency which the Congress of the
“Inited States has charged with the responsibility for research on disease and
aging processes. It has an aunual budget of about $1.9 billion of which over $1
billion goes for research important to older persons.

For example, arteriosclerosis leading to the obstruction of the vessels supply-
ing blood to the heart, brain and legs is particularly important to those over 65
years of age, causing much suffering and more than half of the mortality in that
age group. The National Heart and Lung Institute supports a large research
offort directed at arteriosclerosis.

The second major eause of death in older persons is cancer. The National
Cancer Institute supports n massive program of research on the cause, pre-
vention, and treatment of various types of caneer.

Lvery one of the 10 institutes that make up NIH supports research efforts
that improve our chances of preventing and treating the diseases of older persons.

In order to incrense the effectiveness of the NIH actlivities in this area, the
decision has been made to create a Center for Aging Research within the Na-
tional Institute for Child and Health and Human Development. This center
will coordinate the activities of the Gerontology Research Center, a research
facility for Government scientists conducting aging research. ard the adult
development and aging branch through which funds pass to support non-Goveru-
mental scientists working on aging. The combined total of their exenditnures is
over $12 million per year.

The National Institute of Child Health and Hwnan Development studies the
biologlcal, psychological, and gocial aspects of aging as well as the general medi-
cal aspects of aging. The NICHD is concerned with developmental and deteriora-
tive changes across the entire span of life from conception to death. The re-
search on aging supported by NICHD deals with the general deteriorative proc-
esses which gradually transform a young person into an old one. more tkan with
specifie disease entities. These changes occur in all the systems of the hody and
cause the gradual ioss in functional ability that, while they may be severe. do
not ordinarily have names attached to them as do the speeifiec diseases. They in-
clude changes in endocrine function, immuniological competence, mental fune-
tion, and & host of other deteriorative processes. Study of these changes will
form the new frontier of medicine as the current major causes of death—vascu-
lar digease and cancer—are brought under control,

The National Institute of Mental Health. The institute conducts a wide range
nf research projects on psychological, soclal and emotional aspects of aging.
Examples include:
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(2) Ohjo State University researchers are expioring the social and personal
relationships involved in the decisionmaking when an elderly person or couple
woves into a retirement or nursing home.

(b) Another study, conducted by Boston University, is studying the social
f:llgtors which facilitate paid and unpaid work and second careers for the
elderly.

(¢) The Harvard University Medical School is studying suicide and sunicide
prevention in the clderly. This is a large scale interview study which focuses on
depression, attitudes toward death, suicidal impulses the extent of current life
stresseg, and general morsle,

The National Center for Health Services Research and Development. This
cenler ix engaged in 2 wide range of research concerning older persons. For
example, special research efforts by the center, in conjunction with the National
Center for Health Statistics, and the Community Health Scrvice, will be geared
towards defining quality of care in nursing homes, meaitoring nursing home
utilization, and measuring the effectiveness of alternatirves to institutional care.

The Administration on Aging. Seven million dollars ig slated to be spent in
fiscal 1974 on a wide range of high-impact projeets which promise short-torm
results, The purpose of this activity is to:

(@) Provide a relianble knowledge base for the development and refinement of
National, State, and community programs for older persons :

(b} Demonstrate how this knoewledge can he used effectively by publie and
private agencies; and

(0) Provide linkage of research to practical outcomes.

Current emphasis is on identifying :

(1) Impediments to independent living which result in institutionalization ;

(2} Costs of community care and in-home care in compariscn with the costs
of institutional care for different subgroups within the targot bepulation ;

(3) Structural or institutional changes required to increase the options for
independent living.

During the past several years, emphasis was placed on:

(1) Developing and refining a system to advance research utilization which
assures that relevant research findings are known and used by those responsible
for the delivery of services, planning the methods of service delivery, and policy-
making,

(2) Continuing the development of a system of soeial indicators to assess the
needs and attitudes of the elderly so that States can use the resulting data for
a statewide planning base;

(3) Developing a model for a statewide information und referral system which
links services to clients ;

(4) Studying ways and meaus of improving nutrition <.rvices for the elderly;
and

(5) Examining the extent to which inadequate pubiic transportation or per-
sonal diffieulties lead to reduced mobility and, thereby, the isolation of older
persons,

The Social Security Admzinistration. SSA is condueting hundreds of research
projects which deizl with the well being of older Americans,

(¢) In the income area, these efforis include large scale surveys of the inecome
status of the elderly, the adequacy of earnings replacement and benefits under
private and public employee retirement systems,

(V) In the area of Medicare, severai projects are studying the utilization of
medical facilities by Medicare patients, the benefits of ‘w methods of health
services delivery, the interaction between private health - surance and Medicare
coverage, and the advantages and disadvantages of extending coverage to new
cost areas, such as prescription drugs.

(¢) In addition, the Social Security Administration will mount a national
evaluation of the effect of Supplementary Sectirity Income on the economfic status
and general well-being of the low-income elderly.

The Veterans’ Administration. The hospitals und clinies of the Veterans’
Administration are conducting hundreds of research projects into the aging
procesgses and chronic diseases. Of special concern to older persons are the
agency’s investigations in diabetes and diabetic retinopathy, endocrinology of
the aging, and aging bone metahollsm. During 1972, the Veterans Adminisiration
obligated over $4.6 million for research projects in aging.

Department of Housing and Urban Development. The Department of Housing
and Urban Development in supporting significant research related to the needs of
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older persons, Some illustrations of research underway, or computed in 197
as follows:

(a¢) Operation BREAKTHROUGH is a major research and demounstration
project in the field of housing. In the projeo(, demonstration housing was de-
signed specifieally for older persons under the elderly housing provisions of the
low rent public housing programs located in Mewphis, Kalamazao, and Saera-
mento, The units include experimental safety features such as smoke detectors,
personal  silent alarms, and shower stalls instead of bathtubs. Operation
BREAKTIIROUGH programs also developed innovative site planning and unit
designs which result in more aceessible dwellings and commmunity facilities,

() The bousing allowance experimental programm was begun in 1972 to eval-
uate housing allowances as an alternative to other concepts for housing nssist-
ance, Rent allowances are provided directly to the individual or family to make
up the difference between his rent paying uability (25 percent of income) and
the rent of available housing units. Residents {ind and seleet their own dwell-
ings within certain cost limits,

(c) The public housing management improvement program is a major effort
to demonstrate and evaluate improved methods of operation and management
of publie housing. HUD provides research and technalogy funds to loeal housing
authorities who, together with loeal governmnents, are responsible for the design
and implementation of the approaches taken. In five cities, New Haven and Hart-
ford, Conn., San Juan, Puerto Rico, Greensboro, N.C, and Atlanta, Ga., the pro-
gram contains service components specifically developed to meet the needs of
older residents.

(d) HUD negotiated a contract with the Law Enforcement Assistanee Ad-
ministration Jesigned to investigate the problems of residential security faeed by
older persons.

(e) The Brown Engineering Company Home Accident Study delineated the
cause of hame accidents by age groups and reveals the relationships of certain
home features that have proved dangerous to clderly residents, Findings of
this study will be reflected in the minimum property standards or the manual
of aceeptahle practices now under revision.

(Y Au evaluation of the ¥Fall River, Mass., housing for the handieapped study
was completed in 1972 and the full report will he published by HUD in 1973, The
majority of the residents of this project were elderly as well as handicapped.
Fiudings will provide data that may be used for forestall premature relinnce
on costly anedical institutions rather than continuing in a1 wore normal living
environment,

(g) The Fisk Universitly molility study nrovides data related to reloeation
programs for the clderly, and the effect of mobility on the availability or lack of
publie transportation and on the health. income and service needs of the clderly.
The study. completed in 1972, was conducted in Nashiville, Teun, The results
have particular signifieance for minarity elderly and polieles and programs re-
lated to them.

(2) The housing annuities for the elderly study was conducted some time ago
by Professor Yung Ping Chen of the University of Crlifarnia and is now in the
process of being published. The study wus done among homeowners aged 55 to
75 in T.os Angeles County to measure their attitude toward the idea of convert-
ing thie homeowners’ equity into a flow of monthly income for life.

(1) Forecasting International, working under a HUD econtraet, eompleted a
state-of-the-art study and bibliography on housing for the elderly with speeial
emphasis on the problems of management in such housing.

Department of Transportation. As part of its overall effort to improve trans-
portation for all citizens, the Department of Transportation has condueted and
currently has underway a number of research projects designed to enhance the
mohility of the nation’s older citizens. Examples af this activity are:

(a) A dial-n-ride demonstration project in Haddonfield, N.T. :

(1) Speelal serviee demonstration projects designed to demonstrate innovative
services and equipment to serve the specinl transportation needs of the elderly in
communities in Connecticut. Montana, Florida. Oregon, and Rhode Island.

(¢} An analysis of the transit needs of the elderly in four diverse cifies:

(_f” A TRANSBUS program in which speeial huses are being developed and
designed to ense the aceessibility of bus transit for wheel chair passengers:

(e} Two new state-of-the-art vehicles that accommodate wheel chairs, cur-
renfly heing tested at DOT's test center in Colorado:

2 are
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(f) A preliminary design for a specilication development effort to jnsure diit
new rail rapid trausit passenger carriers will address the problems ol the haudi-
capped and elderly;

tg) Demonstration plauning grant, awarded in Ortando, Fla., which supporis
the design ol a transportation demonstration program aitned at testing innova-
tive transportition serviees for all elderly.

(h) A study sponsored by the Metropotitan Washington Council of Govern-
ments that includes an analysis of transit service for the handicapped and
elderly.

Department of Labor, The Departent of Labor has conducted 1 numnber of
resenrell studies that concern older persons, Several of the Department’s im-
portant age-related studies include:

e A landmark study, Lhe National Lougitudinal Studies of Labor Foree
Behavior” condueted by the Ohio State University has been following a group
of about 5,000 men, 45 to 39, since 1906 through annual surveys condncted by
the Bnreau of the Census, Comprehensive infornution has been collected on em-
ployment and unemployment cxperienee, occupation, income, education aud
training, tamil, background, health, work attitudes, cte., for the primary pur-
pose of explaining labor force expericnce and behavior, particularly the prob-
lets encountered as men uear retirement age.

(b) 'I'me U.N. Burean of Luabor Statistics has conducted periodic surveys of
pension plan doenments tiled with the U.S. Department of Labor nnder the pro-
visions of the Welfare and Pension Pluns Disclosure Act, The BLS reeently
entered into n contract with the Manpower Administration to study pension plan
provisions that may give rise to involuntary retirement. The survey is based on o
sample of approximately 1,600 plans, Data on the number of active employees
covered by tlie relevant provisions of pension plan contraets in 1967 and 1971
are now being analyzed. Findings froot this survey will he published in the
Monthly Labor Review early in 1973, In addition, data from a followup survey
on retired employees’ experiences are expected to he available in 1973.

() A report is currently heing prepared by the Eecouontie Statisties Adminis-
tration (IXSA) based on National Longitudinal Survey data having to do with
invoiuntary retirement. The ESA is planning (1) a study of other Federal agency
survey findings, including the survey of newly entitled beneficiaries aud the re-
tirement history survey by the Social Security Administration, and (2) an em-
ployer survey on involantary retirement to be conducted by the Bureau of Labor
Statistics. )

Aomie Energy Commission, Carrent research by the Atomie Fnergy Commis.
sion is directed toward the goal of obtaining 2 better understanding of effeets ¢f
radiation on the hody over time, ineluding the relationship to the degenerative
processes responsible for senescence. Information of this sort is essential to the
formulation of radintioa protection guides and the estimation of biologieal costs
of nuclear energy activities, Data obtained may alxo eontribute toward the more
effective use of radiation in therapy. Data on the elinical and epidemiological
aspects of aging are valuable, in turn as part of the total body of knowledge
needed to understand the consequence in a man of chironice, low-level radiation
stress, such as may oceur in certain occupational situations, The projected level
of funding in fiscual year 1973 for the support of research on aging at AEC-owned
(onsite) lahoratories and offsite contractor facilities is $4.5 million.

National Seience Foundation. The National Seience Foundation is supporting
research on the societal impacts of a changing age structure in the U.S. poput
iation and on assessing programs and institutions necessary to meet the changing
needs of the aged.

National Aeronauties and Space Administration. This ageney is sccking to
determine ways in which the benefits of their general research can be made
applicable to older Americans.

Three of NASA's “application teams” are werking in the area of medicel
equipment improvements, a subject of vital concern to the elderly. The agency’s
technology has developed several switching devices enabling bed-ridden patients
or paralyzed persous to operate appliances or send signals by using limited
motions such as eye movements. A new plustic foam has been adopted as a
superior padding material for wheel chair cushions or bed pads. A major develop-
ment is a compact mobile electroeardiograph machine which can be attached
to a walking patient. Less expensive home-type tape recorders for transmitting
EKG siznals to hospitals and clinics may in the future help to eliminate costly
hospital visits and enable patients to be treated at home.
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ITEM 4. MEMOPANDUMS FROM ACTING ADMINISTRATOR, SOCIAL AND
REHABILITATION SERVICE, HEW, TO REGIONAL COMMISSIONERS*

MEMORANDUM

DerarrMeENT or HEALTH. EnUcaTION, aNp WELFARL,
SocIsl AND REHABILITATION SERVICE,
QFriceE or Tne ADMINISTRATOR,
April 16, 1978.
To: RIS regional Connuissioners,
Frou : Acting Administrator, Social and Rehabilitation Service.
Nubject: Phaseout of SRR direct training grants.

Thix is 1o confirm discussions with your stafl concerning the SRN policy with
regiird to the phasceout of direct training grants, The SRS poliey is being coordi-
mated with other simitar HEW programs to the extent this is possible. The SRS
policy does not affeet the State and loceal teaining under the public assistance
formula grant programs, In sunnnary, the approved SRS policy is as follows @

1y SRS direct training grants for short-term or long-term training wiil be
phased out in fiscal year 1973 and fiseal year 1974,

12) No new proposals for long-tevin training projects will be considered for
funding.

() Traineeship funds for students will he made available only for students
presently supported and only when there Las been a firmr commnitment for their
next year of training. Student support will end on June 30. 1974 except where
the continuing commitment may involve an academic ealendar cuding August 31,
IHITN

(+}) The phasc-out of faculty support will take place during the acadenie
vear 1973-1974, with a plan for complete termination of support by August 31,
1974. Furthier, faculty support provided for the academic Fear 1973-1974 will he
limited to a maximum of 50 pereent of eurrent activity.

() No rebudgeting will be allowed of funds available to sehools as a resul
of decreases in student or faculty support or in short-terin training grants,

(6) Short-term training is heing terminated except for specifie projeets nee-
essary to implement new legislation for Aging and Nutrition and seleeted Reha-
bilitation projects where commitients have been made or where training is
focused on the development of high priority special skills. Information on the
short-term training phaseout will be forwarded separately.

The attached instructions provide more detailed information on procedures
to be followed in phasing out long term training projects. The Office of Man-
power Development and Training is responsible for coordinating the phase out
plan. Please clear any specific questions concerning management of the grants
with the Division of Project Grants Administration.

. Panrpe J. RUTLEDGE.
[Attachment]

SRS PHASENUT INSTRUCTIONS FOR DIRECT TRAINING GRANTS FoR Fiscal YEAR
) 1973-1974

1. BASIC POLICY OF THAINEESHIP AND FACULTY SUPPORT
A. Traineeships

No new student trainees will be supported. Traineeships will be made avail-
able only for students presently supported and when there has been a firtn eom-
mitment to a specific student for his next yeur of training.

Training support will, therefore, be reduced by approximately 50 percent as
a national policy total, resulting in a proportionate reduction in the allowances
for traineeship support to each region.

If funds allocated to the region for trainveships under any program are not
suflicient to fund all students who are eligible, a request should be made to
Central Office for additional funds.

Funds not required for continuing eligible students may not be rebudgeted by
the Region or the schoo! for any other purpose.

B. Faculty Support ({.e, teaching grants)

Awards for teaching grant support will be limited as a general rule to 50 per-
cent of current funding except where there is only one full-time faculty salary.
In such case, the full salary may be allowed.

*See statement. . 112,
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Teaching grant support. will, therefore, be reduced by approximately 50 percert
as & national policy total, resulting in & proportionate reduction in the allow-
ances for teaching grant support to each region.

Al estimated unobligated bhalance funds from the cnirent grant should e
applied toward the new approved teaching grant award. The total amount of
funds awarded by the region for teaching grants may not b~ increased by more
than 5 pereent above the regional allowanee for teaching grants through the
use of such balance funds. Balance funds which have already been restricted
have been taken into account in projecting regional allowances.

Funds not required for long-term teaching grants may not be rebudgeted by the
region or the school for sny other purpose.

II. FUNDING

Oflicial advices of allowance of fiscal year 1973 funds to the regions for the
award of long-term continunation and renewal direet training grants for aging
and consolidated social work will be sent to you by the budget office within the
next 2 weeks.

At that time the freeze on direct training grant funds will be lifted.

You will also be advised concerning the adjustments to be wade for fiscal year
1973 off-cycle rehabilitation training grants. A final decision on allowances for
rehabilitation training which would normaliy have peen made against 1974
funds s still pending. The advice of allowances will be sent to you as soon as
a decision is reached.

A separation of funds for traineeships and for te:iching grants within the
itllowanece will be provided for each training grant program.

JIIf. I'ROCEDURES

All awards for long-term training grants should be prccessed to allow awards
well in advance of June 30, 1973,

All awards will terminate by August 31, 1974.

For all awards the number and level of traineeships and the number of faculty
supported should be indicated on the notice of grant awarded. This should be
compared with the previous year notice of grant awarded to assure complinnce
with the SRS phaseout policies.

Please inform grantees of the phascout policies as soon as possible either by
use of this memorandum or by other appropriate means.

IV. DELEGATIONS

Authority for award of renewal grants is hereby delegated to the regional
Commissioners,

Only continuation projects, continuing projects of national scope and renewal
projects where long-term trainees presently supported are to be continued wili
be funded. Renewal projects without continuing trainees will not be funded.

Continuing projects of national scope will be awarded from central office.

V. SPUCIFIC INSTRUCTIONS FOR CONEOLIDATED SOCIAL WORK AND REHABILITATION
TRAINING

Oonsolidated social work training. The reglonal allocations for consolidated
social work grant awards will not be élvided between the separate training grant
programs and it will not be necessary for the Region to indicate the source of
funds on the notice of grunt awarded.

RRehabilitation Training. (1) Al projects—except for projects of national
scope—will be processed entirely within regional offices. The original fiscal year
1974 regional allowances for rehabilitation training did not include funds for off-
cycle renewal projects. Those off-cycle renewal projects in which It is expected
that there will be continuing students are included in the revised regional
allowances,

(2) State vocutional rehabilitation agency in-service training grants will
terminate on June 30, 1973. Funds :for the support of this program are not a-
cluded within the reglonal allowauces.

(3 Undergraduate traineeships in the ficld of rehabilitation medicine for the
.ummer of 1973 may be awarded in those cases where commitments to students
have been made. In such cases, grants may not exceed 50 percent of the amount
awarded in fiscal year 1972.
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(4) Renewal projects in which there are no continming trainees are to be ter-
minated at the end of the pre:ent project period. Funds have not been included
in regional allowances for these projects.

(5) Countinnation applications for prejects inn which nonacademic training is
conducted may be supported at a reduced level consistert with the level pro-
vided in other projccts. Support for participants in thesc projects may bhe in-
cluded at a lcvel necessary to ensure an orderly phaseout of Federal support.

[Attachment]
MEMORANDUM

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION. AND WELFARF,
NOCIAT, AND REMNABILITATION SERVICE,
{ OFFICE OF THE ADMINISTRATOR,
. May 17, 1978.
To: Regional Commissioners. SRS.

From: Acting Administrator, Social and Rehabilitation Service.
Subject : Modification to SRS direct training phaseout policies.

The HEW olicy regarding the phaseout of direct training programs states
that fiaculty support will be phased out concurrently and proportionately to the
support of students. To bring the SRS instructions into line with the Depart-
ment poliey, the following addition should be made to item LB. paragraph 1 of
the attachnient to Mr. Rutledge’s memoracdum of April 168, 1073. subjcet *‘Phase-
out of SRS Direct Training Grants:”

“If the number of SRS supported students in the aeademic yvear 1973-197
exceeds 50 percent of such students presently supported. the amount of
fuculty support may be incre sed in proportion to the uumber of such con-
tinuing students in a specific school.”

Any questions regarding this modification xhould be dirceted to the division of
project grunts administration. .
F. D, DEGroRaE.

— .

ITEM 5. STATEMENT OF THE RELATIONSHIP OF TRAINING PERSOXN-
NEL FOR THE FIELD OF AGING TO SECTION 412, PART C, MULTI-
PURPOSE CENTERS OF GERONTOLOGY OF THF OLDER AMERICANS
ACT OF 1965, AS AMENDED BY PUBLIC LAW 93-29

Section 421 of the Older American Comprebensive Service Amendments of
1973 (Public Law 93-29) authorizes the Commissioner on Aging to ‘“make grants
to public and private nonprofit agencies, organizations, and institutions for the
purpose of establishing or supporting multidiseiplinary centers of geromntology.”
The section provides that applicants for such support must agree to pesform
gtipulated funections, Five of these are addressed, in whole or in part, to the train-
ing of personnel. These are as follows:

(A) recrnit and trein personnel at the professional and subprofessional ievels,

(C) provide consultation tv public and voluntary organizations with respect
to the needs of older people and in planning and developing services for them,

() stimulate the incorporation of information on aging into the teaching of
biulogical, hehavioral, and social sciences at colleges or universities,

(G) create opportunities for innovative, multidisciplinary efforts in teaching,
regearch, and demonstration projects with respect to aging.

In addition, the two remaining paragraplhs designate activities closely reluted
to training. The conduet of research (paragraph B) aluiost necessarily ealls for
the involvement of students whose participation would resalt in extending their
knowledge of agiig. The repositories of information called for in paragraph D
would be essential clements of training environments, Thus, it ix clear that the
centers envisioned under scetion 421, Public Taw 9329, would Dlay mejor roles
fn formal preparation of personnei for the field and in informal education
through ce- -vitation and guidance,

The experience of the training grant program of the Administration on Aging
is conviacing in affording evidence that the functions set forth in seetion 421
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ire feasible and usetul. The Administration on Aging is providing finaneial sup-
port to 14 educational institutions or cousortia whose activities qualify them
wholly -or partially for center -status. These are: Brandeis University-New
Iingland Center_for-Continuing Kduecation, Syracuse University, the Ll'enusyl-
vania State University, Duke University, the University of South Florida, North
Texas State University, the University of Michigan-Wayne State University, the
University of Chicago, the University of Wisconsin, St. Louis University, the
University of Nebrasliit, a consortium of five institutions headed by the Univer-
sity of Utab, the University of Southern California, and an Qregon epnsartium
led by the University of Oregon. A total of 21 institutions are involved. All but
one of the institutions or core institutions in the consortia has established a.
multidiseiplinary center or an institute which opcmtm mdcpuldcnth of any
single department or professional school.

In varying deg grees, most of these centers or lllbtltlltc& are performm" the
funzetions enumerated in part IV-C of the new Older Americans Act Amendments,
~(A) rAllLare recruiting and training personnel at the professional level and
several are providing short courses for professional and snbprofessional per-
sonnel. ‘At least four are making signiticant progress in assisting community
and junior colleges to develop courses and curricula for training at subprofes-
sional. levels.

(B) All, or-nearly all, .ne (.ouductm" basic or upphcd research in which slu-
dents are lc irning through Ddl‘tIClD‘ItOl‘v experience.

(C) All'are heavily engaged in giving cousultation and guidanee to individuals
aund groups representing publie and private u;.,cncncs and organizations. All are

Sworking in-close- LonJunctlon with the units on ngm" in the regional offices and

with &t.ne agencies in aging. .

(D). In every case, the institutes or centerb hm'e becn and are bmldmg librar-
ies of hooks, pcnudicals reports, and a \unch of ‘data essentinl to lcsondm'~
and stndents.

(I3) Al have Lwcn stmmlatmg the mcorpomtlon of content on 'igmn' in estal-
lished or new courses by either (a) cooptmg facnlty members from various dis-
cxplmcs to offer courses in curricula on aging, or (b) encournging dcpaxtmcnta
and schools to add gcxontologicul mform.ltmn to appropriate councs or to in-

-troduce new colirses.

{I") Asa result of the’ nnssxonm'y wonh of the centers ﬂnd mstltuteq prog rrams
on.aging are being offered in 4 range of professional.schools m(.ludmg architec-
ture, education, hiome economies, human development, publie admlmstmtwn, pub-
lic hc.llth recreation, social . work, and ‘urban-studies. Smu]arlv, aging content .
has been ndded to course’ offering% in nnthropologv economlc pOlltiC')l seience,
psychology, and sociology. :

.In some instance the Administration on Aging is provxdmg most of the Ied-
eral bll[)[lOl't received by these programs..In other instances, major support has
come from the National Tnstitute of Mental Health or the National Institute of
Child Health and Human Developinent.-Several have reccived support from State
fnds and other sources. The Administration. on Aging hias encouraged the in-
stitutes and centers to scek multiple support becguse it usually results in broad-
ening the base of facully and student involvement in the prograws. Broad involve-
ment extends the variety of occupations for which personnel can be trained and -
enhances the cnylncitv for rcsearch nnd for provlslon of comu] tatlon and technical
assistance, .-

3Vithiregard to the- future, we know tlmt some of the mstltutious in which the
centers are located—and-we hope a1l of them—have made enduring commitments
to the field of gerontology. Most of them are making substantial contributions of

.their own funds to support the:gerontologieal currienln and the technicnl assist-
‘unee they are offering. We-hope that they will increase their own efforts and we

expeet-that many of- them’will embrace the. opportumtv to obtain research funds
and to participate in expanding community. service programs. To the extent that

" {hey- do, this, shonld-continue:. to. give:visibility..to the institutes and.centers on .

- aging, provide Some - support -of - faculty. who can be involved in training pro-

groms. and sorve as’ means of. attrnchug students to.the field of gcrontolog\ or -
aging.’ .
Secretary Kurzmnn has discussed the new and e'cpanding services “of student

. snpport.in the form of basic education opportunity grants, work-study opportu-

fifcr

nitles, and student loans. There has beenr no reported information regarding the
extent'to which shldents in nging hnvc been mnl\mg use of these Tesources.

~ 3-



O

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

The next 2 or @ years should tell a great deal about the degree to which eduen- .
tional institutions {ake advantage of the expanding opportunities in the field of
aging and of the extent to which students, in the absence of trainceships, will
make use of alternative sources of support to vrepare themselves for carcers in
nging,

ITEM 6. RESEARCH IN AGING, PREPARED BY THE NATIONAL INSTI-
TUTE OF CHILD HEALTH AND HUXMAN DEVELOPMENT, NATIONAL
INSTITUTES OF HEALTH, FOR THE 1.8, SENATE SPECIAL COMMIT-
TEE ON AGING*

INTRODUCTION

The average life expeetaney in the United States has increased from 49 to 70
years in this century, largely due to the prevention of death from infections
diseascs in the first year of life. Sinee 1909 the number of persons reiching the
age of 65 has risen from threc to about 20 miltion, This is a jump of from
percent to 10 pereent of the entire population,

The National [ustitute of Child Hlealth and Human Development (NICIID)
is committed to studying biological, pxyehologieal, and social processes over the
total life span, and is concerned with the develevment of guowledge that will
prevent or veduce the adverse effects of aging., Creation of a central hody of

- sociological fact and theory to view the problems of the aging and the elderly

comprehensively, and developmant of appropriate solutions of these problenis ave
also of concern to the Imstitute,

The effects of aging way be said to fall into two categories---weakening of the
hody's defense agiinst disease and reduetion in the comfort of the elderly and
in their enjoyment of 1ife,

In the past several decades great progress has been made in deteeting and
mensuring the loss of physiological and psychological funetion that oveurs ax
humnans age, Reduction in the performanee of the body's organ systems has been
well documented. For example, mneh is known about the changes thiar oceur in
the exeretion by the kiduey of end products of metabolism and maintenance of
proper concentration and quantity of many substances within the body. Much
is algo kuown abont the changes in mental abilities with age. However, until
recent vears little has been known about the causes of loss of function with
age, Reecent advances in scientifie knowledge and techniques now muke it possibte
to address muany of the key questiong about aging. Some of these concern the
role of immunity in aging, cellular programing, the efeet of age on cellular
respongiveness and control wmechanisms, aging in wonen, and the effeets of
nutrition and environment on aging in humans and animals,

The following table Hsts the institute’s support for intramural research and
for extramural research and research training on aging at universities, hospitalg,
and research institutiong, through its adult development and aging branch.

I Thonsandsy
1070 _ e e e eee .. %R,100
10T . o e mmem I A § K
Aging 1972 (estimate) oo ;
1973 testimate) - L o - e e e e
1974 (estimate) - oo o _..__. o e e e

INTRAMURAL AGING REBEARCH—T'HE GERONTOLOGY RESEARCH CENTER

The Gerontology Research Center (GRC) of the Natlonal Institute of Child
Health and Human Developuient in Baltimore, Md., provides the base from
which (fovernment scientists stucy the biological, physiological, and behavioral
changes that take place with aging in hhumans, In addition to its own staff of
investizators, the center provides laboratory facilitier for guest workers and
foreign fellows and also serves as a national faeility for the study of aging. The
center's facilities and staff are frequently used resources for scientists in the
comnpmity and at universities, medical schools, and other hiomedical institutions
throughotut the country.

The primary requirement for aging studies is aceess to animals of known age,
purentage, and exposure to infectious agents. In past years, aging research has
often been hampered by difficulty in obtaining these experimental animals, In

#*See statement ol Dr, LaVeek, po 121,
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respouse to this need, the GRC has now developed a large colony of aging rats
whieh are made available to qualitied investigators in other laboratories.

During 1972, 12 collaborative researel projects, involving some 50 guest scien-
tists and supporting personnel, operated at the Ballimore center. In addition to
modern scientific equipment and <enescent animals, the center’s resources include
an extensive gerontology library, temperatnre control rooms useful for studying
the effects of environment on aging, tissue culture fasilities, up-ro-date eleetronic
data processing equipweznt, an animal surgery siaite, regular researeh scuinars,
and special conferences on aging.

Investigators from many disciplines study what happens to neople and animals
as they age, how older organisms adjust to aging, and what might be done to
slow or prevent some of the harmful effects of aging,

Studies whielh vompare measurenients made on a group of young subjects
with those made on a different group of old snbjects may lead to erroneous
conclusions about aging becnuse the old subjeets could represent survivors who
were superior individuals in their youth, Studies using stutisties based on data
averaged from subjeets of different ages do not necessarily show the progression
of age-ciaused changes, In order to determine the interrelation between aging in
different organ systems it is necesvary to obtain serial measurements on the
sime individual, These measurements are essontial if gerontologists are to find
out whether there is a geueral aging factor, or whethor aging is simply the result
of random defieits that develop in differon patterns in different peoble, A prin-
cipal activity of the GRC is the conduct of the Baltimore longitudinagl study. This
stidy is an effort 1o obtain a detailed understanding of aging in humans by
making repeated observations on the same individual as he ages. A sample of
some 6ou en, leading successful and aetive lives, has heen reernited for this
stiedy. Primarily from the Baltimore-\Washington area, all subjects are volunteers
ranging in age from 20-96 years. 1. ch subject in this study spends 214 days at
the Gorontology Research Center every 18 months, At each visit these volunteers
are g¢ocen extensive celinieal, biochemnn «al, physiological, and psychological tests
to med are age changes,

Invescgators interested in nutritionai aspects of aging are participating in tbe
study, R cently, these seientists, working in collaboration with nutritionists at
Philadelpi fa General llospitnl and the offman-LiaRoche Co,, have collected
data on the vitamin status of the 600 volunteers,
farly resalts from this study show that with advancing age even wefl-
nonrished men are deficient. OF the 200 men studied to date, 30 pereent talke a
vitmnin supplement to their diet on their own initlative. As measured by the
amount exercted in urine, one-fifth of the subjects not taking vitamins show
evidence of abnormally tow levels of thiamine (B)) snd ribotlavin (13.). At
least lalf of these older men show i1 defleieney ef pyridoxine (1.) in blood
plasma. Not only Jdo the men have 19w vitamin levels, but also there is evidence
of abnormal enzyme levels 1y the plasma and in the red blood cells of those not
taking vitamin supp'ments.

These early results are surprising because the group under study is made a,. of
highly cdueated, successful, community living subjects who have access to ade-
quate diets. On the poxitive side. chemical evidence of vitamin B deficiency is
rare in the niiddie-aged and in those elderiy subjeets who, without diveetion.
ireluYe © vitamin supplement in their diets.

In a aifferent GRRC laberatory, a guest investigator is studying still another
vitamin whieh sometimes iy found to be deficient in oldce people. This vitamin.
folie acid, is essential for the formation of new cells in the body.

Inarly results indicate that there is a significant difference in rates of folic
acid absorption in the small intestine of young rats (6 weeks old) compared to
old rats (2 vears old), A 2-vear-old rat is roughly comparable to a 70-year-old
nmati.

If the age related difference in absorption rates ubscerved in these carly expoeri-
ments continute to be observed as more animals are studied, then scientists may
pursue sinmitar human studies, It is possible to theorize that some of the vitamin
defleiencies seen in older hamans might result from age related defeets in vitamin
absorbing capability of the intestine,

LEARNING ABILITY AMONG TINIIE AGED

Still other GRC investigators have heen studying the verbal learning ability of
particirants. Recent analyses of data show that when material to be learned is
preserted visually at a fairly fast rate. the subjeets make inereasingly more
orrors iy they grow older. ’

4
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These results arve consistent with the tinding based on cross-scectiona] anulyses
that there is an age dependent decerement in verbal learning performance, In a
cross-sectional study, people of various ages are tested once and only age
differences hetween individuals can be measnred. In the tongitudinal study,
ciacelr person iy tested initially and then retested approximately six years later,
thus providing a measure of change in perfornaance with age. The verbiad tearn-
g procedures used ot the Center require the acquisition :rd recall of new
infornittion, whereas intelligence tests tap old inforination. [n contrast to verbal
learning perfoimance, intelligence tests have demonstrated no age-related chauges
in mental ability. fu view of the disparity of results hetveen the two measures
of jatelligence, furts v <tudics of the relation hetween mental ability and age
are required,

It is important te aote thae the magnitude of the ageaelated decline in verbal
learning performance varies with the rate at which material to he learned is
presented. Under eonditions where material to he learned is presented at a
slower speed, the decline with age is much lese marked and tends to sho™: up
el later in tife.

BIOLOGICAT. ASPECTS OF AGING

Age-related deterioration of the body's immune response to invasion hy foreign
proteins is thought by many to be responsible for the inereased susceuntibitity
to infections and to cancer in the elderly. Researchers have observed a marked
loss of immunological responsiveness in aging humans. Studies have shown that
the defeet in inusunologieal competence is located in the immunologieal cells of
the aged animai. The immunological system is made, at least in part, of cells
forined in the thymus gland (T cells) and in the hone marrow (B cells) that
arce capable of producing the active disease fizhters. These T and B cells con-
centritte themselves in the spleen and lymph nodes or travei through the body
with white biood cells.

Wihen an infectious ciganism (an antizen) enters the body, n teum of these
cells work to destroy the invaders. In early infaney this immunc system re-
ceives assistance briefly from maternal ar‘ibodies transferred during preznancy.
The activity of this system reaches its peak during adolescent years then de-
creases a8 the animal ages.

It has been suggested Dy some experts that cells become different genetically

with titne. When this happens they can become antigenic and stimulate a re-
sponye Dy the body against its own cells. This results in an autoimmune disense
harmfal or deadly to normal cells. The aging and cell death that follows repre-
sents the ond result of 9r autoimimune process and an active imnune system gone
awry.
Immunologic technigues perfected over the past few years now make it possi.
ble to initiute new research efforts to identify changes in the immune system
with aging. In recognition of this fact, NICHD in the fall of 1972 established a
speeial section on immunotogy within the Gerontology Resenrch Center's Labhora-
tory of collutar and comparative physiology.

Seven outstanding immunologists have been recruited as the ruclens of the
new section. These investigators are initlating studies on tie mechanisms of the
age-related decrease in immune responses in both animals and humans, In addi-
tion, they are conducting studies to determine the role of the autoimmune re-
spense in aging and to find out how cells distinguish between cells =f their own
kind and foreign invading bodies. The extramural adult development and aging
branech ic algo supporting studies of the immunological aspeets of agine.

CELLVLAR AND MOLLCULAR AGING

0Old animals take more time than do young ones to prodvie certain enzymies,
althongh they eventually do produce approprinte amouni{s. This means that
while the older animal can perform a particular metabolic task it takes him
mueh longer.

Recent studies by scientists in the GRC laboratory of molecular aging have
shown that impairments in {2 body’s cell control mechanisms lessen the ability
of old animals to produce certnin proteins, essential to the maintenance of life.
This means that aged cells can produce enough essential proteins if they are
properly stimulated and if the materials needed far the protein production can
be delivered to the cells.
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Research in this area is aimed at experiinental introduction of new materials
into cells to repair or counteraet the effeets of age. An investigator in the GR€
laboratory of molecular aging has synthesized new compounds (polymers) that
can penetrate cell memuranes without destreying the cell wall and disrupting
the whole ccll. (Previously scientists depended on living organisms, usually
3pecial viruses, to get into the cells.) Under normal circumstances it is extremely
difficult to introduce substances such &8s hormones, enzymes, or genetic material
(nucleoproteins) into the cells. Now, with the synthesis of the polywers it may
be possible to introduce these large molecules into the cells by attaching them
to the polymers.

The polymers used at the GRC have been designed, produced, and evaluated
for their ability to stimulate protection against viruses. A center investigator
has also found that-the antiviral defense mechanisms of human cells grown in
tissue culture change ..ith age. The viral protection induced with chemicals 18
most effective in the mi1dle of the in vitro (cell culture) life span, then decreases
sharply but is still functional up to the last 10 percent of the cultured cell’s life
span.

EXTEAMURBAL RESFARCH AND TRAINING I’ROGRAMS

The history of medical practice has shown a movement from intervention
during medieal crises toward the prevention of crises. The earliest results of this
shift in stritegy were studies in the prevention of diseases due to infectious
agents and nutritional deficiency.

Today the philosophy of prevention can be seen even in basie studies designed
to isobite and clharacterize risk or predisposing factors—the modification of
which cap prevent the development of overt disease. An important tool for this
type of research is the longitudinal study. NICHD longitudinal studies in
Baltimore, Durham, N.C., Boston, and Berkeley are being applied to analysis
of the various types of deterioration that occur in the aging humax. The Durham
study has resulted in inercased appreciation of the role hypertension plays in
deterjoration with age and particularly lu the decline tbat may occur in mental
function. This decline is a problem which is not only devastating to the elderly,
but also to their families and to society. Longitudinal studies have alsy cca-
tributed greatly to our knowledge of metabolic changes that occur with increas-
ing age. We have learned that energy requirements decreasc;.the ability to
convert carbohydrates to energy declines, and the ability of the body to regulate
levels of blood lipoproteins (fat carrying proteins) is disturbed. All these changes
liave signiticant implications for health and functional ability.

A series of studics of former college students by NICHD granteer has identi-
fied four characteristics that when present at college nze predispose the men in
later vears to fatal sirrKkes, hypertension, and fatal and nonsatal coronary
heurt discaxe. These factors—higher than normal levels of blood pressure, over-
weight, short height, and cigarette smoking—were also reecnily identified by the
grantees ns risk factors for nonfutal stroke.

Certain characteristics of aging men were algo found te be associated with an
increase in stroke. These were: High blood pressure (which had also been a
predietor at college age), coronary heart disea.>, diabetes, and a history of
parental high blood pressure. High blood pressure in later life bad the greate-t
effeet on the incidence of stroke, and, along with a family history of high hlood
pressure, was i better predictor of nonfatal stroke than high tHlood pressure at
college age. A comparison of these findings with. those of fatal stroke showed that
the predisposing factors were the same.

Many of the de‘eriorative processes that cccur with age cannot yvet be treated
effectively. The menopause—a condition occurring in middle-aged women—is
an oulstanding exception to this. It s due to a deerense in the seeretion of
hormones by the ovaries. Some degenerative processes that occur in women sfter
the middle years are definitely known to be due to this hormonal deciine. It is
clear that hormonal replacement reverses the unfortunate changes, but much
remains to he learned about what constitutes optimal therapy, what effect it
has on many aspects of health, and what side effects it may have. NICHD-
sapported studies are designed to determine what is occurring fn menopausal
and postmennpausal women and what the good and bad effects of hormonal
replacement therapy are.
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Studies of bumans as they age and studies of preventive and therupeuvtic
intevvention are invaluable, but progress can be slow. Scientists are hampered
becinrse certain experimental procedures :ire inappropriate on humans and be-
eatse the inman lite span is too long to permit rapid resalts, As o resnft, seien-
tists look to experimental studies in animals tor the relatively rapid aeygnisition
of knowledge about aging that ean then be tested in qpproprinte ways in hinnans.
IPor some tine now, seientists have considered rodents to be the most appropriate
experimental animals, adthengh  breakthroughs resalting froan studies with
other arimals may occur. The advantages of rodents are that they can be raised
relatively cheaply, have short like spang, and are similar to humans in severil
WAaYS.

NICHD maintains colunies of special research rits and mice both in its intra-
murat program and by contraet with commercial breeders, Studies nre showing
that preventing infection of the animals by bacteria prolongs the average length
of life it does not prevent deteriorative aging changes.

Evidence suggests that lifelong nutritional habits are of great hmpeoatanes to
healtly and longevity and rodents maintained free of infection provide ideal
subjeets for nutrition research.

In addition to using animals to study the decline of the hody's defense systein,
NICHD grantees are using them to Investigate the speed with which the cell's
enzymatic machinery can respond to stimulation by hormones and other agents.
‘The speed of response decreases greatly with sge and niay partially explain the
inability of the older person to respond to siresses inftinted by these agents,
Thiz, in turn, results in vulnerability to disease and/or reduced funeiionil
ability.

Many of the deteriorative changes agsocinted with incrensed age probably have
their origins in the cells. This idea, although not new, is Just now receiving
support in the form of deflnite evidenee, There are two schools of thought on
the mortality or immortality of human cells. These theories are the* normal
human celis grow, are immortal, and that if they die, their death {8 itne result
of some environmenn! infinence. The other theory is that cells have an aging
process and that death is Inherent in their genetie “program.™

Studies of human cells in culture condueted by an NICIHD grantec have infro-
duced further evidence to suppart the theory that the cells themselves are mortal.
By studying human fibroblasts (cells from connective tissue) the investigatorv
observed that the filwoblasts are not capable of indefinite survival even when
removed from the hody and maintained in tissie cnlture or transterred suargi-
cally to one young host and then another. Neither the 1deial environment of the
tissue culture system or the yvouthful host orgnns could lkeep the cells indeflnitely
reproducine,

Another investigation of aging at the level of the individual cell makes use of
sophisticated biochemical and biophysieal techniques to determiiie the mechanisms
by which pigments accumulate in many cells with inerensing age. These pigments.
which are leftover fatty materinl, are darkly colored and are probably metaboli-
cally inert. Pizments oceupy a large fraction of the volume of muny cells and
may interfere with cell function, Although known as aging pigwent this is not
the same material which appears on the skin as age spots.

A need of those respnusible for caring for the clderly is knowleduze of what
professional home pursing care has to offer older persons, Recent studies by
NICHD grantees have shown that among a group of mild to moderaicly disabled
elderiy patlents, those give home nursing care wera less likely to deteriorate
Dhysically and mentally and were alxo less likely to be admitted to nursing
homes,

In contrast, the grantees ohserved o signifiennt differences in the deterioratinn
of mental and “hysical functions between severely disabled patients who received
home nurging cire and those who did not. What home n.ursing care did do for the
severelv disabled was to increase their use of madleal, paramedical, and social
secvices,

These fi.udings suggest that health professicials should be trained to recognize
v hai respouse to trentment can be expected with different degrees of disabi]itn

“Vhile a visiting nurce can expect to maintain or improve the physical and mental
fu ctivns of moderately disabled patients, here role in ministering to severely
disabled persons is that of simply coping with the pat »nts' everyday needs and
wriodle crises. The findings alto suggest that in the case of severe'w disabled
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patients, manpower could be nsed more efliviently it the role of coordinator of
services was deleznted to less highly 1rained personnel, in effect freeing the nurse
to devote moere time to rehabilitative treatment,

Additional alterations in the size amd structure of the popnlation will oceur,
Clearly. protongation of life will alter the nutterns of illness and death in this
country. Death rates are not, however. the only determinants of the age-struceture
of the population. Factors such as changes in birth rates and migration habits
also influence the structure and necessitiate the development of complex mathe-
matical model <yvstems and intricate computerized computation for the neenrate
prediction of our future status and health needs. NICHD is supporting by con-
traet research to evaluate the usefulness of existing mathematical model systems
with an eye to modifying such models or having new ones created to serve the new
needs.
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APPENDIX 2

PREPARED STATEMENT OF CLARK TIBBITTS, DIRECTOR, DIVISION OF
MANPOWER DEVELOPMENT, ADMINISTRATION ON AGING, OFFICE
OF HUMAN DEVELOPMENT, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION,
AND WELFARE

IMpacT 0F THE DIRECT 'TRAINING GRANT I'ROGRAM AbpMINISTERED UNver ‘1rroi V
TR OLDER AMERICANS ACT OF 1965, A8 AMuNDED

Senaior Chiles, I am Clark Tibbitts. I am administrator of the direct training
grant program condueted under title V- (now title IV-A) of the Older Americans -
Act of 1965, as amended. I have had thisg responsibility since he inception of the
program in 1960, Prior to that time, I was active in promoting gerontology and

" serontological training., T have taught conrses in socinl gerontology, on a part-

rinie hasis at Amerienn University, George Washington University, and the
University of Michigan.

1t hax pleasod me to have your invitation to discenss some l%]letts of the train-
ing grant progriun at this hearing, «vhich I believe to be n very important one.

\I\' stittement. is too lang to be prezented here; hence, [ \hunl(l like to mention -
some of the high poiuts and leave the statement with you. To the present time,
most of ‘the information we have about the hupnet of the progriam hasx been
impressionistic; gathered from random observation, anecdotal reports from grad-
uutes and omplm‘er&. and from grantee applications for continuation support.

We have been impatient to have comprehensive, objeetive information in order
1o measwre the effectivencss of the program. Abont n year ago we negotiated a
contraiet with an impartinl outside organization to make an evaluative study.
IFortunately, your hearing is heing lheld just as the first vesult of the study are
hiecoming available. T should like to talk ahout what I regard ns & nmnhe\ of
significant points gleaned from the flrst draft of the repeort.

'l‘lIE“'l'lt.\lNlNG GRANT I’Rbﬁli.\.\(

" Before getting to these pouints, 1 think I shionld provide a little backgrousd
information about the program. The Administration on Aging decided, at the
onset, to foens on reeruiting and giving carcer preparation to personnel inter-
ested in planning for and serving the older popniation. Most of the effort hax
been divectad toward preparing personnel at graduate levels beeanse of {he near
viienuin of ‘trained lesutership that existed at the time the Congress passed the
Older Americans Act of 1965. A good deal of short-term tralning has been sup-
ported, too, for the purpose of p:m‘iding systematie gerontological knowledge to
persous already employed in the field of nging.

From the ountset, the Administration on Aging hrys focuszed oun tenining practi-
tioners and teachers in applied gerontology other than health cceupations, There
hiave heen two reasous for this apparent bhias: The first is that there were many
occupations essential to aehieving the broan objectives set forth in ritle I of the,
Older Americans Act for which there was little or no training of any kind. AoA
believed that, if the misslon assigned.to it by the act was to he successful, the
need for ger nntologlcallv trained personuel was self-evident. The second reason
wus that the Public Health Service had ]nrge resonrces for tr.unln" health man-
power, inclnding manpower for the field of aging .
rongh the National Institute of Mental Healtli, the National Institute of
1d Health and Human Development, and other units, the Public Health Service

‘/nas supporting graduate edneation for researchers in biological; hehavioral, ind
“social aspects nf gerontology and clinical psvchologists, psychiatrists, nurses, and

_ social workers in niental health and aging.

The Administration on Aging set its priorities on prepﬂrin practitloners for
State and Federal program planning and qdmiuistmtion. community program .-
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developent and “covrdination, management and administration of retirement
housing and homes for the aged, direction of muttipurpose senior centers, and
for scrving older beople thirough adult eduéation, architectural design, counseling,
loan, library sérvice, recreation, aud other relevant fields. Education for rese.lrch
and tondun in the applied ﬁulds was also & priority area.

"I'he tirst training awards were ade to Braudeis University and (he University
of Minnesota for {raining planners and administrators, researchers, and teachers.
T'welve students were enrolled in the fall of 1966; some 66 more a year later.

Taday, there are 36 AoA-supported programs being conducted in 47 educational -
institntions. ‘Ivough the academic year just closing, 1,596 different students
have accounted for 2499 enralliments, Most programs are £ or maore years in
length., Somie 50 students have left the career training programs, 82 pereent by
graduation, This means that the program has produced 779 persons with special-
ized training in aging, most of them at gradnoate levels. Approximately, 670 stu-
deuts eurrently enrolled will return next fall to complete their training,

Over the same periad, short-tevm training 2 or 3 days to 14 weeks in length has
by given to something on the order of 12,000 individuals. The program has
supported ether aetivities such as develmmlcnt of teaching materials and currie-
uli, Granis have heen made to two major organizntions—the American Associa-
tions of Commmnnity and Junior Colleges and tlm Adult Educntion Association—
to enable them ta promote work in aging on the part of {heiv eonstituents, Similar
awirds have heen made to minority group organizations, :

The total investment through fiseal year 1972 has been $20.700,000, -

THE RYALUATION STUDY )

The evaluation study, to.which I wish to address most of my report, was
based on questionnaires to the 725 students wlo had left their programs by
September 1972. Questionnaires’ were returned by 74 percent of these former
stndents who apparently represented a pretty good cross section of the totat.

Demographically, they were almost equally divided between male and female.
Sixty-two percent were or had been murried; 47 percent had one to four or
more dependents, Approximately one-third were under 26 years of age: and one-
third hetween 26 and 35, and one-third were 36 or more years of age. One of the
striking aspeets of the training progrims has been their capaclty to attract
puiture persans whoe sought to make wmnd eareers in .~ervue to the older
population,

Just short of 12 percent of - the respondents were members of mmorltv ‘groups.
I am glad fo'lw able 1o say that the proportion has risen to 15 percent since
several black schools have applied for and received training grants.

One of the nims of the program has been to recruit new personnel to the field
of aging; another has been to cquip personnel already serving, older people with
specialized knowledge of the aging processes and with oider persons. The evilun-
tion study reveals that 56 percent of the trainees had had some prior work ex-
perience—paid or voluntary—in the.field, for the most part without formal
training. Forty-two percent had had neither training nor work cxpenence before
they cntered the AoA-spensored programs. -

Some 44 percent reported: that they had had a strong prlor interest in the
field; the remaining 55 percent had had no, little, or only moderate interest.

Proxn these reports, it ean be concluded, T think, that the program has beei .
recruiting new. people te the field and that it has been enabling others already
in the field to increase their competencies. .

What foctors underlies thz decision of young :md m1d~career persons ‘to enroll
in’ gerontologicnl training programs? There was a range of reasons, of course,
:including college courses and instructors; influence of relatives, {riends, and su-
pervisors; personal experience with- an elderly relative; concern. for.the low
quality. of services for older people; and recruitment by a training program. In
24 percent of the cases, direct work experience with the elderly was the mnjor
.factor and fer 32 percent it was the availability of AoA grants, .

The naed for financial aid was, indeed, a critical matter, Sevem:y-ﬁve percent
staterd that education in aging would not have been possible without finanecial
afd. And of the tota! number of rcspondents, 37 percent reported that, had.it not
been for the AcA traineeship they would have continued to do what thcv ‘nas been
-doing ; 27 percent would have studied for a degree in another field ; and 12 percent
would liave looked for a job in or not in nging Gnly 10 percent smted that they
would have begun n degree progrnm m aglng I\nd financial help not been

-nvnilnhle - ) . :
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The need for a financial base for the students was further demonstrated by re-
ports of 85 percent who stated that they had depended to Some extent on other
sources of income. Earnings of a spouse, u part-time job, personal savings, loans,
and support from parents or relatives provided the principal supplements to
traineeship stipends and dependency allowances.

STUDENT EXPERIFNCES WITH THEIR TRAINING PROGRAMS

I'ormer trainees were asked to report on and to evalaate several aspects of
their programs. That, by and lurge, the programs did focus on AoA's priorities
Is substantial by the major field of study reported by the questionnaire respond-
ents. Three-fourths of the student programs were built around a strong care
of gerontology with training in one cr more specific practice =kills or were
directed toward community development, pubile policy, administration and plan-
ning, recreation, and educittion. Seventy-nine percent sought to ohtain « master’s
degree : S percent a doctorate they could use in teaching or research.

Most of the training institutions undertook to provide substantial work in
zerontology and in its applications to particular aspects of the tield. Eightecn
percent of the students had three or fewer suech courses, but 33 percent had four
to six, and 43 percent had seven or more, On the whole the former students ap-
pear to have been quite well satisfied with their academic experiences. Three-
fourths reported that most or all of their courses were interesting ; three-fifths
thiat most or all have heen useful to them in their jobs; and that half or wmore of
the vourses were well taught. A substuntial majority (two-thirds) received the
jmpression that their instructors were committed to the field of aging and 85
percent reported that they had had the right amount or more than <afficient con-
racr with them, Nearly one-half stated that their instructors had provided useful
infortnation about job openings.

The Administration on Aging undertook te require that provision of or pric-
ticum or actual work experience he huilt into every student's training program.
Eighty-five perecent of the trainees reported that they had had one or two practi-
cums were served in as a wide range of settings and students had an equally
wide range of work assignments. By and large students reported that the practi-
cutns were of the right length, that they came at the right time in their programs,
and that the rites and tusks were well suited to their objectives,

The validiy of AoA's maudating of the practicum is borne out by the trainee
cvaluations shewn in the following table,

USEFULNESS OF THE AOA TRAINEESHIP PRACTICUM EXPERIENCE~ PERCENTAGF DISTRIBHTIONS

In determin- In tying
ing interest courses
in the field together in current icb

Uselilness.. .. . ... .. . . .. o ieieeeev.i.. N 44 k1 34
Somewhatuseful._.. .. .. . e e 24 36 26
Notuseful. .. e e 11 14 &
Not applicable tothe Yob... . ... ... L. ) 0 14
No practicum or no information_ .. ... ... ___ ... .. 20 19 18

...................... j0a 100 100

OUTCOME OF THE TRAININCG PROGRAMS

We have already seen that the training programs have produced 779 persons
~ith speelnlized preparation for working with or on behalf of older people. About
tioree-fifths of these had had prior counection with the field of agineg; two-fifths
had not,

We can now turn to the specific outcomnes of the evaluation study. The data to
be reported helow are preliminary and subject to modification in the final report.

As noted rarlier on, four out of five of the enrollers who responded to the ques-
tlonnaire completed their programs and were awarded the degrecs they sought.
Another encouraging payoff is that 48 percent of those who did not. e mplete their
work plau to do so. '

‘The c¢ri.ieal questions are, of course, how wmany of the former trainees are work-
ing and at what ? The study reveals that approximately 80 percent are In the labor
force and that more than nine-tenths of those are employed. Some 6 percent who
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received the degree they sought have returned to school in search of a higher
degree. Thus, 4 percent are not in the labor force or back in school.

It is gratifying to discover that on the whole, the 18 educational institutions
represented by the former students responded imaginatively and conscientiously
to the objectives and requirements gset by the Administration on Aging. It is
especially gratifying when it is recognized that most of them had had relatively
little formal activity in gerontology until they joined AoA in pioneering the prep:-
ration of personnel for the field of aging.

Sixty-three percent of the furmer trainees have gone into positions that are
<uncerned totally or partially with older people. Nineteen percent are employed
but not in the field of aging. The distribution—

Statns: Pereent
Employed, concerned with older people . .o oo .. o3
Not concerned with older people____ e _._ 19
Re-enrolleq, for a higher degree...___.____.___.___.____________._____ 6
Unemployed, seeking work__________________________________.____ S
Not in the labor foree . ______ . o 4

Potal e 100

At the time of the survey (January 1973), former traineeship recipients were
found i 4s occupations covering many facets of aging. The principal areas
were—

Area : I*ereent

Planning, administration, and coordination at Federal, State, com-
mMunity levels oo oo e 22
Direct provision of specialized services 19
Teaching and research.__.___.______ . ______._____ e 9
Management of retirement housing, senior centers, and !nstitution=__ N

All other, including students employed but not in agiag, and not
employed - e e 12
Tatal _____________.._. e e e e 100

1t is significant, in view of the advanced levels of most of the training pro-
yrams, that one-half of the former students are in administrative, supervisory,
or understudy leadership roles.

FFor the most part those cployed tend to be satisfied witin their preseut posi-
tions; 40 percent stating that they are very satisfied. Salaries range from less
than $4,000 per vear to $26,000 and over. The median salary reported was
$12.116.

Former students who were not employed in aging gave the most frequent reasons
for not being so employed as: No appropriate joh opening, more attractive job
elsewhere, insuflicient opportunity or salary. It is encouraging to discover that,
among all former trainees, employed in aging or not so employed 94 percent have
anoderate (18 pereent), strong (29 percent), or very strong (47 percent) interest
in the field. Thus, it seems reasonable to assume that the Administration on

ging's direct training grant program has inculcated or strengthened on pro-
visions concern for ihe older population. By reason of this concern and of the
knowledge, <kills, and experience they have gained, through and subsequent. to
the training experience, they are different people from what they were when
they enrolled in their training programs.

The first years of the program are having other consequences, too. The bold
entry of the first institutions into the field hax granted a momentum which is
leading many others, including community and junior colleges to incorporate
werontological eduea“ion into their offerings.

Increasing nuinbers of faculty have heen developing interest and capacities
in geroutslogy. Empiovers are bheginning to have awareness of the value of
personnel informned about oider people and the processes of aging. Thirty-two
percent of the surveyed students reported thut employers recognized their de-
grees in aging and as many more did not know whether rue degree was recog-
nized. Only 39 percent indirated that the specialized degree was not an asset
in job funding,

These are all indicia of xigrificant progress in an area in which there was
very little activity only 8 years ago,
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' STATEMENT SUBMITTED BY ANDREW S. KORIM, SPECIALIST IN OC-

CUPTIONAL EDUCATION, AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF COMMUNI’I Y
AND JUNIOR COLLFGES WASHINGTON, D.C. ‘

Juno 21, 1973,

Mr. Chairman, the American Association of Community and Junior Colleges
is plensed ta.have the opportunity to submit a statement to the Specinl Com-
mittee on Aging. Onr statemeni focnses on the role of the Nation’ s conununity
colleges in tralning personnel to work in the field of aging.

The 1971 Wlute House Conference on Aging pliced emphasis on the need for
the development of certificute and -1~s0('mte degree programs in community
colleges to mun ove the quality of persons working with the problems facing the
elderly people in our Nation. Sueh a challengze is not, strange to the community
colleges (and when we refer to community collezes we include junior colleges
and teclmicnl institutes). The middle level, technical, ind paraprofessional seg-
ments of our labor force have heen tnr"etx of the educ‘itmu and training pro-
grams offered by the more than 1.100 community colleges. Occupational fields -
suell as engineering, bhnsiness administration. health eare, teaching, criminal
jus[ice. and frangportation ‘have been provided with a flow of manpower re-
ceiving preparation through certificate and ns~ncmle (le ree programs in com-
munity eolleges for at least n decade, - . o

Althonglh the eareers in. the field. of aging - are not new, there’is today an

' emphasis on gervicesr mr(lci ing personnel that is-new. For some time, ihe educa-

Q

ERIC

B A v 7ext Provided by ERIC

- tiennl enterprises of onr Nation: have been produecing o flow of professionals

prepared in the skifls of research, planning, and administration for the field
af gerontology. Manpower development eflforts have generullv ignored the person
who must on - daily Dasis render services to:the elderly in our commurities.
Whetlier . we talk.of the city and county agencies, or the private organizations

J{ehrehes, charitable groups, volnnteer service agencies) the community senior

citizens_centers. or special housing units for the elderly persons, we find that
the employees . directly respousible for rendering services for the- elderly have
nao training for:the functions they perform. The burden on the people who per-

‘form thesc¢ functions is.often overwhelming. *Ag a result, many older Americaus

are poorly serve(l hy ‘rhe vnrlons 'lgoncics, or. exist with no nttention gtven to
their needs, :

- It the quality ot’ hfe al‘ the c.lderl', is ta be nnpm\ed each resenrcher, eacl
pl inner, and eaeh agency administrator presently working.in the field of aging
must be matched with a team of persons specifically trained.to render. services.
Trained researchers, planners, and administrators must -be complemented with
tranined paraprofessionals, technicians, or pnrnﬂemntologists to meet the needs of
the eider!y economically and effectively. The Nation cannot afford the luxury of a

trained eorps’of professionals working with untrained service-rendering. person-
‘nel, This prnctxce is economlcall\ unsound and (]0(’5 harm to countleqq Senior

citizens, .t .
We Ieel th.ﬂ: t]re \'ntion s community (.olle"es huve the capnbllity to mmrove

~ the umnpower picture in.the field of aging. ’I'he nunmber of these 2-year institu-
tions fierenses annually: Community colleges’ are now.situated in more than 1,100 -

l‘mlll.l]l]l)ltleb Bach of thése communities has locally a potentinl, resonrce tor
improving the manpower tlint works with the clderly. people.. .. -
According to n survey of ‘1,137 #ommunity.and junior colleges recently con-

ducted by ‘the association, 58.were found to be offering programs speciﬁcn[ly

related to the field of aging. Of these colleges, 43 were providing programs to
upgrade persons presently employed such as managers of seilior centers, nursing

).mnu-'udmmmtrumm nurse’s andes. and geriatne nldes _The ren*aining 15 col-

(]70)
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leges offered certificate and associate degree programs in gerontology, nursing
home administrdion, and gerintries, ‘The survey identified 112 colleges that plan
to implement programs in the next 2 years.

Additionally, almost 400 community colleges presently provide a wide range
of services designed to improve life for the elderly. These =ervices include in-
formation and referral! regurding personal problems, counsesing and guidanee
reiding employvment and other opportnnities, preretirement planning, voea-
tional and basie skill development, eultural aud recreationnl aetivitles, and
nutritional services, aniong others, Purthermore, comnunity colleges have taken
ol roles as area agencies on aging, pperators of senior centers and the spousors
of retired senior volunteer programs,

Thix sununary of corunun’ty eollege roles in manpower development activities,
in providing himan service s, and in performing community organizations! func-
tions pertaining to the improvement of the quality of life of the aging demon-
strites the interest of the community colleges in the older American and the
capability of the institutions as a valuable resource,

Ax individual community eolleges come to us to seek guidanee regarding
entry into or expansion of the training of personnel for the field of aging,
certain questions are rmised by these colleges. We helieve the Special Committee
on Aging will find the questions of value in its deliberations. They generally
take the following form:

l)?n)-s Congress see the need for improved manpower at the service-rendering
level?

Does Congress understand the capabilitios of connnunity colleges in prepuring
nnpower for the field of aging¥

Will appropriations be forthcoming to cover tie cost of the training and up-
urading of service-rendering personnel ?

Will funds be available to provide internships to community college students?

Will funds he available to agencies to employ the graduates of community
eollege programs?

How ean funds under eduneation legislztion he pooled together with the “Older
Awericans Comprehensive Services Amendmenis of 1973” to support manpower
development programs?

These questions are eritieal to the decisiomnakers in comiruaity colleges, Com-
munity colleges are able to mobilize their capabilities to provide the training
to meet the national commitment to improve the quality of manrower working
with the needs of the older American. We urge this committee to seriously con-
sider the Nation’s network of community colleges as a resouree for the training
and upgrading of personnel for the field of gerontology and that adequate funds
be carmarked for this parpose,

O



